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Introductory Note

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K (this “annugboet”), (1) the “Company,” “we,” “us” or “our’tefer to Mueller Water Products, Inc. anc
subsidiaries, including Mueller Co. and Anvil oethmanagement; (2) “Mueller Co.” refers to Muel@. LLC, our subsidiary; (3) “Anvil” refers
to Anvil International, LLC, our subsidiary; and) (4J.S. Pipe” refers to United States Pipe and FEsyiCompany, LLC, our former subsidiary.
With regard to the Company's segments, “we,” “us"aur” may also refer to the segment being disedss its management.

On April 1, 2012 , we sold the businesses compgisir former U.S. Pipe segment. U.S. Pipe's restilbperations have been reclassified as
discontinued operations, and its assets and ligilieclassified as held for sale, for all prieripds. Unless the context indicates otherwise,
amounts related to our former U.S. Pipe segmerd baen excluded from amounts presented in thissmeport.

Certain of the titles and logos of our producterefnced in this annual report are our intellegwaperty. Each trade name, trademark or
servicemark of any other company appearing inahisual report is the property of its holder.

Unless the context indicates otherwise, wheneverefer in this annual report to a particular yees,mean the fiscal year ended or ending
September 30 in that particular calendar year. Videage our business and report operations througlbisiness segments: Mueller Co. and Ar
based largely on the products sold and the custossved.

Industry and Market Data

In this annual report, we rely on and refer to infation and statistics from third-party sourcesarding economic conditions and trends, the
demand for our water infrastructure products, ftmtrol and piping component system products andcss and the competitive conditions we
face in serving our customers and end users. WeMedthat these sources of information and estisrate accurate, but we have not independently
verified them.

Most of our primary competitors are not publiclgded companies. Accordingly, only limited curreablic information is available with
respect to the size of our end markets or ourivelatrength or competitive position. Our stateraéntthis annual report about our relative market
strength and competitive position with respecttteeoproducts are based on our beliefs, studiegualysinents concerning industry trends.

Forward-Looking Statements

This annual report contains certain statementsniagtbe deemed “forward-looking statements” witthi@ meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. All statements tretdress activities, events or developments thantead, expect, plan, project, believe or
anticipate will or may occur in the future are fand-looking statements. Examples of forward-lookstatements include, but are not limited to,
statements we make regarding general economic timmsli spending by municipalities, the outlook tioe residential and non-residential
construction markets, the stability of Anvil's meirk, Hurricane Sandy and the “fiscal cliff” and thgpacts of these factors on our business.
Forward-looking statements are based on certaimgsons and assessments made by us in light ofxperience and perception of historical
trends, current conditions and expected future ldpweents. Actual results and the timing of evensy miffer materially from those contemplated
by the forward-looking statements due to a numbéaaiors, including regional, national or globalitical, economic, business, competitive,
market and regulatory conditions and the following:

» the spending level for water and wastewater infuastire

» the level of manufacturing and construction acfp

» our ability to service our debt obligations; .

» the other factors that are described underdhtian entitled “RISK FACTORSIh Item 1A of Part | of this annual repc

Undue reliance should not be placed on any fond@oling statements. We do not have any intentioohdigation to update forward-looking
statements except as required by law.
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*

All or a portion of the referenced section incogted by reference from our definitive proxy statantbat will be issued in connection with the Anhua
Meeting of Stockholders to be held on January 8232




Table of Contents

Index to Financial Statements

PART I
Item 1. BUSINESS

Our Company

Mueller Water Products, Inc. is a leading manufeertand marketer of products and services usetkitransmission, distribution and
measurement of water. Our product portfolio inchidagineered valves, fire hydrants, metering prisdaicd systems, leak detection and pipe
condition assessment services and a broad rarmgpeofittings, couplings and hangers for heatireptitation and air conditioning (“‘HVAC"), fire
protection, industrial, energy and oil & gas apgtions. Our products and services are used by npatfitces and the residential and non-residential
construction industries, and enjoy leading posgtidae to their strong brand recognition and remrtdor quality, service and innovation. We
believe that we have one of the largest instalbeskb of iron gate valves and fire hydrants in thgdd States. Our valve or fire hydrant produce
specified for use in the 100 largest metropolitezaa in the United States. Our large installed Ha®ad product range and wkttown brands hav
led to long-standing relationships with the keytrilisitors and end users of our products. Approxatyai0% of our net sales in 2012 came from
products for which we believe we have a leaderpbgition in the United States and Canada. Ouralessvere $1,023.9 million in 2012 .

We manage o ur business and report operationsghrweo business segments, based largely upon tiieigis sold and the customers served:
Mueller Co. and Anvil. Segment revenue and profibimation and additional financial data and comtagnon the recent financial results for
operating segments are provided in the Segmentyisaection in Part Il, Item 7. “Management's D&gion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations” and in Note 17 to thesobdated financial statements in Part Il, ltefinancial Statements and Schedules” of this
annual report.

Mueller Co.

Mueller Co. manufactures valves for water and gatess, including iron gate, butterfly, tappingeck, plug and ball valves, as well as dry-
barrel and webarrel fire hydrants and a broad line of pipe repeaducts, such as clamps and couplings usegtirreaks. Mueller Co. also offe
residential and commercial metering products aistesys and leak detection and pipe condition assrggnoducts and services. Sales of Mueller
Co. products are driven principally by spendingaaier and wastewater infrastructure upg rade, regpal replacement and construction of new
water and wastewater infrastructure, which is tgihycassociated with construction of new residdmiianmunities. Mueller Co. products are sold
primarily through waterworks distributors. We esiba that a substantial majority of Mueller Co.'d8 2@et sales were for infrastructure upgrade,
repair and replacement.

Anvil

Anvil manufactures and sources a broad range afymts, including a variety of fittings, couplinggngers, valves and related products for use
in many forms of non-residential construction foyAL, fire protection, industrial, energy and oilgas applications. Anvil's products are sold
primarily through distributors who then sell th@gucts to a wide variety of end users. These Higors are serviced primarily through Anvil's
distribution centers. We believe Anvil's networkdistributors is the largest such distribution natwserving similar end users.

1
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Major products and selected brand names

The table below illustrates each segment's nes slaleng 2012 , major product lines, estimated pebgositions, selected brand names and
primary end users.

Mueller Co. Anvil
Net sales (in millions) $652.4 $371.5
Major product lines (estimated product positiotJis. and Fire hydrants (#1) Pipe fittings and couplings (#1)
Canada®) Iron gate valves (#1) Grooved products (#2)
Butterfly and ball valves (#1) Pipe hangers (#2)

Plug valves (#2)
Metering products and systems
Brass products (#2)

Selected brand names Canada Valve™ Anvil®
Echologics AnvilStar®
Hersey® Anvil-Strut®
HydroGate® Beck®
HydroGuard® Catawissa™
Jones® Gruvlok®
LeakFinderRT™ J.B. Smith™
LeakListener™ Merit®
LeakTuner™ SPF®
Mi.Data™
Mi.Hydrant™
Mi.Net®
Milliken™

Mueller Service

Mueller System$§™

Mueller®

Pratt®

U.S. Pipe Valve and Hydrant

Primary end users Water and wastewater infrastructure HVAC, fire protection,
industrial, energy and oil & gas

*  Product position information is based on our sedes compared to our estimates of the net shtas @rincipal competitors for these product
categories. Our estimates are based on internBls@saand information from trade associations amdd@stributor networks, where available.

The Public Offerings, the Spin-off and the Sale df).S. Pipe

Mueller Water Products, Inc. is a Delaware corporathat was incorporated on September 22, 2008ruihé name Mueller Holding
Company, Inc. It is the surviving corporation oé timerger on February 2, 2006 of Mueller Water PetgjlLLC and Mueller Water Products Co-
Issuer, Inc. with and into Mueller Holding Compafng. We changed our hame to Mueller Water Progdliets on February 2, 2006. On June 1,
2006, we completed an initial public offering of, 280,000 shares of common stock.

On December 14, 2006, Walter Energy, Inc. (“Walaergy”,formerly Walter Industries, Inc.) distributed te ghareholders 85,844,920 shi
of our Series B common stock (the “Spin-off”). Candary 28, 2009, each share of Series B commok stas converted into one share of Series A
common stock and the Series A designation was uliszeed.

On September 23, 2009, we completed a public offesf 37,122,000 shares of common stock.

On April 1, 2012 , we completed the sale of theilesses co mprising our former U.S. Pipe segment.
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Our principal executive offices are located at 12@@rnathy Road N.E., Suite 1200, Atlanta, GeoB§ia28, and our main telephone numbg
that address is (770) 206-4200.

Business Strategy

Our business strategy is to capitalize on the |aatieactive and growing water infrastructure méskeorldwide. Key elements of this strategy
are as follows:

We will maintain our leadership positions with owustomers and end users.

We will maintain our leadership positions with @mustomers and end users by leveraging our branésianmd large installed base; our valvi
fire hydrant products' specification in all of laegest 100 metropolitan areas in the United Stat@sestablished and extensive distribution
channels; and our broad range of leading wateastfucture, flow control and piping component sysfoducts, as well as by developing and
introducing additional products and services.

We will continue to enhance operational excellence.

We will continue to pursue superior product engiimgg design and manufacturing by investing in teshgically advanced manufacturing
processes, such as lost foam casting and autommatiethg machinery. We will also seek opportunitiesmprove manufacturing efficiency safely
by increasing the use of our manufacturing facilit®China and continuing our other cost-reductind efficiency initiatives. We will continue to
expand the use of LEAN manufacturing and Six Sigpsiness improvement methodologies where apprepasafely capture higher levels of
quality, service and operational efficiency. Welwlso continue to evaluate outsourcing certairdpots wherever doing so will lower our costs
while maintaining quality and service.

We will increase the breadth and depth of our pradsiand services.

We will continue to focus on delivering value tor@ustomers and end users by increasing the breadtldepth of our products and services.
Further, through acquisition and internal developtd proprietary technologies and intellectualitalpwe will continue to enhance and develop
products and services that will be recognizedHeirtsuperior quality and reliability.

We will expand internationally.

We will selectively pursue attractive internationgportunities, including potential acquisitiortsat may enable us to enter new markets with
growth potential, strengthen our current competifpositions, enhance our existing product and semfferings, expand our technological
capabilities or provide synergy opportunities.

Description of Products and Services

We offer a broad line of water infrastructure, floaantrol and piping component system products piilgnan the United States and Canada.
principal products are water and gas valves, fyigrdints, metering products and systems and a lveway o f pipe fittings, couplings a nd hangers.
Our products are generally designed, manufacturddested in compliance with industry standards.

We also offer leak detection and pipe conditioreasment services through Mueller Co.
Mueller Co.

Mueller Co.'s water products are manufactured tetrmeexceed American Water Works Association (“AWW Standards and are certified
NSF 61 for potable water conveyance. In additioanynof these products carry Underwriters Laboraf‘UL”) and Factory Mutual (“FM”)
approvals. These products are typically specifiethle water utility for use in its system.

Water and Gas Valves and Related Produdtdueller Co. manufactures valves for water and gatesns, including iron gate, butterfly,
tapping, check, plug and ball valves and sellsehmeducts under a variety of brand names, inctutoeller and U.S. Pipe Valve and Hydrant.
Water and gas valves and related products accotmt&d01.8 million , $387.9 million and $411.6 lah of our gross sales during 2012 , 2@tk
2010, respectively. Our valve products are usabitrol transmission of potable water, non-potatdéer or gas. Water valve products typically
range in size from % inch to 36 inches in diamdiat,we also manufacture significantly larger valas custom order work through our Henry Pratt
unit. Most of these valves are used in water distibn and water treatment facilities.
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We also produce small valves, meter bars and topper fittings for use in gas systems. In addjtisa manufacture machines and tools for
tapping, drilling, extracting, installing and stapg-off, which are designed to work with our waderd gas fittings and valves as an integrated
system.

Fire Hydrants. Mueller Co. manufactures dry-barrel and wet-bdirelhydrants. Sales of fire hydrants and fire faydrparts accounted for
$149.0 million , $137.6 million and $137.6 milliaf our gross sales in 2012 , 2011 and 2010, réispbc We sell fire hydrants for new water
infrastructure development, fire protection systemd water infrastructure repair and replacemenjepts.

Our fire hydrants consist of an upper barrel anzzfeosection and a lower barrel and valve sectiahd¢onnects to a water main. In dry-barrel
hydrants, the valve connecting the barrel of thdragt to the water main is located below grounak dtelow the frost line, which keeps the hydrant
upper barrel dry. We sell dry-barrel fire hydranith the Mueller and U.S. Pipe Valve and Hydrargrat names in the United States and the
Mueller and Canada Valve brand names in Canadaal¥demake wet-barrel hydrants, where the valvesoaeged in the hydrant nozzles and the
barrel contains water at all times. Wet-barrel laydis are made for warm weather climates in locatsuth as California and Hawaii and sold under
the Jones brand name.

Most municipalities have a limited number of finednant brands that are approved for installatiothiwitheir system due to their desire to use
the same tools and operating instructions acrases tkistem and to minimize inventories of sparéspak/e believe that our large installed base of
fire hydrants throughout the United States and Garend our reputation for superior quality and genfince, together with our incumbent
specification position, have contributed to thedlag positions of our fire hydrants. Our large alletd base also leads to recurring sales as
components of an installed hydrant are replaced.

Water technologies and other products and serviddsieller Co. manufactures a variety of intelligerater technology products under the
Mueller Systems and Hersey Meters brand namesithatesigned to help water providers accuratelysareavater usage. These products include
water meters, advanced metering infrastructureesystand automated meter reading products. Thedagisohave the capability to measure water
usage ranging from small residential flows to lacgenmercial and industrial applications.

Mueller Co. offers leak detection and pipe conditissessment products and services under the adwhlyand name and installation,
replacement and maintenance services on new astihgxvalves, fire hydrants and service lines urideMueller Service brand name. Services
include wet taps, dry installs, line stops and rtaimeter connections with full excavation and rbfshment.

Other products include pipe repair products, ssctl@amps and couplings used to repair leaks andcipahcastings, such as manhole covers
and street drain grates. We sell these productsrihd Mueller and Jones brand names.

Anvil

Anvil products include a variety of fittings, coums, hangers, valves and related pipe productssferin non-residential construction for
industrial, HVAC, fire protection, energy and oilgas applications. Anvil's net sales were $3711Bami, $ 359.1 million and $ 346.9 million in
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, of which $9dillion , $87.9 million and $100.3 millionrespectively, were of products manufactured lrg
parties.

The majority of Anvil's products are not specifigdan architect or an engineer, but are requirdgbtmanufactured to industry specifications,
which could include material composition, tenstiesgth and various other requirements. Many prtsdcarry the UL, FM or other approval rati

Fittings and CouplingsAnvil manufactures threaded and grooved pipe §itiand couplings. Pipe fittings and couplings j@io pieces of pip
together. The five primary categories of piperigs and couplings that we manufacture are listémhbe

» Cast Iron FittingsCast iron is an economical threaded fittings matemd is the standard used in the United Statdsviopressure
applications, such as sprinkler systems and otteepfotection systems. We believe that the sulislamajority of our cast iron products
are used in the fire protection industry, with themainder used in steam and other HVAC applications
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* Malleable Iron Fittings and Union. Malleable iron is a cast iron that is heat-eéab make it stronger, allowing a thinner wall and
lighter product. Malleable iron is primarily useajbin pipe in various gas, plumbing and HVAC apations.

» Grooved Fittings, Couplings and Valvé&&ooved products use a threadless paiing method that does not require weld

» Threaded Steel Pipe Couplingireaded steel pipe couplings are used by plumdniagelectrical end users to join pipe and condhdtlay
pipe mills as threaded end protectors.

* Nipples. Pipe nipples are used to expand or compress thebigtween pipes of different diameters. The pippleis product line is a
complementary product offering that is packagedh witst iron fittings for fire protection productsalleable iron fittings for industrial
applications and our forged steel products fo&ojlas and chemical applications. Pipe nipples @ general plumbing items.

Hangers. Anvil manufactures a broad array of pipe hanges supports. Standard pipe hangers and suppertsed in fire protection
sprinkler systems and HVAC applications where thieative is to provide rigid support from the biilg structure. Special order, or engineered,
pipe supports are used in power plants and petnoichaé plants where the objective is to supportmng system that is subject to thermal, dynamic
or seismic movement.

Other Products. Anvil also distributes other products, includingdged steel pipe fittings, hammer unions, bull plagd swage nipples used to
connect pipe in oil & gas applications.

Sales, Marketing and Distribution

We sell primarily to distributors. Our distribut@lationships are generally non-exclusive, but ttengpt to align ourselves with key
distributors in every market we serve. We belicdhat Mueller is the most recognized brand in the. W&er infrastructure industry.

Mueller Co.

Mueller Co. sells its products, primarily throughterworks distributors, to a wide variety of enérusustomers, including municipalities, we
and wastewater utilities, gas utilities, and firetpction and construction contractors. Sales ofoooducts are heavily influenced by the
specifications for the underlying projects. Approately 13% , 14% and 15% of Mueller Co.'s net sal@® to Canadian customers in 2012 , 2011
and 2010, respectively.

At September 30, 2012 , Mueller Co. had 118 sapeesentatives in the field and 117 inside margedind sales professionals, as well as 130
non-employee manufacturers' representatives. In additicalling on distributors, these representataiss call on municipalities, water compar
and other end users to ensure that the produatfisgefor their projects are our products or conafde to our products. Municipalities often
require contractors to use the same products thet heen historically used by that municipality.

Mueller Co.'s large installed base, broad prodaicte and well-known brands have led to many loagesng relationships with the key
distributors in the industries we serve. Our disttion network covers all of the major locationsdar products in the United States and Canada.
Although we have long-standing relationships withistrof our key distributors, we typically do nowvkdong-term contracts with them. We do not
have written contracts with our two largest disttdrs, which together accounted for approximat®62 29% and 31%f Mueller Co.'s gross sal
in 2012 , 2011 and 2010, respectively. The lossitber of these distributors could have a matexdzierse effect on our business. See “ltem 1A.
RISK FACTORS-Our business depends on a small goblpy distributors for a significant portion ofosales.”

Anvil

Anvil sells its products primarily to distributovgho then resell the products to a wide varietyraf asers, including commercial contractors
September 30, 2012, Anvil's sales force consistdd0 sales and customer service representatince@hindependent sales representatives. Anvil
ships products primarily from four major region@tdbution centers, from which we are generallieab provide 24-hour turnaround.
Approximately 7% , 7% and 14% of Anvil's net salese to Canadian customers during 2012 , 2011 amafl 2respectively. Anvil sold its
Canadian wholesale distribution business in JanZ@ty.

Anvil generally does not have written contractswis distributors, although it has long-standiatationships with most of its key distributors.
Anvil's top five distributors together accounted &pproximately 24% , 24% and 20% of Anvil's greakes in 2012 , 2011 and 2010 , respectively.
The loss of any one of these distributors coulcehmwmaterial adverse effect on our
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business. See “ltem 1A. RISK FACTORS-Our businegsedds on a small group of key distributors faigaificant portion of our sales.”
Backlog

Backlog is a meaningful indicator for the Henry Peand Mueller Systems units of Mueller Co. HenrgtPmanufactures valves and other parts
for large projects that typically require desigml dmild specifications. The delivery lead time farts used for these projects can be as long as nin
months. Mueller Systems manufactures water metatsare sometimes ordered in large quantities sé@tjuential delivery dates over an extended
time period. Backlog for Henry Pratt and Muelleis®&yms is presented below.

September 30,

2012 2011
(in millions)
Henry Pratt $ 64.1 $ 5
Mueller Systems 21.¢ 1

Manufacturing
See “Item 2. PROPERTIES” for a description of oringpal manufacturing facilities.

We will continue to expand the use of LEAN manufisicty and Six Sigma business improvement methodiedoghere appropriate to safely
capture higher levels of quality, service and openal efficiency.

Mueller Co.

At September 30, 2012 , Mueller Co. operated tenufaturing facilities in the United States, Canadd China. Our manufacturing
operations include foundry, machining, fabricatiassembly, testing and painting operations. Nd&allities perform each of these operations. Our
existing manufacturing capacity is sufficient foitiaipated near-term requirements. We have no otipians to expand capacity.

Mueller Co. foundries use lost foam and green sasting techniques. We utilize the lost foam tegheifor fire hydrant production in our
Albertville, Alabama facility and for iron gate wa production in our Chattanooga, Tennessee faciltte lost foam technique has several
advantages over the green sand technique for ighme products, including a reduction in the numifenanual finishing operations, lower scrap
levels and the ability to reuse some of the mdterighe selection of the appropriate casting temini pattern, core-making equipment, sand and
other raw materials depends on the final produdtisncomplexity, specifications, function and puotion volume.

Anvil

At September 30, 2012 , Anvil operated eight mactuféng facilities in the United States. Our maauifiring operations include foundry, heat
treating, machining, fabricating, assembling, tesfind painting operations. Not every facilityfpems each of these operations. Our foundry
operations employ automated vertical and horizagreén sand molding equipment. Our products areerimad high volume production
environment extensively using high-speed compudatrolled machines and other automated equipment.

Purchased Components and Raw Materials

Our products are made using various purchased coemp® and several basic raw materials, includingpssteel, sand, resin, brass ingot and
steel pipe. Purchased parts and raw materialssepted 34% and 16% , respectively, of cost of geottsin 2012.
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Research and Development

Our primary research and development (“R&D") fa@h are located in Chattanooga, Tennessee andédolugh, Massachusetts for
Mueller Co. and in North Kingstown, Rhode Island Amvil. The primary focus of these operationsaglevelop new products, improve and refine
existing products and obtain and assure compliaitbeindustry approval certifications or standa¢sisch as AWWA, UL, FM and The Public
Health and Safety Company). At September 30, 20d2employed 86 people dedicated to R&D actigiti®R&D expenses were $12.7 million ,
$9.9 million and $7.8 million during 2012 , 2011da?2010 , respectively. The increases in our R&Demsge relate primarily to development of our
newer water-technology products. We actively seskmnt protection where possible to prevent copgingur proprietary products.

Patents, Licenses and Trademarks

We have active patents and trademarks relatingetaésign of our products and trademarks for camdis and products. We have filed and
continue to file, when appropriate, patent appiicet used in connection with ou r business andymtsd Most of the patents for technology
underlying our products have been in the public g@iorfor many years, and we do not believe tipiagty patents individually or in the aggregate
material to our business. However, w e consideptw of proprietary information, consisting of @pse and trade secrets relating to the design,
manufacture and operation of our products to btqoerly important and valuable. We generally ctha rights to the products that we
manufacture and sell and we are not dependentyiimaterial way upon any license or franchise taraee See “Item 1A. RISK FACTORS- Any
inability to protect our intellectual property atite expiration of our patents could adversely aféec competitive position. ”

Seasonality

See “Item 1A. RISK FACTORS- Seasonal demand of@endf our products may adversely affect our finah@sults. ” and “Item 7.
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL ©NDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS- Effect of Intian;
Seasonality .”

Competition

The U.S. and Canadian markets for water infragtrectflow control and piping component system paislare very competitive. See “Item
1A. RISK FACTORS- Our markets are very competitivelowever, there are only a few competitors for nodstur product offerings. Many of ¢
competitors are well-established companies witbngtbrand recognition. We consider our installesebaroduct quality, customer service level,
brand recognition, price, innovation, distributiamd technical support to be competitive strengths.

The competitive environment for most Mueller Camguscts is mature and many end users are slowrtsitie@ to brands other than their
historically preferred brand. It is difficult todrease market share in this environment. We betieateMueller Co. fire hydrants and valves enjoy
strong competitive positions based largely on tmsitalled base, product quality and brand recagmiOur principal competitors for fire hydrants
and iron gate valves are McWane, Inc. and Amerigast Iron Pipe Company. The primary competitorofarbrass products are The Ford Meter
Box Company, Inc. and A.Y. McDonald Mfg. Co. Mamabs valves are interchangeable among differentifaaturers.

The markets for Anvil's products are highly comipeti price sensitive and vulnerable to the incegeacceptance of products produced in
perceived lower-cost countries, such as China adidl We compete primarily on the basis of avalighiservice, price and breadth of product
offerings. Our primary competitors are Ward Mantidisiag L.L.C. for cast iron and malleable ironifigs, Victaulic Company and Tyco
International Ltd. for ductile grooved fittings aB@RICO International Corporation, Cooper Industp&esand Carpenter & Paterson, Inc. for pipe
hangers. Our mechanical and industrial customers haen slower to accept products manufactureddeutse United States than our fire
protection customers.

Environmental Matters

See “ltem 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS - Environmental.”
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Regulatory Matters

The production and marketing of our products amdises are subject to the rules and regulationsagbus U.S. and non-U.S. federal, state
and local agencies, including, but not limitedrtdes and regulations concerning bribery, competjtenvironmental protection, international trade,
our relationships with distributors and workplaeakh and safety. We are not aware of any pendlilegor regulation that is likely to have a
material adverse effect on our operations. Seen'BeLEGAL PROCEEDINGS.”

Employees

At September 30, 2012 , we employed approximat@&9@Bpeople, of whom approximately 86% work in lthdted States. At September 30,
2012 , approximately 67% of our hourly workforcesnmvered by collective bargaining agreements.

Our locations with employees covered by such agee¢srare presented below.

Location Expiration of current agreement(s)
Albertville, AL September 2014
Aurora, IL August 2015
Decatur, IL June 2016
University Park, IL April 2014
Bloomington, MN March 2015
Columbia, PA April 2014 and May 2014
Chattanooga, TN September 2013 and October 2014
Henderson, TN December 2015
St. Jerome, Canada November 2014
Simcoe, Canada November 2013

We believe that relations with our employees, idioig those represented by collective bargainingemgents, are good.

Geographic Information

See Note 17 to the consolidated financial statesnar®art I, Item 8. “Financial Statements andestthes”.
Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

Risks Relating to Our Business
Our end markets are subject to economic cycles.

Our primary end markets are municipal water digtitn and treatment systems, the mesidential construction industry, the oil & gadustry
and new water and wastewater infrastructure agsaolciaith new residential construction. Sustaineceutainty about these end markets could ¢
our distributors and our end use customers to dalaghasing, or determine not to purchase, ourymisdor services. General economic and other
factors, including high levels of unemployment duotne foreclosures, interest rate fluctuations, &unel other energy costs, labor and healthcare
costs, the state of credit markets (including mipaicbonds, mortgages, home equity loans and coesaredit), weather, natural disasters and «
factors beyond our control, could adversely afteatsales, profitability and cash flows.

A significant portion of our business depends oresyling for water and wastewater infrastructure cdnsction activity.

A significant portion of our business depends aalpstate and federal spending on water and wastewnfrastructure upgrade, repair and
replacement. Funds for water and wastewater imfretstre repair and replacement typically come fiooal taxes or water rates, and the ability of
state and local governments to increase taxes t@rwates may be limited. In addition, state ardlgovernments that do not budget for capital
expenditures in setting tax rates and water raggshe unable to pay for water infrastructure repad replacement if they do not have access to
other funding sources. It is not unusual for wated wastewater projects to be delayed and resaebflul a number of reasons, including changes
in project priorities and difficulties in complyingith environmental and other governmental regoreti

Some state and local governments have placed optaeg significant restrictions on the use of watetheir constituents. These water use
restrictions may lead to reduced water revenugwibpte water entities, municipalities or other ggymental agencies, which could similarly affect
funding decisions for water-related projects.
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Poor economic conditions may cause states, mufitédseor private water entities to receive lowean anticipated revenues, which may lead
to reduced or delayed funding for water infrastuuetprojects. Even if favorable economic conditierist, water infrastructure owners may choose
not to address deferred infrastructure needs daevémiety of political factors or competing sperglpriorities.

Low levels of spending for water and wastewatemaistfucture construction activity could adversdfget our sales, profitability and cash
flows.

Portions of our business depend on both non-resiti@hand new residential construction activity.

A portion of our business depends on non-residetdiastruction, which is cyclical. Low levels of meesidential construction activity could
adversely affect our sales, profitability and cistvs.

In addition, a portion of our business dependsem water and wastewater infrastructure spendinggiwin turn largely depends on residential
construction, which is cyclical and has historiga#épresented a significant portion of our salesfifability and cash flows. Our previously high
level of exposure to the residential constructiarket caused us to be severely impacted by thedddomic downturn over the last several years.
As the U.S. economy slowly recovers and the neweirifding market improves, our residential condtarcrela ted business may lag any
increased levels of new home construction.

Our business depends on a small group of key dsttors for a significant portion of our sales.

We sell our products primarily to distributors angt success depends on these outside parties iogetatir businesses profitably and
effectively. Their profitability and effectivenesan vary significantly from company to company anaong different regional groups served by the
same company. Further, our distributors generddly earry competing products. We may fail to alaym operations with successful distributors in
any given market.

Approximately 36% of our 2012 gross sales wereutold® largest distributors, and approximately 24%wr 2012 gross sales were to our two
largest distributors, Ferguson Enterprises, Ind.lD Supply, Inc. In 2012, Ferguson Enterprises, &md HD Supply, Inc. accounted for 14% and
15% , respectively, of gross sales for Mueller Co.

Distributors in our industry have experienced cdidation in recent years. If such consolidationtownes, our distributors could be acquirec
other distributors who have better relationshipthwiur competitors. Pricing and profit margin pressmay also result if consolidation among
distributors continues. Pricing and profit margmegsure or the loss of any one of our key distatsuin any market could adversely affect our
operating results.

Our business strategy includes acquiring and invegtin companies and technologies that complemeut existing business, which could
be unsuccessful or consume significant resourceslatversely affect our operating results.

We will continue to evaluate the acquisition ofstgic business, technologie s and product lings thée potential to strengthen our industry
position or enhance our existing set of product serdice offerings. We cannot assure that we d@htify or successfully complete suitable
acquisitions in the future or that completed adtjoizs will be successful.

Acquisitions and technology investments may invaignificant cash expenditures, debt incurrencerating losses and expenses that could
have a material adverse effect on our businesmial condition, results of operations and casWwdl These types of transactions involve
numerous other risks, including:

. diversion of management time and attention fraitycbperations;
. difficulties integrating a cquired businessesht®logies and personnel into our business;

« difficulties in obtaining and verifying full imkmation regarding a business or technology padhé consummation of the transaction,
including the identification and assessment ofilligds, claims or other circumstances, includihgge relating to intellectual property
claims, that could result in litigation or regulgt@xposure;

» verifying the financial statements and other bussrnieformation of an acquired busin

. inability to obtain required regulatory approvatsd/or required financing on favorable terms;
. potential loss of key employees, key contractekitionships or key customers;

. increased operating expenses related to therachpiusiness or technologies;

. the failure of new technologies, products or B@w to gain market acceptance with acceptablét pnafrgins;
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* entering into new markets in which we have littteno experience or in which competitors may havenster market positior
» dilution of interests of holders of our commdrares through the issuance of equity securitiegjaitylinked securities; ar

» inability to achieve expected synerg

Any acquisitions or investments may ultimately hann business or financial condition, as such aitjons may not be successful and may
ultimately result in impairment charges.

Our markets are very competitive.

The U.S. and Canadian markets for water infragtrecand flow control products are very competithkhile there are only a few competitors
for most of our product and service offerings, mahpur competitors are wedlstablished companies with strong brand recognitiée compete ¢
the basis of a variety of factors, including thaliy, price and innovation of our products andvgass. Anvil's products in particular also compete
on availability and breadth of product offeringslame sold in fragmented markets with low barrterentry. Our ability to retain our customers in
the face of competition depends on our ability trket our products and services to our customéestefely.

In addition to competition from U.S. companies, faee the threat of competition from companies fathrer countries. The intensity of
competition from these companies is affected bgtflations in the value of the U.S. dollar agaihsirtlocal currencies, by the cost to ship
competitive products into North America and by #vailability of trade remedies. Competition mayoalscrease as a result of U.S. competitors
shifting their operations to lower-cost countrieotherwise reducing their costs.

Our competitors may reduce the prices of their pet&lor services, improve their quality, improveitHunctionality or enhance their market
or sales activities. Any of these potential devalepts could adversely affect our sales, profitgbdnd cash flows.

Disruptions in our supply chain and other factordfacting the distribution of our products could advsely affect our business.

A disruption within our logistics or supply chaietwork, including a work stoppage at any of théghecompanies that deliver our products to
our customers, could adversely affect our busiaegsresult in lost sales or damage to our reputa8ach a disruption could adversely affect our
financial performance or financial condition.

Transportation costs are relatively high for most @ur products.

Transportation costs can be an important factaréastomer’s purchasing decision. Our valve andamygroducts are generally big, bulky and
heavy, which tend to increase transportation cd¥gtsalso have relatively few manufacturing sitelich tends to increase transportation distances
to our customers and costs. High transportatiotsamsuld make our products less competitive comptresimilar or alternative products offered
competitors.

We typically depend on rail, barge and truckingteyss to deliver our products to customers. Whileaustomers typically arrange and pay for
transportation from our factory to the point of udisruption of these transportation services beeati weather-related problems, strikes, lock-outs
or other events could temporarily impair our apitid supply our products to our customers, thebyersely affecting our sales, profitability and
cash flows.

10
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Normal operations at our key manufacturing facilés may be interrupted.

Some of our key products, including fire hydramid &alves, are manufactured at single or few manufimg facilities that depend on critical
pieces of heavy equipment that cannot be econoyitaved to other locations. We are therefore kaiin our ability to shift production between
locations. The operations at our manufacturindifees may be interrupted or impaired by variougmging risks, including, but not limited to:

. catastrophic events, such as fires, floods, eskpis, natural disasters, severe weather or oitndasoccurrences;
. interruptions in the delivery of raw materialsather manufacturing inputs;

. adverse government regulations;

. equipment breakdowns or failures;

. information systems failures;

. violations of our permit requirements or revooatof permits;

. releases of pollutants and hazardous substaoas soil, surface water or ground water;

. shortages of equipment or spare parts;

. labor disputes; and

. terrorist acts.
The occurrence of any of these events may impaipmduction capabilities and adversely affect gales, profitability and cash flows.
We manage o ur business as a decentralized orgditina

We have two business segments that operate urtbmeatralized organizational structure. Our openathave different business practices,
accounting policies, internal controls, proceduned compliance programs. Further, we may need tlifyjnexisting programs and processes to
increase efficiency and operating effectivenessianpdove corporate visibility into our decentralizeperations. We also regularly update
compliance programs and processes to comply wiltieg laws, new interpretations of existing lawslaew laws and we may not implement
those modifications effectively. It could take tiffioe any such modifications to be implemented axms operations. During the implementation
periods, our decentralized operating approach caddlt in inconsistent management practices aocdegiures, which could adversely affect our
business. Once achieved, it may also be difficuthtintain operational consistency across our gzg#aon.

Any inability to protect our intellectual propertgnd the expiration of our patents could adverseRe&t our competitive position.

Our business depends on our technology and expertiich were largely developed internally andrasesubject to statutory protection. We
rely on a combination of patent protection, copytignd trademark laws, trade secrets protectiopj@ree and third party confidentiality
agreements and technical measures to protect liestual property rights. The measures that e ta protect our intellectual property rights
may not adequately deter infringement, misappréiprizor independent third-party development of ehnology, and they may not prevent an
unauthorized third party from obtaining or usingpimation or intellectual property that we regasdpaoprietary or keep others from using brand
names similar to our own. The disclosure, misappatipn or infringement of our intellectual propedould harm our competitive position. In
addition, our actions to enforce our rights mayleis substantial costs and the diversion of managnt time and other resources. We may also be
subject to intellectual property infringement claifrom time to time, which may result in our inéog additional expenses and diverting resources
to respond to these claims. Finally, for those potslin our portfolio that rely on patent protentionce a patent has expired the product is géwn
open to competition. Products under patent prateatsually generate significantly higher revenug @arnings than those not protected by patents.
If we fail to successfully enforce our intellectymbperty rights or register new patents, our cditipe position could suffer, which could adversely
affect our business, financial condition, resuftserations and cash flows.
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If we do not successfully maintain and/or upgraderanformation and technology networks, or if we amunable to maintain the security of
our information and technology networks, our operans could be disrupted.

We rely on various information technology systemsianage various aspects of our operations. Weoaitinuously upgrading and
consolidating our systems, including making charigdsgacy systems, replacing legacy systems witcessor systems with new functionality and
acquiring new systems with new functionality. Thagees of activities subject us to inherent costs sks associated with replacing and changing
these systems, including impairment of our abtfityulfill customer orders, potential disruptionaiir internal control structure, substantial cdpita
expenditures, additional administration and opegatixpenses, retention of sufficiently skilled persel to implement and operate the systems,
demands on management time and other risks ansl @odelays or difficulties in transitioning to nesystems or of integrating new systems intc
current systems. Our system implementations mayeasofit in productivity improvements at a leveltthatweighs the costs of implementation, ¢
all. In addition, the implementation of new techogt systems may adversely affect our business padhtions.

We depend on the Internet and our information teldgy infrastructure for electronic communicati@mong our locations around the world
and between our personnel and suppliers and custoBecurity breaches of this infrastructure caaigr system disruptions, shutdowns or
unauthorized disclosure of confidential informatitfnve are unable to prevent such breaches, oeiratipns could be disrupted or we may suffer
financial damage or loss because of lost or misgpted information.

We are subject to a variety of claims and litigatithat could cause our results of operations todmversely affected and our reputation to
suffer.

In the normal course of our business, we are stitjedaims and lawsuits, including from time tmé claims for damages related to product
liability and warranties, litigation alleging thefiingement of intellectual property rights andgittion related to employee matters and commercial
disputes. The defense of these lawsuits may divgrtnanagement's attention, and we may incur sogmif expenses in defending these lawsuit
addition, we may be required to pay damage awardsttiements, or become subject to injunctionstioer equitable remedies, that could have a
material adverse effect on our business, finamgabition, results of operations and cash flowsvdfwere required to participate in a product fe
or take other action to address a product liabditpther claim, our reputation could suffer. Maren any insurance or indemnification rights that
we have may be insufficient or unavailable to protes against potential loss exposures.

We rely on successors to Tyco to indemnify us fertain liabilities and they may become financiallynable or fail to comply with the terms
of the indemnity.

Under the terms of the acquisition agreement redath the August 1999 sale by Tyco of the Mueller &d Anvil businesses to the prior
owner of these businesses, we are indemnified kiginelyco entities (“Tyco IndemnitorsTpr all liabilities arising in connection with thaperatiol
of these businessesipr to their sale by Tyco, including with respeatroducts manufactured or sold prior to the clpsifithat transaction, as w
as certain environmental liabilities. These inddrasisurvive indefinitely and are not subject tg dollar limits. In the past, Tyco Indemnitors have
made substantial payments and assumed defens@rafdh connection with these indemnification oltigns. Since 2007, Tyco has engaged in
multiple corporate restructurings, split-offs andedtitures. While none of these transactions tliyedfects the indemnification obligations of the
Tyco Indemnitors under the 1999 acquisition agregntbe result of such transactions is that thetassf, and control over, such Tyco Indemnitors
has changed. Should any of these Tyco Indemnitgsrhe financially unable or fail to comply with tteems of the indemnity, we may be
responsible for such obligations or liabilities.

Our expenditures for pension obligations are sigioéint and could be materially higher than we havesglicted.

We provide pension benefits to certain currentfansher employees. In determining our future paynabligations under the plans, we asst
certain rates of return on the plan assets andtbrmtes of certain costs. We contributed $21.8&aonil, $23.3 million and $23.0 million in 2012,
2011 and 2010, respectively, to our pension plahSeptember 30, 2012, the market value of ouriperdan assets was $387.1 million , which
represents an 86% funded status. The Pension Bootéct of 2006 (“PPA”) incents U.S. plans to haly funded by 2015. PPA funded status is
assessed annually on January 1. At January 1, #4ynded status of our U.S. plan was 103% .

Assumed discount rates and expected return ongslsets have a significant effect on the amountsteg for the pension obligations and
pension expense. Significant adverse changes dit ened capital markets or changes in investmemtitdcresult in discount rates or actual rates of
return on plan assets being materially lower thafegted and increased pension expense in futumes ye meet funding level requirements. If
increased funding requirements are particularly

12




Table of Contents

Index to Financial Statements

significant and sustained, our overall liquidityutbbe materially reduced, which could force usaduce investments and capital expenditures, sell
assets, seek additional capital or restructureforance our debt.

Failure to attract, motivate, train and retain quidied personnel could adversely affect our busine®ge also rely on certain key personnel,
the loss of whose services would adversely affecttusiness.

Our ability to expand or maintain our business degeon our ability to hire, train and retain empey with the skills necessary to understand
and adapt to the continuously developing needsio€ostomers. The increasing demand for qualifexd@nnel makes it more difficult for us to
attract and retain employees with requisite skitssif we fail to attract, motivate, train andaiatqualified personnel, or if we experience exisess
turnover, we may experience declining sales, manuifag delays or other inefficiencies, increasectuiting, training and relocation costs and
other difficulties, and our business, financial dibion, results of operations and cash flows cdaddnaterially and adversely affected. In addition,
our business depends on the efforts, skills, rejomsand business relationships of certain kegqrarel who are not obligated to remain employed
with us. The loss of these personnel could jeopardur relationships with customers and may adiyeestect our business, financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows.

We may not be able to generate sufficient cash 8dwom operating activities to service all of ouelt.

Our business may not generate cash flows from tpgractivities in an amount sufficient to enabgeta pay our debt or to fund our other debt
service obligations. If our cash flows and capiéslources are insufficient to fund our debt serolgégations, we may be forced to reduce
investments and capital expenditures, sell assetk additional capital, or restructure or refirrmaar debt. However, we may not be able to
accomplish these actions on satisfactory termat all. In addition, these actions, if accomplishealild adversely affect the operation and growth
of our business.

Covenants in our debt instruments may adverselyeaffus.

Our debt instruments contain various covenantslii#tour ability to engage in certain transacsdhat might be beneficial. The indentures
governing our notes restrict our ability to, amaniger things, borrow money or issue preferred stpak dividends, make certain types of
investments and other restricted payments, criats, Isell certain assets or merge with or intelotompanies, engage in sale and leaseback
transactions and enter into certain transactiotis affiliates. Our asset based lending agreemantraiquires the maintenance of a specified amoun
of excess availability when our fixed charge cogereatio is below a certain level.

The prices of our purchased components and raw mials can be volatile.

Our operations require substantial amounts of @gett components and raw materials, such as seepssnd, resin, brass ingot and steel
pipe. We generally purchase components and rawrigatat current market prices. Purchased partgsandnaterials represented 34% and 16% ,
respectively, of cost of goods sold in 2012. Thet @md availability of these materials are suljeeconomic forces largely beyond our control,
including North American and international demaiedeign currency exchange rates, freight costssatulation. Mueller Co. experienced a 3%
decrease in the average cost per ton of scrapastdel 5% decrease in the average cost of bragspogchased in the 2012 compared to 2011.
Anvil experienced a 5% increase in the averagepmrston of scrap steel purchased in 2012 compar2a11.

We may not be able to pass on the entire costiod prcreases for purchased components and rawiedat® our customers or offset fully the
effects of these higher costs through productivitgrovements. In particular, when purchased compboeraw material prices increase rapidly or
to significantly higher than normal levels, we mapt be able to pass cost increases through toustormers on a timely basis, if at all, which wc
reduce our profitability and cash flows. In additiaf purchased components or raw materials wet@vailable or not available on commercially
reasonable terms, that would reduce our salestavidity and cash flows. Our competitors could e better under different market conditions
than we do, which could give them a cost advantagepared to us.

We may be affected by new governmental legislatiod regulations relating to carbon dioxide emissi&n

Many of our manufacturing plants use significanoamts of electricity generated by burning fossdlfy) which releases carbon dioxide. Fec
and state courts and administrative agencies arsidering the scope and scale of carbon dioxidssom regulation under various laws pertaining
to the environment, energy use and developmengeehhouse gas emissions. For example, althoughusaattempts to pass comprehensive
legislation reducing carbon emissions have beenagessful in the United States, the EPA has prazkedth regulating carbon emissions from
stationary sources under existing law. In additsmveral states are considering various carborid#iaegistration and reduction programs. The
details and scope of these various legislativajleegry and policy measures are unclear and tlwergial impact is still uncertain, so we cannot
fully predict the impact on our business.
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The potential impacts of climate change on our ajp@ns are highly uncertain. The EPA has found giathal climate change could increase
severity and possibly the frequency of severe weggihtterns. Although the financial impact of thpstential changes is not reasonably estimable
at this time, our operations in certain locationd those of our customers and suppliers could fiatinbe adversely affected, which could
adversely affect our profitability and cash flows.

We are subject to environmental, health and safletys and regulations.

We are subject to various laws and regulationgingldo the protection of the environment and hurealth and safety and must incur capital
and other expenditures to comply with these requairgts. Failure to comply with any environmentahltteor safety requirements could result in
the assessment of damages, the imposition of pesiatispension of production, changes to equiporgmiocesses or a cessation of operations at
our facilities. Because these laws are complexgestlo change and may be applied retroactivebsetrequirements, in particular as they change ir
the future, may adversely affect our sales, proilitg and cash flows.

In addition, we incurred costs to comply with thatidnal Emissions Standards for Hazardous Air Ratits issued by the EPA for iron and
steel foundries and for our foundries' paintingraiens. We may be required to conduct investigatiand perform remedial activities that could
require us to incur material additional costs. Operations involve the use of hazardous substamm¢he disposal of hazardous wastes. We may
incur additional costs to manage these substamze®/astes, and we may be subject to claims for darfar personal injury, property damage or
damage to natural resources.

Our former U.S. Pipe subsidiary has been identdie@ potentially responsible party liable unddefal environmental laws for a portion of
cleanup costs with regard to two sites and is otlgrsubject to an administrative consent ordeuinéog certain monitoring and cleanup with reg
to a property in New Jersey. Such cleanup costil dmusubstantial and, since we remain responfiblihese potential liabilities, could adversely
affect our profitability and cash flows in any giveeporting period.

Seasonal demand of certain of our products may adedy affect our financial results.

Sales of some of our products, including valvesfaechydrants, are seasonal, with lower salesuinfiost and second fiscal quarters when
weather conditions throughout most of North Ametead to be cold resulting in lower levels of coustion activity. This seasonality in demand
has resulted in fluctuations in our sales and dperaesults. To satisfy demand during expectedk pesiods, we may incur costs associated with
inventory build-up, and our projections as to fetaeeds may not be accurate. Because many of pangss are fixed, seasonal trends can cause
reductions in our profitability and profit margiaad deterioration of our financial condition duriperiods affected by lower production or sales
activity.

Potential international business opportunities maypose us to additional risks.

A part of our growth strategy depends on us expanuiiternationally. Although net sales outsidehaf United States and Canada have
historically accounted for a small percentage aftotal net sales, we expect to increase our lef/blsiness activity outside of the United States
and Canada. Some countries that present good Bagip@ortunities also face political and economstability and vulnerability to infrastructure
and other disruptions. Seeking to expand our basiirgernationally exposes us to additional rigksich include political and economic
uncertainties, currency fluctuations, changes éalllusiness conditions and national and internatioonflicts. A primary risk that we face in
connection with our export orders relates to odulitptio collect amounts due from customers. Wevdlce the potential risks that arise from
staffing, monitoring and managing international @pens, including the risk that such activitiesyntivert our resources and management time.

In addition, compliance with the laws and regulasi@f multiple international jurisdictions increasmur cost of doing business. International
operations also are subject to anti-corruption lang anti-competition regulations, among others.example, the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices
Act and similar foreign anti-corruption laws gerbrarohibit companies and their intermediariestirmaking improper payments or providing
anything of value to improperly influence foreigovgrnment officials and certain others for the seof obtaining or retaining business, or
obtaining an unfair advantage. Violations of thieses and regulations could result in severe crifranal civil sanctions, could disrupt our business
and adversely affect our brands, our internatiexabnsion efforts, our business and our operagsglts.

Any failure to satisfy international trade compliare regulations may adversely affect us.

Our operations require importing and exporting goadd technology between countries on a regulas.da®mm time to time, we obtain or
receive information alleging improper activity inrmection with our imports or exports. Our policgmdates strict compliance with U.S. and non-
U.S. trade laws applicable to our products. If eeeive information alleging improper activity, quolicy is to investigate that information and
respond appropriately, including, if warranted,aeimg our
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findings to relevant governmental authorities. Nbeé&ess, we cannot provide assurance that ourigeland procedures will always protect us from
actions that would violate U.S. and/or non-U.S.dany improper actions could subject us to civicaminal penalties, including material
monetary fines, or other adverse actions, includiegial of import or export privileges, and coulththge our reputation and our business pros)

A material weakness in our internal control ovemfancial reporting could lead to errors in our finarial statements and a lack of investor
confidence and a resulting decline in our stock pei.

In connection with changes to our internal contoyer financial reporting during the quarter en&egitember 30, 2012, management
discovered errors in the classification of caskvias between those from continuing operationgtawge from discontinued operations. These
errors related to the classification of deferreztbme tax and retirement plan adjustments in detengpinet cash used in operating activities due to
designating our U.S. Pipe segment as discontinpecations in our consolidated financial statemdaoting the quarter ended March 31, 2012.
Specifically, net cash used in operating activities overstated by $8.0 million for the six morghsled March 31, 2011 and by $10.0 million for
the nine months ended June 30, 2011, as presentes Quarterly Reports filed on Form 10-Q for thearterly periods ended March 31, 2012 and
June 30, 2012, respectively.diicash used in discontinued operations was uradedsby these same amounts for these periodsa résult of thes
errors, management concluded that as of March@l2 and June 30, 2012 our internal control overfaial reporting and our disclosure controls
and procedures were not effective. In connectiith this determination, management also conclutatiwe had a material weakness, at those
dates, in these controls. We remediated this maategeakness during the quarter ended Septemb&(3@,

In addition, management determined that a non-adglstment of $2.5 million was necessary to in@eastain health and welfare accrued
liabilities and related expenses at September@D1.2This adjustment did not result in any matarisstatement of any previously issued financial
statements. As a result of this adjustment, manageooncluded that we had a material weaknessripenod end consolidating process for
reconciling certain health and welfare accruediliigtaccounts. Consequently, management conclaliadwe had not maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting. We remediated timaterial weakness during the quarter ended Desme®dh 2011 by changing our period end
consolidating account reconciliation process relétethese accounts.

The fact that we have previously identified matesiaaknesses could lead investors to questioneliebility and accuracy of our reported
financial information and could adversely impact tharket price of our common stock.

Risks Relating to Our Relationship with Walter Enemgy
We may have substantial additional liability forderal income tax allegedly owed by Walter Energy.

Each member of a consolidated group for federalnmetax purposes is severally liable for the feldamme tax liability of each other
member of the consolidated group for any year irchvit is a member of the group at any time dusngh year. Each member of the Walter En
consolidated group, which included us (including subsidiaries) through December 14, 2006, is jaistly and severally liable for pension and
benefit funding and termination liabilities of ottgroup members, as well as certain benefit plaesaAccordingly, we could be liable under such
provisions in the event any such liability is in@d, and not discharged, by any other member oitakker Energy consolidated group for any
period during which we were included in the Waleiergy consolidated group.

A dispute exists with regard to federal income safce years 1980 to 1994 and 1999 to 2001 allegedlyd by the Walter Energy consolidated
group, which included U.S. Pipe during these pexidd a matter of law, we are jointly and severkdliple for any final tax determination, which
means that in the event Walter Energy is unabfmoany amounts owed, we would be liable.

The tax allocation agreement between us and Waleergy allocates to us certain tax risks associateith the Spin-off.

Walter Energy effectively controlled all of our tdecisions for periods during which we were a menalb¢he Walter Energy consolidated
federal income tax group and certain combined, @afeted or unitary state and local income tax geownder the terms of the income tax
allocation agreement between us and Walter EneatgddMay 26, 2006, we generally compute our tailitg on a stand-alone basis, but Walter
Energy has sole authority to respond to and coralltzix proceedings (including tax audits) relgttn our federal income and combined state
returns, to file all such returns on our behalf &mdetermine the amount of our liability to (otidament to payment from) Walter Energy for such
periods. This arrangement may result in confli¢tsterests between us and Walter Energy. In asigitihe tax allocation agreement provides th
the Spin-off is determined not to be tax-free parguo Section 355 of the Internal Revenue CodEd86, as
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amended, we generally will be responsible for @axgs$ incurred by Walter Energy or its shareholdexsch taxes result from certain of our actions
or omissions and for a percentage of any such tiweesre not a result of our actions or omissmmd/alter Energy’s actions or omissions or taxes
based on our market value relative to Walter Erisryyarket value. Additionally, to the extent thaalfér Energy was unable to pay taxes, if any,
attributable to the Spin-off and for which it ispensible under our tax allocation agreement, widdoe liable for those taxes as a result of baing
member of the Walter Energy consolidated fedei@nime tax group for the year in which the Spin-affarred. Walter Energy’s income tax returns
for the year in which the Spin-off occurred ard sfpen for federal examination.

Item 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal properties are listed below.

Size Owned or
Location Activity (sq. ft.) leased
Mueller Co.:
Albertville, AL Manufacturing 422,00( Leasec
Aurora, IL Manufacturing and distribution 230,00( Owned
Decatur, IL Manufacturing 467,00( Owned
Hammond, IN Manufacturing 51,00( Owned
Cleveland, NC Manufacturing 190,00( Owned
Chattanooga, TN Manufacturing and research and development 547,00( Owned
Cleveland, TN Manufacturing 40,00( Owned
Brownsville, TX Manufacturing 108,00( Leasec
Barrie, Ontario Distribution 50,00( Leasec
St. Jerome, Quebec Manufacturing 55,00( Owned
Jingmen, China Manufacturing 154,00( Owned
Anvil:
Ontario, CA Distribution 73,00( Leasec
University Park, IL Distribution 192,00( Leasec
Bloomington, MN Distribution 105,00( Owned
Columbia, PA Manufacturing and distribution 663,00( Owned
Greencastle, PA Manufacturing 133,00( Owned
Waynesboro, PA Manufacturing 73,00( Owned
North Kingstown, RI Manufacturing and research and development 167,00( Leasec
Henderson, TN Manufacturing 180,00( Owned
Houston, TX Manufacturing and distribution 105,00( Owned
Irving, TX Distribution 218,00 Leasec
Longview, TX Manufacturing 114,00( Owned
Simcoe, Ontario Distribution 126,00( Owned
Corporate:
Atlanta, GA Corporate headquarters 25,00( Leasec

We consider our facilities to be well maintained &elieve we have sufficient capacity to meet auicgpated needs through 2013 . Our leased

properties have terms expiring at various datesutjin August 2019 .
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Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are involved in various legal proceedings tlaateharisen in the normal course of operationsydinh the proceedings summarized below.
The effect of the outcome of these matters on wiré results of operations cannot be predictel egttainty as any such effect depends on future
results of operations and the amount and timinth@fesolution of such matters. Other than thgdtton described below, we do not believe that
any of our outstanding litigation would have a mialeadverse effect on our business or prospects.

EnvironmentalWe are subject to a wide variety of laws and reipria concerning the protection of the environmbnth with respect to the
operations at many of our properties and with ressfgeremediating environmental conditions that regigt at our own or other properties. We
strive to comply with federal, state and local eonimental laws and regulations. We accrue for emvirental expenses resulting from existing
conditions that relate to past operations wherctists are probable and reasonably estimable. Exgsmses were $1.7 million, $1.3 million and
$1.3 million during 2012, 2011 and 2010, respedyivd/e capitalize environmental expenditures thatéase the life or efficiency of long-term
assets or that reduce or prevent environmentaboungtion. Capital expenditures for environmenggjuirements are anticipated to be
approximately $1 million during 2013. Capitalizesv@onmental-related expenditures were $0.7 mi|l&®.5 million and $0.5 million during 2012,
2011 and 2010, respectively.

In the acquisition agreement pursuant to whicheal@cessor to Tyco sold our Mueller Co. and Anvdlibesses to the prior owners of these
businesses in August 1999, Tyco agreed to indenusifgnd our affiliates, among other things, forakcluded Liabilities.” Excluded Liabilities
include, among other things, substantially allilitibs relating to the time prior to August 1998¢luding environmental liabilities. The indemnity
survives indefinitely. Tyco's indemnity does novepliabilities to the extent caused by us or theration of our businesses after August 1999, nor
does it cover liabilities arising with respect tesmesses or sites acquired after August 199931067, Tyco has engaged in multiple corporate
restructurings, split-offs and divestitures. Whiltne of these transactions directly affects thenmagification obligations of the Tyco Indemnitors
under the 1999 acquisition agreement, the resudticli transactions is that the assets of, andai@mer, such Tyco Indemnitors has changed.
Should any of these Tyco Indemnitors become firalycunable or fail to comply with the terms of timelemnity, we may be responsible for such
obligations or liabilities.

In September 1987, we implemented an Administrafiwasent Order (“ACO”) for our Burlington, New Jeysproperty, which was required
under the New Jersey Environmental Cleanup RedpitifysAct (now known as the Industrial Site Recoyéct). The ACO required soil and
ground-water cleanup, and we completed, and reddinal approval on, the soil cleanup required iy ACO. We retained this property related to
the sale of our former U.S. Pipe segment. We exgrectnd-water issues as well as issues associatiedhs demolition of former manufacturing
facilities at this site will continue and remedasttiby us could be required. Long-term ground-watenitoring may also be required, but we do not
know how long such monitoring would be required dochot believe monitoring or further remediatiasts, if any, will have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition or results of cgt@ons.

On July 13, 2010, Rohcan Investments Limited (“Roti}, the former owner of property leased by Mue@anada Ltd. and located in Milton,
Ontario, filed suit against Mueller Canada Ltd. @sdlirectors seeking C$10 million in damagesiagisrom the defendants' alleged environmental
contamination of the property and breach of lelgeeller Canada Ltd. leased the property from 1988ugh 2008. We are pursuing
indemnification from a former owner for certain @oftial liabilities that are alleged in this lawsaihd we have accrued for other liabilities not
covered by indemnification. On December 7, 20té&,Gourt denied the plaintiff's motion for summpggment.

Other MattersWe are party to a number of other lawsuits ariginpe ordinary course of business, including patdiability cases for
products manufactured by us or third parties. Wwige for costs relating to these matters whersa i® probable and the amount is reasonably
estimable. Administrative costs related to thesttarmare expensed as incurred. The effect of t@me of these matters on our future results of
operations cannot be predicted with certainty gssaich effect depends on future results of operatamd the amount and timing of the resolution
of such matters. While the results of litigatiomeat be predicted with certainty, we believe tihatfinal outcome of such other litigation is not
likely to have a materially adverse effect on ousibess or prospects.
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PART II

Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOC KHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is listed on the New York Stocklange under the trading symbol MWA.

Covenants contained in certain of the debt instrnumeeferred to in Note 7 to the consolidated foialnstatements restrict the amount we can
pay in cash dividends. Future dividends will beldesd at the discretion of our board of directard will depend on our future earnings, financial
condition and other factors.

The range of high and low intraday sales pricesunfcommon stock and the dividends declared paeshgresented below.

Dividends
High Low per share

2012:

4th quarter $ 49: % 332 % 0.017¢

3rd quarter 4.0¢€ 3.12 0.017¢

2nd quarter 3.57 2.4 0.017¢

1st quarter 3.1¢ 1.9¢ 0.017¢
2011:

4th quarter $ 4.0¢ $ 1.9 % 0.017¢

3rd quarter 4.8(C 3.4¢ 0.017¢

2nd quarter 4,72 3.61 0.017¢

1st quarter 4.4% 2.8( 0.017¢

At September 30, 2012 , there were 132 stockholafarscord for our common stock.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The information regarding our compensation plardeanvhich equity securities are authorized forasge is set forth inltem 12. SECURITY
OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMET AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.”

Sale of Unregistered Securities
We did not issue any unregistered securities witénpast three years.
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
We did not repurchase shares of our common stottleiguarter ended September 30, 2012 .
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Stock Price Performance Graph

The following graph compares the cumulative quirteiock market performance of our common stocklie Russell 2000 Stock Index
(“Russell 2000") and the Dow Jones U.S. Buildingtéfials & Fixtures Index (“DJ Building Materials Bixtures”) since September 30, 2007.

Total return values were calculated based on cuialgotal return assuming (i) the investment 08®1n our common stock, the Russell 2000
and the DJ Building Materials & Fixtures on theadaindicated and (ii) reinvestment of all dividends

Comparison of Cumulative Total Return
Assumes Initial Investment of $100
Total Return since September 30, 2007
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Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The selected financial and other data presentedvahould be read in conjunction with, and are ifjedl by reference to, “Item 7.
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL ©ONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS” and the constated
financial statements and notes thereto includesiviere in this annual report.

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

(in millions, except per share data)
Statement of operations data:

Net sales $ 1,023¢ % 964.¢ $ 959.7 $ 1,017.C % 1,313.¢
Cost of sales 752.¢ 716.5 700.€ 754.4 918.1
Gross profit 271.] 248.1 259.1 262.€ 395.2
Selling, general and administrative expense¢ 204.2 191.¢ 188.¢ 203.t 231.%
Restructuring 2.8 3.€ 0.€ 6.2 —
Impairment® — — — 911. —
Interest expense, net 59.¢ 65.€ 68.C 78.4 72.%
Loss on early extinguishment of debt, net 1.5 — 4.€ 3.8 =
Income (loss) before income taxes 2.7 (12.9 (2.9 (940.7) 91.2
Income tax expense (benefit) 7.8 2.9 2.5 (53.5) 38.C
Income (loss) from continuing operations (5.2 (10.0 (5.4 (887.9) 53.2
Discontinued operatior8 (103.79) (28.1) (39.9 (109.5 (11.2
Net income (loss) $ (108.9) $ (38.) $ 452 $ (996.7) $ 42.C
Net income (loss) per basic share:
Continuing operations $ 0.09 $ 0.07) $ 0.09 $ (760 $ 0.4¢€
Discontinued operations (0.66) (0.1¢) (0.2¢) (0.99) (0.10
Net income (loss) $ 0.69 $ 0.25) % 0.29 $ (8.55) % 0.3¢
Net income (loss) per diluted share:
Continuing operations $ 0.09 $ 0.07) $ 0.0 $ (760 $ 0.4¢€
Discontinued operations (0.6€) (0.1¢) (0.26) (0.99 (0.10
Net income (loss) $ 069 $ 0.2 $ 0.29 $ (855 $ 0.3€
Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic 156.5 155.2 154.: 116.¢ 115.1
Diluted 156.5 155.: 154.: 116.¢ 1155
Balance sheet data (at September 30):
Cash and cash equivalents $ 83.C $ 61.C $ 84.C $ 616 $ 185.¢
Working capital 321t 404.( 4527 525.% 755.€
Property, plant and equipment, net 144.7 145.7 157.C 178.¢ 193.¢
Assets held for sale — 249.7 260.( 281.2 465.¢
Total assets 1,240.¢ 1,485.( 1,568.: 1,739. 3,090.:
Total debt 622.¢ 678.2 692.2 740.2 1,095.t
Long-term liabilities 841.: 911.c 979. 1,082.( 1,466.¢
Liabilities held for sale — 56.¢ 41.1 55.4 11
Total liabilities 1,009." 1,106.( 1,162.¢ 1,303.: 1,761.¢
Stockholders’ equity 231.2 379.( 405.¢ 436.% 1,328.¢
Other data (year ended September 30):
Depreciation and amortizatiéh 60.€ 63.1 65.€ 69.C 70.4
Capital expenditured 31.4 23.1 21.€ 28.t 29.€
Cash dividends declared per share 0.07 0.07 0.07 0.07 0.07

(1) In 2009, goodwill was determined to be fully inmeai resulting in charges of $717.3 million for MeelCo., and $92.7 million for Anvil. Mueller Co.'s
trademarks and trade names were determined torbellgampaired resulting in a charge of $101.4lion .

(2) In 2012, we sold our former U.S. Pipe segmirt. Pipe's results of operations have been filxsas discontinued operations and its assetdiailities
reclassified as held for sale for all periods pnése.



(3) Excludes discontinued operatic
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT’ S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjigrctvith the consolidated financial statements aotds thereto that appear elsewhere in this
annual report.

Overview
Organization

On October 3, 2005, Walter Energy acquired alltaniding shares of capital stock representing thellduCo. and Anvil businesses and
contributed them to its U.S. Pipe business to flvenCompany. In June 2006, we completed an imptidlic offering of 28,750,000 shares of
Series A common stock and in December 2006, WEhergy distributed to its shareholders all of gsigy interests in the Company, consisting of
all of the Company's outstanding shares of SeriesrBmon stock. On January 28, 2009, each sharer@s3 common stock was converted into
one share of Series A common stock and the Serss#gnation was discontinued.

The businesses comprising our former U.S. Pipe sagmere sold effective April 1, 2012.

Unless the context indicates otherwise, wheneverefer to a particular year, we mean the fiscal yealed or ending September 30 in that
particular calendar year. We manage our businessegort operations through two business segmbhitsller Co. and Anvil, based largely on the
products sold and the customers served.

Business

Overall, we think the signs we are seeing in oulewenarkets are mostly positive, giving us moreficemce that our markets have stabilized
and we could see some continued growth.

Most of the net sales of Mueller Co. are for mypatior residential construction water infrastruetprojects in the United States.

Spending on water infrastructure is based on thelition of the infrastructure systems and acceg$srtding from existing resources, the
issuance of debt, higher tax rates or higher watess. Water authorities may find it challengingrtcrease tax or water rates. We believe the gé
municipal spending environment continues to renstable although budget pressures and economictairggrpersist. According to U.S. Census
Bureau data at September 30, 2012 , state andtiocedceipts grew at over 3% year-over-year ferfifth consecutive quarter. While both are
showing improving trends, local tax receipt impnment is weaker than improvement in state tax réseip

We believe residential construction activity meastindicate the housing market may be stabilizih§. Census Bureau data for housing s
on a seasonally adjusted annualized basis, indithét housing starts in September 2012 represémauinth consecutive month of greater than
700,000 units. September 2012 housing permit agtivas above 800,000 units for the first time siBeptember 2008. Furthermore, September
2012 single family housing starts were above 50D 0tits for the sixth consecutive month and the, @03 units reported was the highest since
August 2000.

As another potential future indicator, U.S. CerBugeau data shows housing permits in September 2@12 close to 900,000 seasonally
adjusted annualized units and represented the stigghe| since July 2008. Total permits in Septem@®d.2 grew by 45%, while single family
permits reached their highest level since July 28@8grew 27% on a year-over-year basis.

We believe an improving housing market would algtster municipalities' fiscal condition, since Ibgavernments benefit from increased
property taxes as well as connection and othetlancfees associated with residential construction

Most of Anvil's net sales are driven by commercimbstruction, which we expect to be essentialliligh the possibility of higher spending in
some segments in 2013 . We also believe spenditiginil & gas market will increase in the secoatf bf 2013 .

Hurricane Sandy inflicted significant damage in tlegtheastern United States, particularly upon mgkandfall on October 29, 2012. The
operations at our facilities in North Kingstown,drle Island and Columbia, Greencastle and WaynesBermsylvania were temporarily
interrupted by the effects of the hurricane. toig early to quantify any potential impact, whetferorable or unfavorable, Hurricane Sandy may
have on our results.
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There continues to be growing concerns about thengial impact of the “fiscal cliff” arising fromhe combination of tax increases and
automatic spending cuts scheduled to take effetieatnd of calendar 2012 and in early calendaB 201the United States. A failure by Congress
to act to avert or delay these tax increases agddiipg cuts could negatively affect the overallremay and our primary end markets. In particular,
these changes could increase the level of uncgrtamong our customers and end users, which c@uldecthem to delay or cancel purchases ¢
products and services.

Our U.S. pension plan was 103% funded at Janua2Q112 under the provisions of the PPA. This reflee revised governmental guidance of
Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century (“MAP'). The total market value of our U.S. pensidanpassets was $375.8 million and $321.1
million at September 30, 2012 and 2011 , respdgtiduring 2012 , the investment performance obthassets was a gain of $57.3 million and we
contributed $21.3 million to this plan. As a resflthe MAP-21 changes, we do not expect to makecantributions to our U.S. pension plan
during 2013. For financial reporting purposes, pemsion plan obligations were 86% funded at Septer@0®, 2012. If we lower our estimated rate
of return on pension plan assets, pension expeatsesguired contributions to these plans may irsgea

Results of Operations
Year Ended September 30, 2012 Compared to YeadBejgember 30, 2011

Year ended September 30, 2012

Mueller Co. Anvil Corporate Total
(in millions)

Net sales $ 652.. $ 371 % — 3 1,023.¢

Gross profit $ 162.6 % 108.2 % — % 271.1
Operating expenses:

Selling, general and administrative 102.¢ 70.7% 30.¢ 204.2

Restructuring 2.t 0.3 — 2.8

105.1 71.C 30.¢ 207.(

Operating income (loss) $ 577 % 37.2 % (30.9 64.1

Interest expense, net 59.¢

Loss on early extinguishment of debt 1kt

Loss before income taxes 2.7

Income tax expense 7.8

Loss from continuing operations (5.2

Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax (103.2)

Net loss $ (108.9

Year ended September 30, 2011
Mueller Co. Anvil Corporate Total
(in millions)

Net sales 605.8 $ 359.1 $ — 964.¢

Gross profit 147.C $ 1011 $ — 248.1
Operating expenses:

Selling, general and administrative 91.¢ 68.1 31.¢ 191.¢

Restructuring 1.4 1.2 1.C 3.6

93.2 69.2 32.¢ 195.¢

Operating income (loss) 53.t $ 31 % (32.9 52.7

Interest expense, net 65.€

Loss before income taxes (22.9

Income tax benefit (2.9

Loss from continuing operations (20.0

Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax (28.])

Net income (loss) (38.)
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Consolidated Analysis

Net sales for 2012 increased to $1,023.9 milli@mfi$964.6 million in 2011 . Net sales increased.§illion due to higher shipment
volumes and $27.1 million due to higher pricing.

Gross profit for 2012 increased to $271.1 milliooni $248.1 million in 2011 . Gross profit increagetarily due to $27.1 million in higher
sales prices and manufacturing cost savings, parifiset by increased raw material costs. Grossgim was 26.5% in 2012 and 25.7% in 2011.

Selling, general and administrative expenses ir220dreased to $204.2 million from $191.8 milliand011 . As a percentage of net sales,
selling, general and administrative expenses wa394 $ each year.

Interest expense, net was $59.9 million in 2012 maned to $65.6 million in the prior year period €ldomponents of interest expense, net are
detailed below.

2012 2011

(in millions)
7.375% Senior Subordinated Notes $ 31.C $ 31.C
8.75% Senior Unsecured Notes 19.2 20.C
Interest rate swap contracts 5.C 8.C
ABL Agreement borrowings 1.1 1.¢
Deferred financing fees amortization 2.3 2.3
Other interest expense 1kt 2.7
60.2 65.¢
Interest income 0.9 0.3
$ 59.¢ $ 65.€

Interest expense included expenses related tortated interest rate swap contracts. The lossesese itontracts were initially recorded in
other comprehensive loss and were being amortzéddrest expense over the original lives of thayscontracts. At September 30, 2012 , all
deferred swap contract expenses were fully receghilnterest expense excluding the effects ofriterést rate swap contracts decreased by $2.7
million primarily due to reduced borrowing levels.

Income tax expense for 2012 includes $5.9 milligpemse related to a valuation allowance providedefarred tax assets existing at the
beginning of the year. In 2012 and 2011 , the raingiother differences between income tax expendeale amount expected using the U.S.
federal statutory rate of 35% relate primarily tats taxes and non-deductible compensation.

Segment Analysis
Mueller Co.
Net sales in 2012 increased to $652.4 million f&805.5 million in 2011 primarily due to increasédpsnent volumes.

Gross profit in 2012 increased to $162.8 milliconfr$147.0 million in 201 primarily due to manufacturing and other cost sgsjrhigher sale
prices and higher shipment volumes, partially dffsehigher raw material costs. Gross margin ineeeao 25.0% in 2012 compared to 24.3% in
2011 primarily due to lower manufacturing costs.

Excluding restructuring charges, operating incom20d12 was $60.2 million compared to $55.2 milier2011. This increase was primarily
due to increased gross profit of $15.8 million jadist offset by higher selling, general and admirsisve expenses of $10.8 million. Expenses
associated with the development of our newer telogiygproducts co ntributed to the higher sellingngral and administrative expenses.

Anvil

Net sales in 2012 increased to $371.5 million f&869.1 million in 2011 due to higher pricing paitiaffset by a decline in shipment
volumes.

Gross profit in 2012 increased to $108.3 milliconfir$101.1 million in 2011 due primarily to highedes prices, which were partially offset by
higher raw material costs. Gross margin was 2922912 compared to 28.2% in 201Gross margin improved primarily as a result gitar sale:
prices.
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Excluding restructuring charges, operating incom20d12 increased to $37.6 million from $33.0 millia 2011, driven primarily by the
increased gross profit. As a percentage of nessaddling, general and administrative expensesl®#¥% in each year.

Corporate

Selling, general and administrative expenses dsecke $30.9 million in 2012 from $31.9 million2011 primarily due to lower employee-
related costs.

Year Ended September 30, 2011 Compared to YeadEejgtember 30, 2010

Year ended September 30, 2011

Mueller Co. Anvil Corporate Total
(in millions)

Net sales $ 605.5 $ 359.1 $ — 3 964.¢

Gross profit $ 147.C $ 1011 % — 3 248.]
Operating expenses:

Selling, general and administrative 91.¢ 68.1 31.¢ 191.¢

Restructuring 1.4 1.2 1.C 3.6

93.2 69.2 32.¢ 195.¢

Operating income (loss) $ 53.¢ $ 31 $ (32.9 52.7

Interest expense, net 65.€

Loss before income taxes (12.9

Income tax benefit (2.9)

Loss from continuing operations (10.0

Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax (28.])

Net loss $ (38.0)

Year ended September 30, 2010
Mueller Co. Anvil Corporate Total
(in millions)

Net sales $ 612.¢ $ 346.¢ $ — 3 959.7

Gross profit $ 170.5  $ 88.6 $ — 3 259.1
Operating expenses:

Selling, general and administrative 89.2 66.2 33.4 188.¢

Restructuring 0.1 0.t — 0.€

89.2 66.7 33.4 189.¢

Operating income (loss) $ 81.C $ 221 % (33.9 69.7

Interest expense, net 68.(

Loss on early extinguishment of debt, net 4.€

Loss before income taxes 2.9

Income tax expense 2.5

Loss from continuing operations (5.9

Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax (39.9)

Net loss $ (45.2)

Consolidated Analysis

Net sales for 2011 increased to $964.6 million fig989.7 million in 2010 . Net sales increased @3fillion after excluding the net sales of
two businesses Anvil divested in 2010 for $25.1lionil Net sales increased $30.6 million due to bigricing across both business segments and
$5.2 million of favorable Canadian currency excteangtes offset by $5.8 million of lower shipmenturoes.

Gross profit for 2011 decreased to $248.1 milliammf $259.1 million in 2010 . Gross profit decrea$2d.1 million due to higher raw material
costs, $6.4 million due to higher manufacturingtsp$6.2 million due to lower shipment volumes &bcb million due to the loss of gross profit
from the divested Anvil businesses. These factaewnostly offset by $30.6
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million of higher sales pricing. Gross margin w&s726 in 2011 and 27.0% in 2010 . The biggest coutoir to lower gross margin in 2011 was
higher raw material costs.

Selling, general and administrative expenses irl 20dreased to $191.8 million from $188.8 milliand010 . Mueller Co. increased $2.6
million, Anvil increased $1.9 million and Corporatecreased $1.5 million.

Interest expense, net was $65.6 million in 2011 manad to $68.0 million in the prior year period €ldomponents of interest expense, net are
detailed below.

2011 2010

(in millions)
7.375% Senior Subordinated Notes $ 31.C % 31.C
8.75% Senior Unsecured Notes 20.C 2.C
2007 Credit Agreement, including swap contracts 8.C 28.¢
ABL Agreement borrowings 1.¢ 0.2
Deferred financing fees amortization 2.3 2.¢
Other interest expense 2.7 3.4
65.¢ 68.3
Interest income (0.9 (0.9
$ 65.6 $ 68.C

Interest expense in both 2011 and 2010 includeéxpnses of $8.0 million related to terminatedrigst rate swap contracts. The losses on
these swap contracts were initially recorded ireptomprehensive loss and amortized to interestresgoover the original lives of the swap
contracts. Interest expense decreased by $2.4mplimarily due to a lower effective interest rate

Loss on early extinguishment of debt in 2010 repméswriting off deferred financing fees pursuantiébt prepayments.

In 2011 and 2010the differences between income tax benefit (egpgreported and those expected using the U.Sadlestatutory rate of 35
related primarily to state income taxes and nonidehble compensation as well as a $2.2 million exggerelated to the repatriation of earnings from
Canada for 2010 . After the divestiture of a Caaadiusiness early in 2010 , we determined the Gamagerations no longer needed
approximately $21 million of cash, which we repattd.

Segment Analysis
Mueller Co.

Net sales in 2011 decreased to $605.5 million f§&h2.8 million in 2010 . Net sales decreased d#3@8 million of lower shipment
volumes, partially offset by $18.9 million of highgricing and $4.6 million of favorable Canadianremcy exchange rates.

Gross profit in 2011 decreased to $147.0 milliamfr$170.3 million in 2010 . Gross profit decrea$&d.1 million due to higher raw material
costs, $13.7 million due to higher net manufacidosts and $12.2 million due to lower shipmentaws. Higher net manufacturing costs
consisted primarily of generally comparable fixedts allocated over lower production levels in 20%hich were offset by certain manufacturing
and other cost savings. These factors were pgroéfiet primarily by $18.9 million of higher salpsicing. Gross margin decreased to 24.3% in
2011 compared to 27.8% in 2010 . Gross margin dseceprimarily due to higher manufacturing costs.

Excluding restructuring charges, operating incom20d11 was $55.2 million compared to $81.1 milier2010. This decrease was primarily
due to decreased gross profit of $23.3 million higther selling, general and administrative expe$&?.6 million. Expenses associated with the
development of our newer technology products cbuted to the higher selling, general and admirtisgaxpenses.

Anvil

Net sales in 2011 increased to $359.1 million f&846.9 million in 2010 . Net sales increased $37ilBon excluding net sales of $25.1
million of two divested businesses in 2010 . Né&¢sancreased $25.0 million due to higher shipnwehimes and $11.7 million due to higher
pricing.

Gross profit in 2011 increased to $101.1 milliconfr$88.8 million in 2010 . Gross profit increasdd ¥ million due to
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higher sales pricing, $7.3 million from manufactgriand other cost savings and $6.0 million fromhaigshipment volumes. These factors were
partially offset primarily by $8.0 million of highe&aw material costs and the loss of $5.5 millibigss profit from the divested businesses. Gross
margin was 28.2% in 2011 compared to 25.6% in 2@fss margin improved primarily as a result ohofacturing and other cost savings.

Excluding restructuring charges, operating incom2011 increased to $33.0 million from $22.6 millia 2010 . Selling, general and
administrative expenses in 2010 included $4.4 amlbf gains from the sale of two businesses. Exafuthese gains, operating income increased
$14.8 million due to $12.3 million of higher grqa®fit and $4.4 million of lower selling, generaichadministrative expenses, as a result of
expenses related to the divested businesses adndilion of higher selling, general and adminisira expenses related to ongoing operations due
to higher net sales.

Corporate

Selling, general and administrative expenses dsecetn $31.9 million in 2011 from $33.4 million2010 primarily due to lower employee-
related costs.

Financial Condition

Cash and cash equivalents were $83.0 million ateBaper 30, 2012 compared to $61.0 million at Septa30, 2011 . Cash and cash
equivalents increased during 2012 as a resultsif peovided by operating activities of $76.8 milliand cash provided by discontinued operations
of $44.2 million , partially offset by cash usedresting and financing activities of $32.4 mifiand $68.1 million , respectively. Cash and cash
equivalents also increased $1.5 million during 262 to changes in currency exchange rates.

Receivables, net were $166.1 million at SeptemBeB312 compared to $147.4 million million at Sepber 30, 2011 . Receivables at
September 30, 2012 represented approximately 288kt sales compared to September 30, 2011 abteswepresenting approximately 52.4
days net sales.

Inventories were $183.2 million at September 3Q,2€ompared to $175.9 million at September 30, 20/& continue improving our
processes to minimize inventory levels. Inventoiyns per year at September 30, 2012 were 4.2 x am@do 3.8 x at September 30, 2011 .

Property, plant and equipment, net was $144.7 aniltit September 30, 2012 compared to $145.7 métideptember 30, 2011 . Capital
expenditures were $31.4 million and depreciatigmemse was $31.2 million in 2012 .

Identifiable intangible assets were $573.7 milladrSeptember 30, 2012 compared to $602.4 milli@®egatember 30, 2011 . Finite-lived
intangible assets, $274.0 million of net book vat&eptember 30, 2012re amortized over their estimated useful li8&h amortization exper
was $29.4 million during 2012 and is expected tbé&sveen $20 million and $30 million for each of thext five years. Indefinite-lived identifiable
intangible assets, $299.7 million at Septembe28Q2 , are not amortized, but tested at least dlyrfoa possible impairment.

Accounts payable and other current liabilities wit67.3 million at September 30, 2012 comparedl&® million at September 30, 2011 .
Increased payables relate primarily to increasedhasing activity in the 2012 fourth quarter congoho the 2011 fourth quarter.

Outstanding borrowings were $622.8 million at Seyter 30, 2012 compared to $678.3 million at Septer8b, 2011 . The decrease of $55.5
million during 2012 represents repayments of $3dillon of borrowings under our asset based len@igegeement (the “ABL Agreement”) and
early retirement of $22.5 million in principal ofi08.75% Senior Unsecured Notes.

Deferred income taxes were net liabilities of $.21rBillion at September 30, 2012 compared to iailities of $ 125.5 million at
September 30, 2011 . Deferred tax assets decrbgski#t.0 million, which was primarily related to increased valuatdiowances against state .
federal net operating losses partially offset byinereases relating to various other items. Defétex liabilities related to property, plant and
equipment and identifiable intangible assets w238 million and $ 238.6 million at September 3012 and 2011 , respectively. The sale of our
former U.S. Pipe segment was the most significamedof these deferred tax changes.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

We had cash and cash equivalents of $83.0 milith$140.5 million of additional borrowing capacitgder our ABL Agreement at
September 30, 2012 .

Cash flows from operating activities are categatizelow.

2012 2011
(in millions)
Collections from customers $ 1,005.. $ 951.(
Disbursements, other than interest and income taxes (882.2) (839.5)
Interest payments, net (53.9) (54.9)
Income tax refunds (payments), net 6.S (4.€)
Cash provided by operating activities $ 76.¢ % 52.1

Collections of receivables were higher during 26@thpared to 2011 due primarily to higher net sale)12 .
Increased disbursements, other than interest aotnia taxes, during 2012 reflect timing differencématerial, labor and overhead purchased.

We sold our former U.S. Pipe segment on April 1,20Ne believe there are purchase price adjustrmelated to net working capital and net
indebtedness that would increase our cash prodse$i8.2 million . However, the purchaser has claimerchase price adjustments related to net
working capital and net indebtedness that wouldicecbur cash proceeds by $4.8 million . This dispuitl be resolved by an independent auditor
who has been selected by the parties, and we carala a reliable estimate of what the resolutioy b® The resolution of the purchase price
adjustments dispute will likely result in a cashtleenent within the range described above and @rstident to our recorded loss on sale of
discontinued operations.

Capital expenditures were $31.4 million during 2@btpared to $23.1 million during 2011 . We estar2@13 capital expenditures to be
between $30 million and $34 million . In 2011, MeelCo. acquired Echologics, a water leak detecioth pipe condition and diagnostic
assessment company, for $7.4 million .

Our U.S. pension plan was 103% funded at Janua2@112 under the provisions of the PPA. This reflee revised governmental guidance of
MAP-21. During 2012 , the investment performancéheke assets was a gain of $57.3 million and w&riboted $21.3 million to this plan. As a
result of our MAP-21 changes, we do not expectaxgrany contributions to our U.S. pension planrdug013 . If we lower our estimated rate of
return on pension plan assets, pension expenseeguited contributions to these plans may increase.

We anticipate that our existing cash, cash equitalend borrowing capacity combined with our expeaperating cash flows will be
sufficient to meet our anticipated operating expsnsapital expenditures and debt service obligatas they become due through September 30,
2013 . However, our ability to make these paymuaiiitsiepend partly upon our future operating pemfance, which will be affected by general
economic, financial, competitive, legislative, reajary, business and other factors beyond our obntr

ABL Agreement

The ABL Agreement consists of a revolving creddility of up to $275 million of revolving credit bmowings, swing line loans and letters of
credit. The ABL Agreement also permits us to inseetne size of the credit facility by an additiofiab0 million . We may borrow up to $25
million through swing line loans and have up to $@iion of letters of credit outstanding.

Borrowings under the ABL Agreement bear interest Hibating rate equal to LIBOR plus a margin rawggirom 275 to 325 basis points, or a
base rate as defined in the ABL Agreement plus myimaanging from 175 to 225 basis points. At Sefter 30, 2012 , the applicable rate was
LIBOR plus 300 basis points.

The ABL Agreement terminates in August 2015 anchag no outstanding borrowings at September 30, 201& pay a commitment fee 50
basis points for any unused borrowing capacity uitte ABL Agreement. The borrowing capacity under ABL Agreement is not subject to any
financial maintenance covenants unless excessahiliy is less than the greater of $34 million arti5% of the aggregate commitments under the
ABL Agreement. Excess availability, as reduced btstanding borrowings, outstanding letters of dradd accrued fees and expenses of $37.8
million , was $140.5 million based on September2,2 data.
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The ABL Agreement is subject to mandatory prepaym#notal outstanding borrowings under the ABLrAgment are greater than the
aggregate commitments under the revolving credititiaor if we dispose of overdue accounts recblean certain circumstances. The borrowing
base under the ABL Agreement is equal to the suta)d5% of the value of eligible accounts receligamd (b) the lesser of (i) 65% of the valu
eligible inventory or (ii) 85% of the net orderigulidation value of the value of eligible inventplgss certain reserves. Prepayments can be made
any time with no penalty.

Substantially all of our U.S. subsidiaries are baers under the ABL Agreement and are jointly aexksally liable for any outstanding
borrowings. Our obligations under the ABL Agreemar& secured by a firgriority perfected lien on all of our U.S. invengpaccounts receivabl
certain cash and other supporting obligations.

The ABL Agreement contains customary negative cam&nand restrictions on our ability to engagepecsfied activities, such as:
» limitations on other debt, liens, investments andrgntee:
» restrictions on dividends and redemptions of opitehstock and prepayments and redemptions of, deic

» restrictions on mergers and acquisition, salesséts and transaction with affiliat
8.75% Senior Unsecured Notes

We owed $202.5 million of principal of 8.75% Senidmsecured Notes at September 30, 2012 . IntenetbteoSenior Unsecured Notes is paid
semi-annually and the principal is due Septemb202®/e may redeem up to $22.5 million of the Sebinsecured Notes at a redemption price of
103% plus accrued and unpaid interest once in¢he gnding September 1, 2013. We may also reded¢m$6.3 million of the original issued
principal amount of the Senior Unsecured Notesratlamption price of 108.75%plus accrued and unpaid interest, with the ne geoceeds frol
certain equity offerings prior to September 2018yjaled that at least $146.2 million remains outdiag immediately after such redemption. After
August 2015, the Senior Unsecured Notes may benede at specified redemption prices plus accruddiapaid interest. Upon a “Change of
Control” (as defined in the indenture securing $tamior Unsecured Notes), we are required to off@urchase the outstanding Senior Unsecured
Notes at a purchase pricel01% , plus accrued and unpaid interest. The Séhisecured Notes are essentially guaranteed lof alir U.S.
subsidiaries, but are subordinate to borrowingsutite ABL Agreement.

7.375% Senior Subordinated Notes

We also owed $420 million of principal of 7.375%n&e Subordinated Notes (“Senior Subordinated Np&sSeptember 30, 2012 . Interest
on the Senior Subordinated Notes is payable semially and the principal is due June 2017. We neglgem any portion of the Senior
Subordinated Notes at specified redemption prites gccrued and unpaid interest, subject to reistnis in the Senior Unsecured Notes. Upon a
“Change of Control” (as defined in the indenturewseng the Senior Subordinated Notes), we are redub offer to purchase the outstanding
Senior Subordinated Notes at 101fus accrued and unpaid interest. The Senior Girmted Notes are secured by the guarantees exftesby all
of our U.S. subsidiaries, but are subordinate ¢édditrrowings under the ABL Agreement and the Sedimsecured Notes.

Our corporate credit rating and the credit ratimgdur debt are presented below.

September 30, 2012 September 30, 2011
Standard & Standard &
Moody's Poor’s Moody’s Poor’s
Corporate credit rating B3 B B3 B
ABL Agreement Not rated Not rated Not rated Not rated
8.75% Senior Unsecured Notes B2 B+ B2 B+
7.375% Senior Subordinated Notes Caa2 CCC+ Caa2 CCC+
Outlook Positive Stable Stable Stable

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any relationships with unconsolda&tetities or financial partnerships, such as iestibften referred to as structured finance or
special purpose entities, which would have beestbéished for the purpose of facilitating off-balargheet arrangements or other contractually
narrow or limited purposes. In addition, we do hate any undisclosed borrowings or debt or anyedtvie contracts other than those described in
“ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosurbdut Market Risk” or synthetic leases. Therefore,are not exposed to any financing, liquidity,
market or credit risk that could
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have arisen had we engaged in such relationships.

We use letters of credit and surety bonds in tinary course of business to ensure the performahcentractual obligations. At
September 30, 2012 , we had $37.6 million of lsttércredit and $43.7 million of surety bonds cautsting.

Contractual Obligations

Our contractual obligations at September 30, 20&2eesented below.

Less than 1-3 4-5 After
1 year years years 5 years Total
(in millions)

Long-term debt:
Principal payment& $ 11 3% 1€ $ 4202 % 202f % 625.¢
Interest 48.¢ 97.7 97.t 53.2 297.:
Operating leases 6.€ 9.8 6.4 2.2 25.C
Ur(lzr):ondmonal purchase obligation 592 01 . . 59.
Other noncurrent liabilitie® 0.2 0.2 0.2 0.5 1.2
$ 116.C $ 109t ¢ 524.: $ 258.2 % 1,008.:

(1) The long-term debt balance at September 32 Bnet of $2.6 milliof unamortized discount on the 8.75% Senior Unsstilotes
(2) Includes contractual obligations for purchasesaaf materials and capital expenditu

(3) Consists of obligations for other postretiretngenefits and represents the estimated minimymeats required to meet obligations.
Required pension contributions for 2013 are leas il million. Actual payments may differ. We ha estimated required pension
contributions beyond 2013 .

Effect of Inflation; Seasonality

We experience changing price levels related tohmased components and raw materials. Mueller Caeréqed a 3% decrease in the average
cost per ton of scrap steel and a 5% decrease iavitrage cost of brass ingot purchased in the @hpared to 2011. Anvil experienced a 5%
increase in the average cost per ton of scrap gteehased in 2012 compared to 2011.

We do not believe that changing prices for otherdgohad a material impact on our financial positionesults of operations in 2012 compared
to 2011 .

Our water infrastructure business is dependent gpastruction activity, which is seasonal due ®ithpact of cold weather conditions on
construction. Net sales and operating income haterftally been lowest in the three-month periedding December 31 and March 31 when the
northern United States and all of Canada genefiatly weather conditions that restrict significammigtruction activity. In general, approximately
45% of a fiscal year's net sales occurs in the liaff of the fiscal year with 55% occurring in thecond half of the fiscal year. See “ltem 1A. RISK
FACTORS- Seasonal demand of certain of our produetg adversely affect our financial results. ”

Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accazdamith accounting principles generally acceptethéUnited States requires us to make
estimates and judgments that affect the reportezliate of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenseéselated disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities. These estimates are based upon experiand on various other assumptions that we leet@be reasonable under the circumstances.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. &iesider an accounting estimate to be criticah#rges in the estimate that are reasonably likely
to occur over time or the use of reasonably diffeestimates could have a material impact on mamitial condition or results of operations. We
consider the accounting topics presented belowdoide our critical accounting estimates.
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Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue when delivery of a productdeasirred and there is persuasive evidence ofea satangement, sales prices are fixec
determinable and collectability from the custonieneasonably assured. Sales are recorded netirobésd discounts, returns and rebates.
Discounts, returns and rebates are estimated hgsedcurrent offered sales terms and actual héstbréturn and allowance rates.

Receivables

The estimated allowance for doubtful receivabldsaised upon judgments and estimates of expecteelslesd specific identification of
problem accounts. Significantly weaker than anéitéd industry or economic conditions could imparstemers' ability to pay such that actual
losses may be greater than the amounts providedd this allowance. The periodic evaluation of #sequacy of the allowance for doubtful
receivables is based on an analysis of prior cidle@xperience, specific customer creditworthireasd current economic trends within the
industries served. In circumstances where a spemitomer's inability to meet its financial obtiga is known to us (e.g., bankruptcy filings or
substantial downgrading of credit ratings), we rda specific allowance to reduce the receivablhécamount we reasonably believe will be
collected.

Inventories

We record inventories at the lower of first-insfiout method cost or market value. Inventory @udtides an overhead component that can be
affected by levels of production and actual castsiired. We evaluate the need to record adjustni@ntspairment of inventory at least quarterly.
This evaluation includes such factors as anticgbatage, inventory turnover, inventory levels altidnate product sales value. Inventory that, ir
judgment of management, is obsolete or in excessiohormal usage is writt-down to its estimated market value, if less thamtost. Significant
judgments must be made when establishing the afiogvéor obsolete and excess invent

Income Taxes

We recognize deferred tax liabilities and defetsedassets for the expected future tax consequeri@®nts that have been included in the
financial statements or tax returns. Deferred i@hilities and assets are determined based oniffieeethces between the financial statements an
tax basis of assets and liabilities, using enatzrdates in effect for the years in which theatiéinces are expected to reverse. A valuation
allowance is provided to offset any net deferredassets if, based upon the available evidengenibre likely than not that some or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. If weemerreduce our estimates of future taxable incameecould be required to record additional
valuation allowances against our deferred tax as€rtr tax balances are based on our expectatfdatuce operating performance, tax planning
strategies, interpretation of the tax regulatiamsently enacted and rulings in numerous tax jictszhs.

We only record tax benefits for positions that vedidwve are more likely than not of being sustaineder audit examination based solely on the
technical merits of the associated tax positiore amount of tax benefit recognized for any positlat meets the more likely than not threshold is
the largest amount of the tax benefit that we belie greater than 50% likely of being realized.

Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assebscluding Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

We test goodwill and indefinite-lived intangiblesats for impairment annually (or more frequentlguents or circumstances indicate possible
impairment). We performed this annual impairmestitg at September 1, with the assistance of aatialu specialist, and concluded that our
indefinite-lived intangible assets were not impdiré/e tested the indefinite-lived intangible as$etsmpairment using a “royalty savings method,”
which is a variation of the discounted cash flonttod. This method estimates a fair value by cattwydaan estimated discounted future cash flow
stream from the hypothetical licensing of the iroigg-lived intangible assets. If this estimateit falue exceeds the carrying value, no impairment
is indicated. This analysis is dependent on managésbest estimates of future operating resulistiaa selection of reasonable discount rates and
hypothetical royalty rates. Significantly differgmojected operating results could result in aedéht conclusion regarding impairment. No
impairments would have been indicated for any distoates and hypothetical royalty rates consistétht standard valuation methodologies
considered reasonable by management.

Other long-lived assets, including finite-livedangible assets, are amortized over their respeesitimated useful lives and reviewed for
impairment if events or circumstances indicate jpbssmpairment.

We tested U.S. Pipe's amortizing long-lived asgetacipally property, plant and equipment, for gibte impairment at September 30, 2011
due to U.S. Pipe's thaecent financial performance and the exploratiostiEtegic alternatives for our U.S. Pipe businesge required by GAAF
we performed this test on a “held and used” basisgumanagement's best
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estimate of probability-weighted undiscounted fataash flows of various alternatives. We concluthedl U.S. Pipe's amortizing long-lived assets
were not impaired at September 30, 2011 on a “aettlused” basis. As our efforts to sell U.S. RipEeeeded, we concluded that U.S. Pipe
qualified for treatment as “held for sale” durifgetquarter ended March 31, 2012. Accordingly, wedieated U.S. Pipe's long-lived assets for
impairment and concluded that an impairment wakatdd at that time.

Litigation, Investigations and Claims

We are involved in litigation, investigations ardims arising out of the normal conduct of our bes. We estimate and accrue liabilities
resulting from such matters based on a varietactofrs, including outstanding legal claims and pemgl settlements; assessments by internal
counsel of pending or threatened litigation; arebasments of potential environmental liabilitied ssmediation costs. We believe we have
adequately accrued for these potential liabilittesyever, facts and circumstances may change and cause the actual liability to exceed the
estimates, or may require adjustments to the recblidbility balances in the future.

Workers Compensation, Defined Benefit Pension anth€ Postretirement Benefits, Environmental and @hLong-term Liabilities

We are obligated for various liabilities that wiltimately be determined over what could be a Veng future time period. We established the
recorded liabilities for such items at September280 2using estimates for when such amounts will be paidiwhat the amounts of such paym
will be. These estimates are subject to changedb@s@umerous factors, including among others,leggty changes, technology changes, the
investment performance of related assets, the ulidaate used, the lifespan of plan participantb@her individuals and changes to plan designs.

Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKE T RISK

We are exposed to various market risks, which atenpial losses arising from adverse changes ikehaates and prices, such as various
commodity prices, interest rates, foreign exchaages. We do not enter into derivatives or othearicial instruments for trading or speculative
purposes.

Our primary financial instruments are cash and eaghivalents. This includes cash in banks and higited, liquid money market investmer
We believe that those instruments are not subjectaterial potential near-term losses in futureiegs from reasonably possible néam change
in market rates or prices.

Commodity Price Risk

Our products are made using various purchased coemp® and several basic raw materials, includingpssteel, sand, resin, brass ingot and
steel pipe. Price levels for such goods changeangroduct margins and level of profitability miiyctuate if we do not pass changes in purchi
component and raw material costs to our customers.

We do not believe that changing prices for otherdgohad a material impact on our financial positionesults of operations in 2012 compared
to 2011. We expect these prices to fluctuate basedarketplace demand. Mueller Co. experienced aé&8fease in the average cost per ton of
scrap steel and a 5% decrease in the averagefdustss ingot purchased in the 2012 compared td.2@&hvil experienced a 5% increase in the
average cost per ton of scrap steel purchasedliad @mpared to 2011. See “Item 1A. RISK FACTOR®-Pplices of our purchased components
and raw materials can be volatile.”

We used natural gas swap contracts to hedge agasistflow variability arising from changes in maflgas prices, but terminated our natural
gas swap contracts after the sale of U.S. Pipe.

Interest Rate Risk

At September 30, 2012 , we had fixed rate deb6@23$8 million and no variable rate debt. There widag no impact on pre-tax earnings or
cash flows resulting from a 100 basis point incegasnterest rates on variable rate debt, holdithgr variables constant.

Currency Risk

We maintain assets and operations in Canada aadntech lesser extent, China, and Europe thatogsé ¢urrency as their functional currer
The assets and liabilities of non-U.S. subsidiagiestranslated into U.S. dollars at currency ergbaates in effect at the end of each period, with
the effect of such translation reflected in othemprehensive loss. Our stockholders' equity wiitfliate depending upon the weakening or
strengthening of the U.S. dollar against these d@-
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currencies. Net sales and expenses of non-U.Sidgalirss are translated into U.S. dollars at therage currency exchange rate during the period.
At September 30, 2012 , $66.3 million of our netedis were denominated in non-U.S. currencies.

We also have relatively small amounts of receivabled payables denominated in currencies otherathamtity's functional currency. Chan
in currency exchange rates between when thesedeslanmiginate and when they are settled resulirieign exchange gains and losses that are
recognized as they occur.

Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The Report of Independent Registered Public Acdngriirm, our Consolidated Financial Statementsthecaccompanying Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements that are filegaasof this annual report are listed undéerh 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
SCHEDULES” and are set forth on pages F-1 througH fmmediately following the signature pages @ tmnual report.

Selected quarterly financial data for 2012 and 2&®lprovided in Note 20 of the notes to consatiddinancial statements.

Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE
None.
Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedur

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresatetiesigned to ensure that information requivdgktdisclosed in the reports we file or
submit under the Securities Exchange Act of 1984 mended (the “Exchange Act”) is recorded, pramissummarized and reported within the
time periods specified in the rules and forms ef$ecurities and Exchange Commission (the “SEQi)that such information is accumulated and
communicated to our management, including the Ckeficutive Officer and the Chief Financial Offi@ appropriate, to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.

Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Ofr evaluated the effectiveness of the designogedation of our disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) andlBgel} of the Exchange Act) as of the end of théopesovered by this annual report. Based on
evaluation, those officers have concluded thatf&eptember 30, 2012, our disclosure controlsprndedures were effective.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Finaiad Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaing adequate internal control over financigaeing (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) of
the Exchange Act). Internal control over finanegorting is designed to provide reasonable assaraygarding the reliability of financial report
and the preparation of financial statements foem! purposes in accordance with generally acdegateounting principles. A company's internal
control over financial reporting includes thoseigies and procedures that (i) pertain to the magmee of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of the assets of the company; (iiyjgle reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation ofifishstatements in accordance with generally @ede@ccounting principles, and that receipts
expenditures of the company are being made ordgdordance with authorizations of management aredtdirs of the company; and (iii) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or tidetgction of unauthorized acquisition, use, opastion of the company's assets that could |
a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohaver financial reporting may not prevent or detaisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agect to the risk that controls may become inadégbecause of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procegunay deteriorate.

We assessed the effectiveness of our internalaamier financial reporting as of September 30,20 making this assessment, we used the
criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsorimg&hizations of the Treadway Commissiorriternal Control - Integrated FrameworkAfter
doing so, management concluded that, as of Septe3b2012 , our internal control over financigboeting was effective.

The effectiveness of our internal control over ficial reporting at September 30, 2012 has beenealidy Ernst & Young LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm,tated in their report which is included in this aahreport.
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportm

During the quarter ended September 30, 2012 , wegdd our internal control over financial reportangl our disclosure controls and
procedures by enhancing these controls with additiceview procedures, including reviews by a mughly skilled and experienced manager, to
help ensure appropriate classification of cashdlénom operating activities as between those frontinuing operations and those from
discontinued operations in prior periods.

In connection with these control changes, we dieoe errors that had been made earlier in theifitad®n of cash flows as between those
from continuing operations and those from discar@thoperations. These errors, which were reporea ©urrent Report on Form 8-K filed with
the SEC on November 23, 2012, had no impact orcangolidated balance sheet, consolidated statesheperations and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in stdd&hs' equity, debt compliance covenant or emm@m@mpensation metric for any period. Tt
errors also had no impact on any consolidatedretateof cash flows information for any period othiwn the six months ended March 31, 2011
and the nine months ended June 30, 2011 as prdsardar Quarterly Reports filed on Form 10-Q foe fquarterly periods ended March 31, 2012
and June 30, 2012, respectively.

These errors related to the classification of adeteincome tax and retirement plan adjustment&iardchining net cash used in operating
activities due to designating our U.S. Pipe segrasrttiscontinued operations in our condensed cioiaset! financial statements during the quarter
ended March 31, 2012. Specifically, net cash usegperating activities was overstated by $8.0 omlland $10.0 million for the six months ended
March 31, 2011 and nine months ended June 30, 284fectively. Net cash used in discontinued ojmeratvas understated by these same
amounts for these periods. Corrected unauditedesm®tl consolidated statements of cash flows fgetperiods are presented in Note 22 of the
consolidated financial statements included in &émsual report and, in addition, were reported in@urrent Report on Form RB-filed with the SEC
on November 23, 2012.

As a result of these errors, management concluasds of March 31, 2012 and June 30, 2012 oumniakeontrol over financial reporting and
our disclosure controls and procedures were nettfe. In connection with this determination, mgeraent also concluded that we had a material
weakness as of March 31, 2012 and June 30, 20th2$e controls related to classification of castvél as between those from continuing
operations and those from discontinued operatielagad solely to the prior period cash flow statete@s presented for comparative purposes. At
the same time, in light of the enhancement of otarnal control over financial reporting and owsdidsure controls and procedures during the
fourth quarter of 2012, management concluded thett sveakness had been remediated as of Septemi2013D.
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PART IlI

Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

The name, age at November 15, 2012 and positieaai of our executive officers and directors aes@nted below.

Name Age Position
Gregory E. Hyland 61 Chairman of the board of directors, President ahi@fCExecutive Officer
Keith L. Belknap 54  Senior Vice President, General Counsel, Chief Canpé Officer and Corporate Secretary
Robert D. Dunn 55 Senior Vice President, Human Resources
Thomas E. Fish 57 President, Anvil
Evan L. Hart 47  Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Robert P. Keefe 58 Senior Vice President and Chief Technology Officer
Kevin G. McHugh 54  Vice President and Controller
Gregory S. Rogowski 53 President, Mueller Co.
Marietta Edmunds Zakas 53 Senior Vice President, Strategy, Corporate Devetagrand Communications
Howard L. Clark, Jr. 68 Director
Shirley C. Franklin 67 Director
Thomas J. Hansen 63 Director
Jerry W. Kolb 76 Director
Joseph B. Leonard 69 Director
Mark J. O'Brien 69 Director
Bernard G. Rethore 71 Director
Neil A. Springer 74  Director
Lydia W. Thomas 68 Director
Michael T. Tokarz 62 Director

Gregory E. Hylandhas been Chairman of the board of directors siratelf@r 2005 and President and Chief Executive &ffsince January
2006. Mr. Hyland was Chairman, President and Chiefcutive Officer of Walter Energy, a homebuildifigancial services and natural resources
company, from September 2005 to December 2006, ®rihat time, he was President, U.S. Fleet Mamage Solutions of Ryder System, Inc.
(“Ryder"), a transportation and logistics compaingm June 2005 to September 2005. Mr. Hyland wascktive Vice President, U.S. Fleet
Management Solutions of Ryder from October 200dutree 2005. He earned Bachelor and Master of Busiésiinistration degrees from the
University of Pittsburgh.

Keith L. Belknaghas been our Senior Vice President, General CoanseCorporate Secretary since April 2012, andGhief Compliance
Officer since October 2012. Previously, Mr. Belkvegis Senior Vice President, General Counsel anddZate Secretary of PRIMEDIA, Inc., a
real estate advertising company, since 2007. Ryithat time, he held senior legal positions wiB{3Industries, a supplier of paint, coating, optica
product, specialty material, chemical, glass abdrfjlass, and GeorgRacific Corporation, a manufacturer and marketeisstie, packaging, pap
pulp and building products. Mr. Belknap earned atg&dor of Arts degree from the University of Tu{8i Beta Kappa) and a Juris Doctor with
honors from Harvard Law School.

Robert D. Dunrhas been our Senior Vice President, Human Resosites November 2007. Previously, Mr. Dunn was &eviice President,
Human Resources of Dean Foods Company (formeraStoods Corporation), a food and dairy compangesir®99. He earned a Bachelor of
Science degree from Murray State University andastielr of Business Administration degree from Eniiddle Aeronautical University.

Thomas E. Fislhas been President of our Anvil segment since 2B@in January 2005 to November 2005, Mr. Fish waglMr Co.'s Interim
Chief Financial Officer. He earned a Bachelor akBce degree from the University of Rhode Island iara certified public accountant.

Evan L. Harthas been our Senior Vice President and Chief Fiab@dficer since July 2008. Mr. Hart was our Catigr from December 2007
to July 2008 and our Vice President of FinanciahRing and Analysis from September 2006 to Decer2®@r. Previously, he was Vice President,
Controller and Treasurer for Unisource Worldwide;.] a marketer and distributor of commercial pmigni& business imaging papers, packaging
systems and facility supplies and equipment from
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2002 to 2006. Mr. Hart earned a Bachelor of Scietegree from Birmingham-Southern College and isréifed public accountant.

Robert P. Keefbias been our Senior Vice President and Chief Tdobp®fficer since December 2011 and our Senioe\Recesident and
Chief Information Officer since March 2007. Prexsby Mr. Keefe was Corporate Vice President ance€Clmformation Officer at Russell
Corporation, an athletic apparel, footwear and ggeint company. He is a director of the Societyfifwrmation Management, International, a non-
profit trade organization. Mr. Keefe earned a Bémhéegree from the State University of New YorlCmwego and a Master of Business
Administration degree from Pace University.

Kevin G. McHugthas been our Vice President and Controller sine2D08. Mr. McHugh was our Vice President, Finah&eporting from
January 2008 to July 2008. Previously, he was QatpaController at Unisource Worldwide, Inc. fro®03 to 2007. Mr. McHugh earned a
Bachelor of Business Administration degree withdrsrfrom the University of Notre Dame and is aifiedt public accountant.

Gregory S. Rogowskias been President of our Mueller Co. segment $itege2009. Previously, Mr. Rogowski was Presidemt/ar Chief
Executive Officer of Performance Fibers, Inc., &ypster industrial fibers business from 2004 to208e earned a Bachelor of Science degree
Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State UniversilyMaster of Science degree from the Universitilabn and a Master of Business
Administration degree from the University of Richnab

Marietta Edmunds Zakdsas been our Senior Vice President, Strategy, Catp®evelopment and Communications since Nover20es.
Previously, Ms. Zakas held various positions at€RlUsCorporation, culminating in her role as CogierVice President, Chief of Staff, Business
Development and Treasurer. She earned a Bachefntotiegree from Randolph-Macon Woman's Collegsv(known as Randolph College), a
Master of Business Administration degree from timéversity of Virginia Darden School of Business anduris Doctor from the University of
Virginia School of Law. Ms. Zakas is a directorAtfantic Capital Bank and Atlantic Capital Bancsbsr

Howard L. Clark, Jrhas been a member of our board of directors sipré 2006. Mr. Clark has been a director of WakEgrergy since March
1995. He was Vice Chairman of Barclays Capital ittvestment banking division of Barclays Bank Pfi©m September 2008 through June 2011.
Mr. Clark was Vice Chairman of Lehman Brothers Jan investment banking firm, from February 199%é&ptember 2008 and, before that,
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Shearsohrhan Brothers Inc. Until June 2012, he was a direaft United Rentals, Inc., an equipment
rental company. Mr. Clark is a director of White idains Insurance Group, Ltd., a financial serviexed insurance holding company. Mr. Clark
earned a Master of Business Administration degi@a Columbia University, Graduate School of Busines

Shirley C. Franklirhas been a member of our board of directors sirseidber 2010. Ms. Franklin is Chair of the boardlioéctors and Chief
Executive Officer of Purpose Built Communities, .\ national non-profit organization establishedransform struggling neighborhoods into
sustainable communities. She also is Co-Chair@ftanta Regional Commission on Homelessness #adt ©f the board of directors of the
National Center for Civil and Human Rights. Fro602 to 2010, Ms. Franklin was mayor of Atlanta, g Since July 2011, she has be¢
director of Delta Air Lines, Inc., a provider of aiansportation for passengers and cargo. Ms kiraearned a Bachelor of Science degree in
sociology from Howard University and a Master'sréegn sociology from the University of Pennsyhani

Thomas J. Hansemas been a member of our board of directors sirteb@r 2011. Until March 2012, Mr. Hansen was \@w®irman of
lllinois Tool Works Inc. (“ITW"), a manufacturer dasteners and components, consumable systemsvaity of specialty products and
equipment. He joined ITW in 1980 as sales and ntianggenanager of the Shakeproof Industrial Prodhotinesses. From 1998 until May 2006,
Mr. Hansen was Executive Vice President of ITW. isla member of the Northern lllinois Universitydextive Club, a member of the Economics
Club of Chicago, Chairman of The ITW Better GoveemnCouncil and a former member of the Board oflees of MAPI (Manufacturers
Alliance). Mr. Hansen is a director of Terex Caqutmn, a diversified global manufacturer of a eariof machinery products. From 2005 through
2008, he was a director of CDW Corporation. Mr. slamearned a Bachelor of Science degree in magkietim Northern lllinois State University
and a Master of Business Administration degree f@owernors State University.

Jerry W. Kolbhas been a member of our board of directors siqeé 2006. Mr. Kolb has been a director of Walteregy since June 2003. |
was a Vice Chairman of Deloitte & Touche LLP, aiségred public accounting firm, from 1986 to 1988. Kolb earned a Bachelor of Science
degree in accountancy from the University of llimmand Master of Business Administration degrefniance from DePaul University. Mr. Kolb i
certified public accountant.
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Joseph B. Leonardas been a member of our board of directors siqré 2006. Mr. Leonard was a director of Walter Emefrom June 2005
to April 2007 and he rejoined that board in Febyu20:09. He was Interim Chief Executive Officer ofltér Energy from March 2010 through
March 2011 and from August 2011 to September 2Btt1Leonard was Chairman of AirTran Holdings, Irefull service airline company, from
November 2007 to June 2008, Chairman and ChieflxecOfficer of AirTran Holdings, Inc. from Janyat999 to November 2007 and Presid
of AirTran Holdings, Inc. from January 1999 to Jaru2001. He is a director of Air Canada, a fuliveze airline company. Mr. Leonard earned a
Bachelor of Science degree in aerospace enginefeamgAuburn University.

Mark J. O'Brienhas been a member of our board of directors siqmé 2006. Mr. O'Brien was a director of Walter Egyg from June 2005 to
April 2009. Since March 2006, he has been ChairamahChief Executive Officer of Walter Investmentidgement Corp. (formerly Walter
Energy's financing business). Mr. O'Brien has Heesident and Chief Executive Officer of Brier Pa@apital and Management, Inc., a real estate
investment firm, since September 2004. He helcbuarexecutive positions at Pulte Homes, Inc., aéhbuilding company, for 21 years, retiring as
President and Chief Executive Officer in June 20@8.0'Brien earned a Bachelor of Arts degree Btdry from the University of Miami.

Bernard G. Rethorbas been a member of our board of directors sippré 2006. He has been a director of Walter Enasigge March 2002.
Mr. Rethore has been Chairman of the Board Emeoitidowserve Corporation, a manufacturer of purwpdses, seals and components, since
April 2000. From January 2000 to April 2000, he wéswvserve's Chairman. Mr. Rethore had previoustyed as its Chairman, President and C
Executive Officer. He had been a director of Belden., a manufacturer of specialty signal-transiois products, from 1997 until May 2012. Mr.
Rethore is a director of Dover Corp., a diversifiednufacturer of a wide range of proprietary prasiue 2008, he was honored by the Outstanding
Directors Exchange as an Outstanding Director ®fMbar and in 2012, he was designated a Board kslddd-ellow by the National Associatior
Corporate Directors. Mr. Rethore earned a Bach#léwrts degree in Economics (Honors) from Yale Umgity and a Master of Business
Administration degree from the Wharton School @& tniversity of Pennsylvania, where he was a Jofepiharton Scholar and Fellow.

Neil A. Springethas been a member of our board of directors simpeé 2006. Mr. Springer was a director of Waltereegy from August 2000
to April 2006. He has been managing director ofrgfar & Associates LLC, a board consulting and eige recruitment company, since 1994.
Mr. Springer was a director of IDEX Corporationfrd 990 until April 2011. He earned a Bachelor ae8ce degree in accounting from Indiana
University, a Master of Business Administration asgfrom the University of Dayton and a certificafeaccountancy from the University of
lllinois.

Lydia W. Thomahas been a member of our board of directors siaeealy 2008. Dr. Thomas was President and Chiefuxe Officer of
Noblis, Inc., a public interest research and dgwelent company, from 1996 to 2007. She was prewoush The MITRE Corporation, Center f
Environment, Resources and Space, serving as Séic@President and General Manager from 1992 86,19ice President from 1989 to 1992
and Technical Director from 1982 to 1989. Dr. Thersa director of Cabot Corporation, a global perfance materials company. She earned a
Bachelor of Science degree in zoology from Howaniversity, a Master of Science degree in microlgglérom American University and a Doc
of Philosophy degree in cytology from Howard Unaigy.

Michael T. Tokarhas been a member of our board of directors siqeé 2006. Mr. Tokarz has been a nerecutive Chairman of the Boarc
Walter Energy since December 2006. Since Februadg,zhe has been a member of the Tokarz Group, BlM@nture capital investment company.
From January 1996 until February 2002, Mr. Tokass\&w member of the limited liability company thatves as the general partner of Kohlberg
Kravis Roberts & Co. L.P., a private equity compateg is a director of IDEX Corporation, CNO Finaadiroup, Inc. (formerly Conseco, Inc.), an
insurance provider, MVC Capital, Inc., a registeiracestment company, Dakota Growers Pasta Compaty,a manufacturer and marketer of dry
pasta products and Walter Investment Managememt. @o2007, he was honored by the Outstanding BireExchange as an Outstanding
Director of the Year. Mr. Tokarz earned a Bachelofrts degree in economics and a Master of Busidehministration degree in finance from the
University of lllinois.

Additional Information

Additional information required by this item wilelcontained in our definitive proxy statement issisreconnection with the 2013 annual
meeting of stockholders filed with the SEC with20ldays after September 30, 2012 and is incorpmbteteein by reference.

Our website addressvsvw.muellerwaterproducts.conYou may obtain free electronic copies of our aimaports on Form 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form & all amendments to those reports from the investations section of our website. These
reports are available on our website soon aftefiler¢hem with or furnish them to the SEC. Theseonts should also be available through the S
website atvww.sec.gov
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We have adopted a written code of conduct thatieppbd all directors, officers and employees, idiolg a separate code that applies only tc
principal executive officer and senior financialiodrs in accordance with Section 406 of the SagbaDxley Act of 2002 and the rules of the SEC
promulgated thereunder. Our Code of Business CdrathetEthics is available in the corporate goveceasection of our website. In the event that
we make changes in, or provide waivers from, thoeigions of this Code of Business Conduct and Etttiat the SEC requires us to disclose, we
will disclose these events in the corporate gowaraaection of our website.

We have adopted corporate governance guidelinesgtifdelines and the charters of our board comesitéee available in the corporate
governance section of our website. Copies of thée@d Business Conduct and Ethics, corporate gavesguidelines and board committee
charters are also available in print upon writtequest to the Corporate Secretary, Mueller Watadrits, Inc., 1200 Abernathy Road N.E., Suite
1200, Atlanta, GA 30328.

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item will be coimed in our definitive proxy statement issued immection with the 2013 annual meeting of
stockholders is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Except for the information set forth below and ithfermation set forth in Part 11, Item 5. MARKET FOREGISTRANT'S COMMON
EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PUREASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES, the information requiriey this
item will be contained in our definitive proxy statent issued in connection with the 2013 annuatingef stockholders and is incorporated he
by reference.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Cpensation Plans

We have two compensation plans under which ourtegecurities are authorized for issuance. The Mu®Vater Products, Inc. 2006
Employee Stock Purchase Plan was approved by teissakholder in May 2006 and the Mueller Watayd®icts, Inc. 2006 Stock Incentive Plan
was approved by our sole stockholder in May 20@banended by our stockholders in January 2008 alara®09 and January 2012.

The following table sets forth certain informatigtating to these equity compensation plans atebeper 30, 2012 .

Number of securities

to be issued Weighted average
upon exercise of exercise price of Number of securities
outstanding options, outstanding options, remaining available
warrants and rights warrants and rights for future issuance
Equity compensation plans approved by stockholders:
Mueller Water Products, Inc. 2006 Stock Incenti
Plan 7,946,37. O § 6.3C @ 8,890,76° ©@
Mueller Water Products, Inc. 2006 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan 87,39( 3.0¢ 2,177,331 @
Total 8,033,76: 11,068,10
Equity compensation plans not approved by
stockholders — $ — —

(1) Consists of shares to be issued upon exescigesting of outstanding stock awards granted utideMueller Water Products, Inc. 2006
Stock Incentive Plan.

(2) Weighted average exercise price of 5,522,610 qudsig stock option

(3) The number of shares available for futureasse under the Mueller Water Products, Inc. 2006Sincentive Plan is 20,500,000 shares
less the cumulative number of awards granted uth@eplan plus the cumulative number of awards dadagnder the plan after January
25, 2012.

(4) The number of shares available for future issuamcker the Mueller Water Products, Inc. 2006 Empdo$tock Purchase Plan is 4,000,
shares less the cumulative number of shares isswdat the plan.
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Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item will be comid in our definitive proxy statement issued immection with the 2013 annual meeting of
stockholders is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item will be comid in our definitive proxy statement issued immection with the 2013 annual meeting of
stockholders is incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV
Item 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
€) Financial Statements
Page

Index to financial statements number
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfing F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 30, 2011204 1 F-3
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Othemp@amnsive Income for the years ended Septemb&03@, 2011 and

2010 F-4
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equityttieryears ended September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yaraled September 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-7

(b) Financial Statement Schedule

Except for Schedule Il, Valuation and Qualifyingo&eints, the schedules for which provision is madéé applicable accounting regulations
of the SEC are not required under the relatedunstns or are inapplicable and, therefore, hawnlwmitted. The information required by Sche
Il is included in the notes to consolidated finahstatements.

(c) Exhibits
Exhibit
no. Document
2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of June@d among Mueller Water Products, Inc., Walter Btdas, Inc., JW

MergerCo, Inc. and DLJ Merchant Banking Il, Incs,stockholders’ representative. Incorporated bgresfce to Exhibit 2.1 to
Mueller Water Products, Inc. Form 8-K (File no. 3B3%590) filed on June 21, 2005.

211 Letter Agreement dated as of February 23, 2006 detWValter Industries, Inc. and Mueller Water Potsluinc. Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Mueller Water Produbts. Form 8-K (File no. 333-131521) filed Febrpai, 2006.
2.2 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of Janubrg@®6, by and among Mueller Holding Company,,INueller Water

Products, LLC and Mueller Water Products Co-Isshrer, Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 MeieWater Products, Inc.
Form 8-K (File no. 333-116590) filed on February2806.

3.1 Second Restated Certificate of Incorporation of NMuéVater Products, Inc. Incorporated by referetacExhibit 3.1 to Mueller
Water Products, Inc. Form 8-K (File no. 001-3288I2Y on January 25, 2012.
3.1.1 Certificate of Merger, dated February 2, 2006, afdlfer Water Products, LLC and Mueller Water Prddu@o-Issuer, Inc. with

and into Mueller Holding Company, Inc. Incorporatsdreference to Exhibit 3.1.2 to Mueller Water dRrots, Inc. Form 8-K (File
no. 333-116590) filed on February 3, 2006.
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Exhibit

no. Document

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Mueller Water Prtsduiec. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2 2Mueller Water
Products, Inc. Form 8-K (File no. 001-32892) filmu January 25, 2012.

4.1 Indenture dated as of May 24, 2007 among MuelleteWRroducts, Inc., the guarantors named on thegige pages thereto and
The Bank of New York (including form of global ne)eIncorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to NMaeréNVater Products, Inc.
Form 8-K (File no. 001-32892) filed on May 30, 2007

4.2 Indenture, dated August 26, 2010, among MuelleréVRtoducts, Inc., the guarantors named on thesignpages thereto and
The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. tasstee (including form of global notes). Incorated by reference to
Exhibit 4.6 to Mueller Water Products, Inc. FornK&File no. 001-32892) filed on August 27, 2010.

10.2 Income Tax Allocation Agreement by and among Waheustries, Inc., the Walter Affiliates (as defihinerein), Mueller Water
Products, Inc. and the Mueller Affiliates (as defirtherein). Incorporated by reference to ExhibiRlto Mueller Water
Products, Inc. Form 8-K (File no. 001-32892) filmd May 30, 2006.

10.3* Mueller Water Products, Inc. Amended and Resta®& Stock Incentive Plan. Incorporated by referéndexhibit A to Mueller
Water Products, Inc. Form DEF 14A (File no. 00128iled on December 14, 2011.

10.4 Mueller Water Products, Inc. Form of Notice of $t@@ption Grant. Incorporated by reference to Extibi21 to Mueller Water
Products, Inc. Form 10-Q (File no. 001-32892) fitedFebruary 9, 2010.

10.5** Mueller Water Products, Inc. Form of RestrictedcBtnit Award Agreement.

10.6* Mueller Water Products, Inc. 2006 Employee StocicRase Plan, as amended September 27, 2006. Imategdy reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to Mueller Water Products, Inc. ForfiK (File no. 001-32892) filed on December 21, 2006

10.7* Mueller Water Products, Inc. Directors’ DeferredeFRan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16.¥iteller Water
Products, Inc. 8-K (File no. 001-32892) filed onywa0, 2006.

10.8* Form of Mueller Water Products, Inc. Director Indefication Agreement. Incorporated by referenc&xaibit 99.2 to Mueller
Water Products, Inc. 8-K (File no. 001-32892) fitmdOctober 31, 2008.

10.9* Executive Incentive Plan of Mueller Water Produtts, Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8/oeller Water Products, Inc.
8-K (File no. 001-32892) filed on May 30, 2006.

10.10* Mueller Water Products, Inc. Executive Deferred @emsation Plan. Incorporated by reference to ExBBB3 to Mueller Water
Products, Inc. 8-K (File no. 001-32892) filed ont@er 31, 2008.

10.11* Employment Agreement, dated September 15, 2008deetWlueller Water Products, Inc. and Gregory EaHgl Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Mueller Water Produtits. Form 8-K (File no. 001-32892) filed on Octol®, 2008.

10.11.1* Amendment, dated as of March 2, 2006, to ExeclEivployment Agreement dated September 9, 2005 bat\W&ster
Industries, Inc. and Gregory E. Hyland. Incorpadldig reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Mueller Water dRrets, Inc. Form 8-K (File
no. 333-131521) filed on March 3, 2006.

10.11.2* Amended and Restated Mueller Water Products, lapp®mental Defined Contribution Plan, effectiveodanuary 1, 2009.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13.2 to MueéNater Products, Inc. Form 8-K (File no. 001892) filed on February 9,
20009.

10.11.3* Amendment, dated December 1, 2009, to Executivel@&ment Agreement, dated September 9, 2005, betWetier Water
Products, Inc. and Gregory E. Hyland. Incorpordigdeference to Exhibit 99.1 to Mueller Water PratdyInc. Form 8-K (File no.
001-32892) filed on December 4, 2009.

10.11.4* Amendment, dated December 1, 2010, to Executivel@&ment Agreement, dated September 9, 2005, betWemtier Water
Products, Inc. and Gregory E. Hyland. Incorporditgdeference to Exhibit 99.1 to Mueller Water PratdyInc. Form 8-K (File no.
001-32892) filed on December 6, 2010.

10.11.5* Amendment, dated March 31, 2012, to Executive Eymént Agreement, dated September 9, 2005, betwerstliéd Water
Products, Inc. and Gregory E. Hyland. Incorpordtedeference to Exhibit 99.1 to Mueller Water PratyInc. Form 10-Q (File
no. 001-32892) filed on May 10, 2012.

10.12* Executive Employment Agreement, dated as of Juj)2068, between Mueller Water Products, Inc. ananBv. Hart.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to MeeWater Products, Inc. Form 10-Q (File 001-3288&3 on August 11, 2008.

10.12.1* Amendment, dated December 1, 2009, to Executivel@&ment Agreement, dated September 6, 2006, betMemdier Water
Products, Inc. and Evan L. Hart. Incorporated ligrence to Exhibit 99.3 to Mueller Water Produtite, Form 8-K (File no. 001-
32892) filed on December 4, 2009.

10.12.2 Amendment, dated March 31, 2012, to Executive Eympknt Agreement, dated September 6, 2006, betwertiéd Water

Products, Inc. and Evan L. Hart. Incorporated ligrence to Exhibit 99.3 to Mueller Water Produéite, Form 8-K (File no. 001-
3892) filed on May 10, 2012.
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Exhibit
no.

Document

10.13*

10.13.1*

10.13.2*

10.13.3

10.14*

10.15*

10.16*

10.17*

10.18*

10.18.1*

10.18.2*

10.18.3

10.19

10.20

10.21*

10.21.1*

10.21.2*

10.21.3

Employment Agreement, dated as of July 31, 2008yden Mueller Water Products, Inc. and Thomas &h.Hncorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Mueller Water Produbts. Form 8-K (File no. 001-32892) filed on Augi@s 2006.

Employment Agreement, dated as of February 22, 20d4fveen Mueller Water Products, Inc. and Thomdsdh. Incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Mueller Water Prodyinc. Form 8-K (File no. 001-32892) filed orbFReary 26, 2010.

Executive Change-in-Control Severance Agreemem¢ddaebruary 22, 2010, between Mueller Water Prisglliec. and Thomas
E. Fish. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 948.Rueller Water Products, Inc. Form 8-K (File 861-32892) filed on February
26, 2010.

Amendment, dated March 31, 2012, to Executive Eympknt Agreement, dated September 9, 2005, betwerstiéd Water
Products, Inc. and Thomas E. Fish. Incorporatecefgrence to Exhibit 99.1 to Mueller Water Produtts. Form 10-Q (File no.
001-32892) filed on May 10, 2012.

Joint Litigation Agreement dated December 14, 208Bveen Walter Industries, Inc. and Mueller WatedBcts, Inc.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to MueWater Products, Inc. Form 8-K (File no. 001-3288Ii2d on December 19,
2006.

Form of Executive Change-in-Control Severance Agied. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.8Mteeller Water Products,
Inc. Form 8-K (File no. 001-32892) filed on Octoléer2008.

Form of Amendment to Executive Employment Agreemirttorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1 to MereWater Products,
Inc. Form 8-K (File no. 001-32892) filed on Febmuér 2009.

Mueller Water Products, Inc. 2010 Management IrigerRlan. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 0@ Mueller Water
Products, Inc. Form 10-Q (File no. 001-32892) fitedFebruary 9, 2010.

Employment Agreement, dated August 9, 2010, betvivasiler Water Products, Inc. and Paul Ciolino.drporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.20 to Mueller Water Products, Incriral0-Q (File no. 001-32892) filed on August 9, @01

Executive Change-in-Control Severance Agreemem¢ddaugust 9, 2010, between Mueller Water Produsts,and Paul Ciolino.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to MeeWater Products, Inc. Form 10-Q (File no. 001928iled on August 9,
2010.

Assignment and Amendment of Executive Change-int@bBeverance Agreement, dated June 10, 2011, guMoeller Water
Products, Inc., United States Pipe and Foundry GowpLLC and Paul Ciolino. Incorporated by refeeeta Exhibit 10.23.2 to
Mueller Water Products, Inc. Form 8-K (File no. €8892) filed on June 14, 2011.

Assignment and Assumption Agreement, dated Aprd®,2, between United States Pipe and Foundry Compa C and Muelle
Water Products, Inc. Incorporated by referencextailtit 10.21.3 to Mueller Water Products, Inc. F@8rK (File no. 001-32892)
filed on April 4, 2012.

Purchase Agreement, dated August 19, 2010, betiMeelier Water Products, Inc. and the Guarantorsaththerein and Banc of
America Securities LLC. Incorporated by refererm&xhibit 10.22 to Mueller Water Products, Inc. iRd3-K (File no. 00132892)
filed on August 20, 2010.

Credit Agreement, dated August 26, 2010, among Mug/ater Products, Inc. and the borrowing subsieanamed on the
signature pages thereto, each as a Borrower, éitancial institutions, as Lenders, JPMorgan @Haank, N.A., as Syndication
Agent, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association amthBust Bank, as Co-Documentation Agents, BankrmokAca, N.A. as
Administrative Agent and Banc of America Securiti¢€ and J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., as Joint L&adngers and Joint
Bookrunners. Incorporated by reference to Exhibi23 to Mueller Water Products, Inc. Form 8-K (Fie 001-32892) filed on
August 27, 2010.

Employment Agreement, dated April 10, 2009, betwderller Water Products, Inc. and Gregory Rogowsidorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.26 to Mueller Water Proguttic. Form 10-K (File no. 001-32892) filed on Navber 23, 2010.

Amendment to Employment Agreement, date Decemb209, between Mueller Water Products, Inc. andy@yeRogowski.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to MeeeWater Products, Inc. Form 10-K (File no. 001228iled on November 23,
2010.

Executive Change-in-Control Severance Agreememngddslay 4, 2009, between Mueller Water Products, amd Gregory
Rogowski. Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 8@ Mueller Water Products, Inc. Form 10-K (File 001-32892) filed on
November 23, 2010.

Amendment, dated March 31, 2012, to Executive Eympknt Agreement, dated September 9, 2005, betwerstiéd Water
Products, Inc. and Gregory Rogowski. Incorporateddference to Exhibit 99.1 to Mueller Water Praguénc. Form 10-Q (File
no. 001-32892) filed on May 10, 2012.
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Exhibit

no. Document

10.22* Special Incentive Award Program for Selected Emgémsyof U.S. Pipe, dated June 2011. Incorporatedfbyence to Exhibit 10.z
to Mueller Water Products, Inc. Form 8-K (File 001-32892) filed on June 14, 2011.

10.23 Purchase Agreement, dated March 7, 2012, amongléWhter Products, Inc., Mueller Group, LLC andRJSoldings Inc.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.3 to MueWéater Products, Inc. Form 8-K (File no. 001-32881211 on March 8, 2012.

10.24** Employment Agreement, dated September 15, 200&¢ceet Mueller Water Products, Inc. and Robert Dunn.

10.24.1** Executive Change-in-Control Severance Agreemenm¢dd8eptember 15, 2008.

10.24.2** Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated Februa?p@9, between Mueller Water Products, Inc. andgrRaDunn.

10.24.3* Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated Decemp2009, between Mueller Water Products, Inc. andeRoDunn.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to MueWater Products, Inc. Form 8-K (File no. 001-3288i2d on December 4,
20009.

10.24.4** Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated Januarg2@R?, between Mueller Water Products, Inc. andgRaDunn.

10.24.5** Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated MarctD122between Mueller Water Products, Inc. and Rdbenn.

10.25** Mueller Water Products, Inc. Form of Performancar8Award Agreement.

10.26** Mueller Water Products, Inc. Form of Performancar8Award Agreement (Stub Period).

12.1% Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

14.1 Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for MuelleraVBroducts, Inc. Incorporated by reference to lkii4.1 to Mueller Water
Products, Inc. Form 10-K (File no. 001-32892) fitedNovember 26, 2008.

21.1% Subsidiaries of Mueller Water Products, Inc.

31.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2** Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuaot $ection 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1** Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2%* Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuat $ection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101** The following financial information from the AnnuBkeport on Form 10-K for the year ended Septem@e2@11, formatted in
XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language)th@ Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) the Conseliti§tatements of
Operations and Other Comprehensive Income, (dé)Gbnsolidated Statements of Stockholders' Eqfiitythe Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows, and (v) the Notes to @olated Financial Statements.

* Management compensatory plan, contract or arrangt

** Filed with this annual repc
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amentiedregistrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigtteereunto duly authorized.

Date: November 29, 2012
MUELLER WATER PRODUCTS, INC.

By: /sl Gregory E. Hyland
Name: Gregory E. Hyland

Title: Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the SecuritiesoA&B034, as amended, this report has been signdtelfpllowing persons on behalf of the
registrant and in the capacities and on the datisated.

Signature Title Date
/sl Gregory E. Hyland Chairman of the Board of Directors, President ah@:fCExecutive Officer November 29, 2012
Gregory E. Hyland (principal executive officer)
/sl Evan L. Hart Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offiganir{cipal financial officer) November 29, 2012
Evan L. Hart
/sl Kevin G. McHugh Vice President and Controller (principal accountifficer) November 29, 2012

Kevin G. McHugh

/s/ Howard L. Clark Director November 29, 2012
Howard L. Clark

/sl Shirley C. Franklin Director November 29, 2012
Shirley C. Franklin

/s/ Thomas J. Hansen Director November 29, 2012
Thomas J. Hansen

/sl Jerry W. Kolb Director November 29, 2012
Jerry W. Kolb
/sl Joseph B. Leonard Director November 29, 2012

Joseph B. Leonard

/s/ Mark J. O'Brien Director November 29, 2012
Mark J. O'Brien

/s/ Bernard G. Rethore Director November 29, 2012
Bernard G. Rethore

/sl Neil A. Springer Director November 29, 2012
Neil A. Springer

/sl Lydia W. Thomas Director November 29, 2012
Lydia W. Thomas




/s/ Michael T. Tokarz Director November 29, 2012

Michael T. Tokarz
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Mueéliater Products, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Mueller Water Products, Inc. and didrses as of September 30, 2Gir#i 2011
and the related consolidated statements of opesa#ind other comprehensive income, stockholdenstye@nd cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended September 30, 2012 eTiremncial statements are the responsibility ef@mmpany's management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these financial statenteaged on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBiqUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtaasonable assurance about whether the finasiataiments are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, exddesupporting the amounts and disclosures initla@dial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and &igntfestimates made by management, as well asatigj the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provideasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements refer@atove present fairly, in all material respedts,donsolidated financial position of Mueller Water
Products, Inc. and subsidiaries at September 3® a6d 2011, and the consolidated results of tipErations and other comprehensive income anc
their cash flows for each of the three years inpwéod ended September 30, 2012 , in conformith WiS. generally accepted accounting
principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), Mueller Water
Products, Inc.'s internal control over financigaging as of September 30, 2012 , based on @igmtablished imternal Control-Integrated
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe Treadway Commission and our report datedeNder 29, 2012 expressed
an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Atlanta, Georgia
November 29, 201

F-1
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm
The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Muellater Products, Inc.

We have audited Mueller Water Products, Inc. armisliaries' internal control over financial repogdias of September 30, 2012 , based on criteria
established imnternal Control - Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe Treadway Commission (the
COSO criteria). Mueller Water Products, Inc. andssdiaries' management is responsible for maimgieffective internal control over financial
reporting, and for its assessment of the effecttgsrof internal control over financial reportinglirded in the accompanying Management's Report
on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Oesponsibility is to express an opinion on the camfsainternal control over financial reporting
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statedof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBd@nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to abtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our auditideld obtaining an understanding of internal cordver financial reporting, assessing the risk &
material weakness exists, testing and evaluatiagléfsign and operating effectiveness of internalrobbased on the assessed risk, and performing
such other procedures as we considered necesstgy éircumstances. We believe that our audit plewia reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetséor external purposes in accordance with gelyesabepted accounting principles. A company's
internal control over financial reporting includbsse policies and procedures that (1) pertaihgaraintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transaw$i and dispositions of the assets of the comp@pyrovide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary to permit preparatifinasfcial statements in accordance with generalbepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being madei@gcordance with authorizations of managemedtdirectors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized acquisition, oselisposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial stegets.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohaver financial reporting may not prevent or détaisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agect to the risk that controls may become inadégbecause of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procegunay deteriorate.

In our opinion, Mueller Water Products, Inc. anbsidiaries maintained, in all material respectieaive internal control over financial reporting
of September 30, 2012 , based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the consolidated
balance sheets of Mueller Water Products, Inc.sahdidiaries as of September 30, 2012 and 201 1thenglated consolidated statements of
operations and other comprehensive income, stodkh®lequity, and cash flows for each of the tgesgs in the period ended September 30, 2012
and our report dated November 29, 2012 expressedgunlified opinion on those financial statements.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

Atlanta, Georgia
November 29, 201
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Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables, net

Inventories

Deferred income taxes

Other current assets

Current assets held for sale
Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment, net

Identifiable intangible assets

Other noncurrent assets

Noncurrent assets held for sale

Total assets

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity:
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Other current liabilities
Current liabilities held for sale
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Deferred income taxes
Other noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

MUELLER WATER PRODUCTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Commitments and contingencies (Note 18)

Common stock: 600,000,000 shares authorized;15/88@nd 155,793,612 shares outstanding

at September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011 cteshe

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated deficit

Accumulated other comprehensive
Total stockholders’ equity

loss

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

September 30,

2012

2011

(in millions, except share amounts)

83.C $ 61.C
166.1 147.c
183. 175.¢

19.€ 28.7

38.C 43.€

— 142.(
489.¢ 598.¢
144.7 145.7
573.7 602.2

32.€ 30.

— 107.7

1,240 $ 1,485.(

1.1 $ 0.

84.E 59.1

82.¢ 77.¢

— 56.¢
168. 194.¢
621.7 677.2
132.¢ 154..

86.¢ 79.€
1,009.; 1,106.(
1.€ 1.6
1,587.¢ 1,593.
(1,270. (1,161.9)
(87.7) (54.2)
231.: 379.C
1,240.¢ $ 1,485.(

The accompanying notes are an integral part of¢imsolidated financial statements.
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MUELLER WATER PRODUCTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND OTHER COM PREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended September 30,

2012 2011 2010
(in millions, except per share amounts)
Net sales $ 1,023.¢ $ 964.¢ $ 959.7
Cost of sales 752.¢ 716.5 700.¢
Gross profit 271.1 248.] 259.1
Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative 204.2 191.¢ 188.¢
Restructuring 2.8 3.€ 0.€
Total operating expenses 207.( 195.¢ 189.¢
Operating income 64.1 52.7 69.7
Interest expense, net 59.¢ 65.€ 68.C
Loss on early extinguishment of debt 1t — 4.€
Income (loss) before income taxes 2.7 (12.9) (2.9)
Income tax expense (benefit) 7.S (2.9) 2.t
Loss from continuing operations (5.2 (10.0 (5.9
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax (103.9) (28.7) (39.9)
Net loss (108.4) (38.]) (45.2)
Other comprehensive loss:
Derivatives — — 0.7
Income tax effects — — 0.2
Amortization of interest expense on terminated se@practs 5.C 8.C 6.5
Income tax effects (2.0 3.0 (2.6)
Foreign currency translation 2.¢ (1.3 3.4
Minimum pension liability (39.9) 19.2 14.€
Income tax effects 0.4 (7.€) (5.8
Other — 0.€ —
(33.5 16.C 15.%
Comprehensive loss $ (2419 $ 22.7) $ (29.5)
Net loss per basic share:
Continuing operations $ (0.039) $ (0.079) $ (0.03)
Discontinued operations (0.6€) (0.1¢) (0.26)
Net loss $ 0.69 $ (0.28) % (0.29)
Net loss per diluted share:
Continuing operations $ (0.09) $ (0.09) $ (0.09)
Discontinued operations (0.6¢€) (0.1¢) (0.26)
Net loss $ (0.69) $ (0.25) $ (0.29)
Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic 156.f 155.% 154.:
Diluted 156.¢ 155.2 154.:
Dividends declared per share $ 007 $ 007 $ 0.07

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftimsolidated financial statements.
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MUELLER WATER PRODUCTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Accumulated

Additional other
Common paid-in Accumulated comprehensive
stock capital deficit income (loss) Total
(in millions)

Balance at September 30, 2009 $ iLE 1599.C $ (1,078.9) $ (85.9 $ 436.:
Net loss — — (45.2) — (45.2)
Dividends declared — (20.9) — — (10.9)
Stock-based compensation — 8.3 — — 8.2
Stock issued under stock

compensation plans — 1.C — — 1.C
Derivative instruments — — — 3.k 3.k
Foreign currency translation — — — 3.4 3.4
Minimum pension liability — — — 8.¢ 8.€

Balance at September 30, 2010 iz 1,597.t (1,123.9) (70.2) 405.:
Net loss — — (38.]) — (38.))
Dividends declared — (20.9 — — (10.9)
Stock-based compensation — 5.7 — — 5.7
Stock issued under stock

compensation plans 0.1 0.¢ — — 1.C
Derivative instruments — — — 4.6 4.6
Foreign currency translation — — — (2.2) (1.2
Minimum pension liability — — — 12.2 12.2

Balance at September 30, 2011 1.€ 1,593.: (1,161.¢ (54.2) 379.(
Net loss — — (108.9) — (108.9)
Dividends declared — (12.0 — — (11.0
Stock-based compensation — 4. — — 4.¢
Stock issued under stock

compensation plans — 0.2 — — 0.2
Derivative instruments — — — 3.C 3.C
Foreign currency translation — — — 2.6 2.¢
Minimum pension liability — — — (39.9 (39.9)

Balance at September 30, 2012 $ 1.€ 1587 $ (2,270.0 $ 87.7) $ 231.2

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftimsolidated financial statements.
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MUELLER WATER PRODUCTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended September 30,

2012 2011 2010
(in millions)
Operating activities:
Net loss $ (108.9 $ (38.)) % (45.2)
Less: loss from discontinued operations 103.Z 28.1 39.¢
Loss from continuing operations (5.2) (10.0 (5.4
Adjustments to reconcile loss from continuing ogierss to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation 31.z 33.¢ 35.€
Amortization 29.¢ 29.2 30.C
Loss on early extinguishment of debt, net 1t — 4.€
Stock-based compensation expense 5.1 5.C 7.2
Deferred income taxes 7.€ (5.€ (10.9)
Retirement plans 4.€ 7.5 9.4
Interest rate swap contracts 5.C 8.C 6.5
Other, net 3.C 5.1 (3.0
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acqaisiti
Receivables (17.6) (13.6) 2.C
Inventories (6.0 24.7 44.:
Other current assets and other noncurrent assets 13.t 1.¢ 32.t
Accounts payable and other liabilities 4.7 (33.7) (55.5)
Net cash provided by operating activities 76.¢ 52.1 97.¢
Investing activities:
Capital expenditures (31.9 (23.3) (21.9)
Acquisitions (1.9 (9.2) —
Proceeds from sales of assets 0.3 1.1 55.C
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (32.9 (31.9) 33.2
Financing activities:
Debt borrowings 0.€ 0.7 270.k
Debt paid or repurchased (57.9) (15.0 (318.5
Common stock issued 0.2 1.C 1.C
Payment of deferred financing fees — (0.9 (9.9
Dividends paid (11.0 (10.9 (10.9)
Other (0.7 1.7 1.7
Net cash used in financing activities (68.1) (22.9 (65.9)
Net cash flows from discontinued operations:
Operating activities (43.3) (12.2) (34.7)
Investing activities 87.t (8.4) (9.€)
Net cash provided by (used in) discontinued opeanati 44.2 (20.¢) (44.9)
Effect of currency exchange rate changes on cash 1kt (0.9 1.3
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 22.C (23.0 22.¢
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 61.C 84.C 61.€
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 83.C § 61.C $ 84.C

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftimsolidated financial statements.
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MUELLER WATER PRODUCTS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Organization

Mueller Water Products, Inc., a Delaware corporgtiogether with its consolidated subsidiariesrafs in two business segments: Mueller
Co. and Anvil. Mueller Co. manufactures valvesv@ter and gas systems, including butterfly, irotegepping, check, plug and ball valves, as
well as dry-barrel and wet-barrel fire hydrants antstoad range of metering, leak detection and papelition assessment products and services for
the water infrastructure industry. Anvil manufaetsiand sources a broad range of products incladirmgiety of fittings, couplings, hangers and
related products. The “Company,” “we,” “us” or “duefer to Mueller Water Products, Inc. and its sidiaries or their management. With regard to
the Company's segments, “we,” “us” or “our” mayoatefer to the segment being discussed or its neanegt.

On April 1, 2012 , we sold our former U.S. Pipersegt to USP Holdings Inc., an affiliate of WynnothuCapital, Ltd (“Wynnchurch”). U.S.
Pipe's results of operations have been reclassifietiscontinued operations, and its assets apitities reclassified as held for sale, for allquri
periods.

Our consolidated financial statements are preparednformity with accounting principles generadlgcepted in the United States of America
(“GAAP™), which require us to make certain estinsatand assumptions that affect the reported amatigissets, liabilities, sales and expenses and
the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilfideshe reporting periods. Actual results coulffetifrom those estimates. All significant
intercompany balances and transactions have beeimaled. Certain reclassifications have been ntageeviously reported amounts to conforr
the current presentation.

Unless the context indicates otherwise, wheneverefer to a particular year, we mean the fiscal yraled or ending September 30 in that
particular calendar year.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policie

Revenue RecognitieRRevenue is recognized when delivery of productsdteurred or services have been rendered andisheeesuasive
evidence of a sales arrangement, selling pricexa@ or determinable and collectibility is reaabty assured. Revenue is reported net of estin
discounts, returns and rebates as “net sales.”

Shipping and Handlingcosts to ship products to customers are includedsh of sales. Amounts billed to customers, if,doycover shipping
and handling costs are included in net sales.

Stock-based Compensatidbempensation expense for stock-based awards gremesdployees and directors is based on the faiewa the
grant dates for most of our outstanding stock-baseapensation awards, and is based on the faie\atleach reporting date for our Phantom Plan
awards. See Note 12 for more information regardimgstock-based compensation. Stock-based comjamsapense is a component of selling,
general and administrative expenses.

Cash and Cash Equivalent&H highly liquid investments with remaining mattieis of 90 days or less when purchased are cladsif cash
equivalents. Where there is no right of offset agatash balances, outstanding checks are inciadeztounts payable. At September 30, 284@
2011, checks issued but not yet presented toahkstfor payment were $4.6 million and $5.3 milliaespectively, and were included in
accounts payable.

ReceivablesReceivables relate primarily to amounts due frost@mers. To reduce credit risk, credit investigaiare generally performed
prior to accepting orders from new customers arftbnanecessary, letters of credit, bonds or ottetriments are required to ensure payment.

The estimated allowance for doubtful receivabldsaised upon judgments and estimates of expectselslesd specific identification of
problem accounts. Significantly weaker than anéiteéd industry or economic conditions could imparstomers' ability to pay such that actual
losses may be greater than the amounts provided fbis allowance. The periodic evaluation of #sequacy of the allowance for doubtful
receivables is based on an analysis of prior cidle@xperience, specific customer creditworthireasd current economic trends within the
industries served. In circumstances where we expspecific customer's inability to meet its fin@hobligations (e.g., bankruptcy filings or
substantial downgrading of credit ratings), we rd@ specific allowance to reduce the receivablbécamount management reasonably believes
will be collected.
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The following table summarizes information concegnour allowance for doubtful receivables.

2012 2011 2010
(in millions)

Balance at beginning of year $ 48 % 52 % 3.C
Provision charged (credited) to expense 0.€ (0.7) 04
Balances written off, net of recoveries (0.2) (0.9 (0.9
Reclassifications 0.4 — 2.7
Other — (0.7) —

Balance at end of year $ 57 % 48 % 5.3

Inventoriesdnventories are recorded at the lower of firstfirst-out method cost or market value. We evalwateinventory in terms of excess
and obsolete exposures. This evaluation includels factors as anticipated usage, inventory turnameentory levels and ultimate product sales
value. Inventory cost includes an overhead compiothen is affected by levels of production and attosts incurred. Management periodically
evaluates the effects of production levels andsceapitalized as part of inventory.

The following table summarizes information concegnour inventory reserves.

2012 2011 2010
(in millions)

Balance at beginning of year $ 15C $ i7e @ 20.C
Provision charged to expense 1.8 1.2 1.7
Amounts written off 2.3 2.7) (3.9
Other 0.1 (1.6) (1.0)

Balance at end of year $ 14€ $ 15C $ 17.5

Prepaid Expense$irepaid expenses include maintenance supplieatidg costs. Costs for perishable tools and maariee items are
expensed when put into service. Costs for morebiieiitems are amortized over their estimated udefes, ranging from 3 to 10 years.

Property, Plant and Equipmerfroperty, plant and equipment is recorded at &&ss$,accumulated depreciation. Depreciation isroszbusing
the straight-line method over the estimated udafes$ of the assets. Estimated useful lives artoD years for land improvements, 10 to 40 years
for buildings and 3 to 15 years for machinery egdipment. Leasehold improvements and capitalieasds are depreciated using the straight-line
method over the lesser of the useful life of theetisr the remaining lease term. Gains and logs&s disposition are reflected in operating results
in the period of disposition.

Direct internal and external costs to implement potar systems and software are capitalized. Caathbosts are depreciated over the
estimated useful life of the system or softwar@egally 3 to 5years, beginning when site installation or modldeelopment is complete and re:
for use.

Liabilities are recognized at fair value for agsgirement obligations related to plant and lahdfisures in the period in which they are
incurred and the carrying amounts of the relatedlived assets are correspondingly increased. @wer; the liabilities are accreted to their
estimated future values. At September 30, 201228d4d , asset retirement obligations were $3.5onilind $3.4 million , respectively.

Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assbtanagement tests intangible assets that have afinitd life for impairment annually (or
more frequently if events or circumstances indigatssible impairment). We perform our annual impaint testing at September 1. Finite-lived
intangible assets are amortized over their respeestimated useful lives and reviewed for impairhieevents or circumstances indicate possible
impairment.

Management tests goodwill for possible impairmgnfiftst determining the fair value of the relategborting unit and comparing this value to
the recorded net assets of the reporting unituding goodwill. Fair value is determined using anbination of a discounted cash flow model and
stock market comparable valuations for a peer godigpmpanies. Significant judgments and estimatest be made when estimating future cash
flows, determining the appropriate discount raté @entifying appropriate comparable companies.
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Workers Compensatio®ur exposure to workers compensation claims isgdigdimited to $1 millionper incident. Liabilities, including tho
related to claims incurred but not reported, acemded principally using annual valuations basediesoounted future expected payments and using
historical data combined with insurance industriadahen historical data is limited. We are indenedifoy a predecessor to Tyco International Ltd.
for all Mueller Co. and Anvil workers compensati@bilities related to incidents that occurred ptio August 16, 1999. See Note 18. We retained
U.S. Pipe workers compensation liabilities relateihcidents that occurred prior to April 1, 20b2t the Purchaser has agreed to reimburse us for
up to $11.8 million in payments we make relatethzse liabilities. See Note 5. On an undiscoungesilsh workers compensation liabilities were
$22.6 million and $25.4 million at September 3012@nd 2011 , respectively. On a discounted basigkers compensation liabilities were $20.0
million and $22.4 million at September 30, 2012 206d1 , respectively.

We apply a discount rate at a risk-free interet, generally a U.S. Treasury bill rate, for eaoliqy period. The rate used is one with a
duration that corresponds to the weighted averageated payout period for each policy period. Camckscount rate is applied to a policy period, it
remains the discount rate for that policy periotllal claims are paid.

Warranty CostsWe accrue for warranty expenses that can includtomer costs of repair and/or replacement, inclytibor, materials,
equipment, freight and reasonable overhead costsadttue for the estimated cost of product wararst the time of sale if such costs are
determined to be reasonably estimable at that Mf@ranty cost estimates are revised throughouicaigbe warranty periods as better information
regarding warranty costs becomes available.

Activity in accrued warranty, reported as part tifes current liabilities, is presented below.

2012 2011 2010
(in millions)

Balance at beginning of year $ 2C $ 1t $ 2.C
Warranty expense 14 1.€ 1.2
Warranty payments (1.8 (2.2) 1.9

Balance at end of year $ 1€ $ 2C $% 1t

Deferred Financing Feescosts of debt financing are charged to expensetbedife of the related financing agreements, Wwhignge from 5
to 10 years. Remaining costs and the future peried which they would be charged to expense assesaed when amendments to the related
financing agreements or prepayments occur.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activiti€hanges in the fair value of derivative instrumextsounted for as effective cash-flow hedges
are recorded to accumulated other comprehensige Gmins and losses on derivative instruments ualtfging as effective cash-flow hedges,
representing hedge ineffectiveness and hedge caenpoexcluded from the assessment of effectivearesecognized in earnings in the periods in
which they occur.

Income TaxedDeferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assetsracognized for the expected future tax consemseoicevents that have been
included in the financial statements or tax retugch liabilities and assets are determined basebe differences between the financial statement
basis and the tax basis of assets and liabililiggg tax rates in effect for the years in whioh differences are expected to reverse. A valuation
allowance is provided if, based upon the availabidence, it is more likely than not that somelbofthe deferred tax assets will not be realized.

We only record tax benefits for positions that mgeraent believes are more likely than not of beigjaned under audit based solely on the
technical merits of the associated tax positiore aimount of tax benefit recognized for any positlaat meets the more likely than not threshold is
the largest amount of the tax benefit that we belie greater than 50% likely of being realized.

Environmental Expenditure¥¥e capitalize environmental expenditures that iaseethe life or efficiency of noncurrent assetthat reduce or
prevent environmental contamination. We accrueefaironmental expenses resulting from existing @@t that relate to past operations when
the costs are probable and reasonably estimablargi@demnified under an agreement with a predeces Tyco for certain environmental
liabilities that existed at August 16, 1999. Sedd\18.

Research and DevelopmeResearch and development costs are expensed agthcu
Advertising-Advertising costs are expensed as incurred.

Translation of Foreign CurrencyAssets and liabilities of o ur businesses who setfanal currency is other than the U.S. dollartemeslated
into U.S. dollars using currency exchange ratéBeabalance sheet date. Revenues and expensearestated at average currency exchange rates
during the period. Foreign currency translatiomgaind losses are reported as a
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component of accumulated other comprehensive @ais and losses resulting from foreign currenaggactions are included in operating results
as incurred.

Note 3. Identifiable Intangible Assets

Identifiable intangible assets are presented below.

September 30,
2012 2011
(in millions)
Cost:
Finite-lived intangible assets:
Technology $ 79.2 % 79.3
Customer relationships and other 398.2 397.7
Indefinite-lived intangible assets:
Trade names and trademarks 299.7 299t
7772 776.
Accumulated amortization:
Technology (53.5) (45.5)
Customer relationships (150.0) (128.¢)
(203.5 (a74.9)
Net book value $ 573.0 § 602.4

At September 30, 2012 , the remaining weightedagyeamortization period for the finite-lived intédllg assets was 10.2 years. Amortization
expense related to finite-lived intangible asseds $29.4 million , $29.2 million and $30.0 millifor 2012 , 2011 and 2010 , respectively.
Amortization expense for each of the next five gaarscheduled to be $29.5 million in 2013 , $28illion in 2014 , $27.2 million in 2015, $21.9
million in 2016 and $21.9 million in 2017 .

Note 4. Acquisition and Goodwiill

On December 14, 2010, we acquired Echologics Ergimg Inc., a water leak detection and pipe coodiissessment company headquartered
in Toronto, Canada, for $7.9 million in cash, whicbluded $1.5 million placed in escrow relategélier indemnifications. During the quarter
ended December 31, 2011, we resolved one of twaegencies in our favor and reduced the purchese by $0.5 million , which reduced the
associated goodwill balance to zero . During 2042 released the remaining $1.0 million from esctouhe sellers. We have included the
operating results of the business in Mueller Cteative December 14, 2010. The fair values of #lated assets and liabilities are presented below,
in millions.

Assets acquired:

Receivables $ 0.2
Inventories 0.1
Other current assets 0.2
Property, plant, and equipment 0.1
Identifiable intangible assets 7.3
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and other current liabilities (0.2
Deferred income taxes (0.9

$ 7.4

Identifiable intangible assets consisted of tragimes and trademarks of $0.6 million that have indefuseful lives and technology of $6.7
million that has an estimated useful life of 15ngea
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The change in the carrying amount of goodwill ia yfear ended September 30, 2012 is presented below.

Mueller Co. Anvil Total
(in millions)

Balances at September 30, 2011:
Gross goodwill $ 717.¢ 3% 927 % 810.t
Accumulated impairment (717.9) (92.7) (810.0
0.5 — 0.5
Purchase price adjustment (0.5) — (0.5

Balances at September 30, 2012:
Gross goodwill 717.% 92.7 810.(
Accumulated impairment (717.9) (92.7) (810.0
$ — 3 — 3 =

Note 5. Discontinued Operations, Assets Held for Sale andiestitures

U.S. PipeOn April 1, 2012 , we sold our former U.S. Pipersegt and received proceeds of $94.0 million in cashject to adjustments, and
the agreement by the purchaser to reimburse wexfmnditures to settle certain previously-existiapilities estimated at $10.1 million at March
31, 2012. We believe there are net additional @sgelprice adjustments related to net working clagitd net indebtedness that would increase the
purchase price by $9.2 million . However, the Pasght has claimed net purchase price adjustmeatedelb net working capital and net
indebtedness that would reduce the purchase pyiéd 8 million. This dispute will be resolved by an independewditar who has been selected
the parties, and we cannot make a reliable estiofatdnat the resolution may be. The resolutionhef purchase price adjustments dispute will li
result in an adjustment to our recorded loss om shtliscontinued operations.

There were no assets or liabilities held for salgeptember 30, 2012 . The table below presentsaimponents of the balance sheet accounts
classified as assets and liabilities held for sal8eptember 30, 2011 , in millions.

Assets:
Cash $ 0.2
Receivables, net 73.4
Inventories 61.¢
Other current assets 6.€
Total current assets held for sale $ 142.C
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 98.1
Identifiable intangible assets 8.t
Other noncurrent assets 1.1
Total noncurrent assets held for sale $ 107.%
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 48.F
Other current liabilities 8.4
Total current liabilities held for sale $ 56.€
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The table below represents a summary of the opegragisults for the U.S. Pipe discontinued operatidimese operating results do not reflect
what they would have been had U.S. Pipe not bexssifled as discontinued operations.

2012 2011 2010
(in millions)
Net sales $ 197.C $ 374.¢ % 377.¢
Cost of sales 197.¢ 388.¢ 400.5
Gross loss (0.9) (14.0 (22.7)
Operating expenses 4.2 32.C 43.C
Operating loss (5.2 (46.0 (65.7)
Interest expense 0.2 — —
Loss on sale of discontinued operations 119.7 — —
Income tax benefit (21.9 (17.9 (25.9)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax $ (103.2) $ (28.) $ (39.9)

Certain assets, liabilities and activities previgw@ssociated with our former U.S. Pipe segmenteHhmen retained by the Company, including
ownership of certain real property and retentioperfision and other postretirement obligations tpleyees of U.S. Pipe. Cash flows associated

with some of these items are anticipated to cortindefinitely, but they are not clearly and clgsalated to the future operations of U.S. Pipe
under its new owners.

Picoma.ln November 2009, Anvil sold certain assets of Riapits former electrical fittings business, in lege for cash and certain assets of

Seminole Tubular Company that complement Anvilistexg mechanical pipe nipple business. A pre-taix @f $1.6 million was recorded during
2010 to selling, general and administrative expgiseonnection with this transaction.

MFC. In January 2010, Anvil sold its Canadian wholeshdtribution business for $40.3 million , includipgst-closing adjustments, and
recorded a pre-tax gain of $2.8 million to selliggneral and administrative expenses. Anvil algered into a 3% year supply agreement with the

buyer requiring the buyer to purchase at leastaifipd amount of products from Anvil at marketest

Note 6. Income Taxe:

The components of income (loss) before income takepresented below.

2012 2011 2010
(in millions)
u.s. $ 0.1 $ (15.2) $ (20.7)
Non-U.S. 2.8 2.3 7.8
Income (loss) before income taxes $ 27 % 129 $ 2.9
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Income tax expense (benefit) is presented below.

2012 2011 2010
(in millions)
Current:

U.S. federal $ 0z $ 3.€ % 10.7
U.S. state and local (2.0) (0.€) (0.5)
Non-U.S. 1.1 (0.2) 2.€
0.2 3.C 12.¢

Deferred:
U.S. federal (0.€) (5.7) (8.2)
U.S. state and local 9.C (0.2) (2.0
Non-U.S. (0.6) — (0.2)
7.€ (5.9 (10.3)
Income tax expense (benefit) $ 7¢ $ 29 $ 2.5

The reconciliation between income tax expense (it¢aethe U.S. federal statutory income tax rael reported income tax expense (benefit)
is presented below.

2012 2011 2010
(in millions)
Tax at U.S. federal statutory income tax rate ¢35 $ 0c $ 45 $ (1.0
Adjustments to reconcile to income tax expensedfgn
State valuation allowance, net of federal benefit 5. — 0.1
Nondeductible compensation 1.4 1.2 1.2
State income taxes, net of federal benefit (0.8 (0.5) (2.¢)
Other nondeductible expenses 0.7 0.t 0.€
Foreign income taxes (0.9 0.2 (0.9
Tax credits (0.7 0.9 —
Federal reserves and other — — 1.2
Repatriation of foreign earnings — — 2.C
U.S. manufacturing deduction — — 0.t
Other 0.2 0.4 —
Income tax expense (benefit) $ 7 % 29 % 2.t
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Deferred income tax assets (liabilities) are presstbelow.

September 30,
2012 2011
(in millions)
Deferred income tax assets:
Receivable reserves $ 0.8 $ 1.C
Inventory reserves 13.5 14.¢
Accrued expenses 19.£ 18.€
Pension and other postretirement benefits 24.7 17.t
Stock compensation 7.C 7.2
State net operating losses 16.¢ 13.2
Federal net operating losses and credit carryovers 65.1 40.4
All other 0.c 1.¢
148.c 114.¢
Valuation allowance (49.2) 2.9
Total deferred income tax assets 99.1 113.1
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Identifiable intangible assets (206.9 (213.¢)
Property, plant and equipment (5.9 (25.0
Total deferred income tax liabilities (212.9) (238.6)
Net deferred income tax liabilities $ (1139 $ (125.5)

After including the tax effect of the loss on tlaesof U.S. Pipe, our deferred tax liabilities arsufficient to fully support our deferred tax
assets, which include net operating loss carryfotaia Accordingly, we recorded income tax expensestablish valuation allowances related to
deferred tax assets during 2012 . GAAP requirgs aflocate a portion of the valuation allowancarge relating to deferred tax assets to
continuing operations.

Our net operating loss carryforwards remain avéeléd offset future taxable earnings. Our stateopetrating losses expire between 2013 and
2032 , with 90% of the state net operating losgefrieg after 2018 . Our federal net operating éssexpire between 2030 and 2032 .
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The components of income tax expense (benefithyears ended September 30, 2012 , 2011 andas28Xfovided below.

2012
Continuing Discontinue
operations operations
(in millions)
Expense (benefit) from operations $ 14 $ (4
Valuation allowance-related expense 6.5 2
Other items —
Income tax expense (benefit) $ 7¢ % (2
2011
Continuing Discontinue
operations operations
(in millions)
Benefit from operations $ (34 $ a
Valuation allowance-related expense 0.t
Income tax benefit $ 2 $ (1
2010
Continuing Discontinue
operations operations
(in millions)
Benefit from operations $ 01 3 (2
Valuation allowance-related expense 0.4
Other items®® 2.2
Income tax expense (benefit) $ 28§ (2

(1) During 2010, the Company repatriated excesk fram the disposal of Anvil's Canadian distribatbusiness, resulting in $2.0 million
additional U.S. tax and $0.2 million of additiomagt foreign tax.

The cumulative amount of undistributed earningfoodign subsidiaries for which United States incdmees have not been provided was
$54.3 million at September 30, 2012 . It is notrently practical to estimate the amount of unreézephUnited States income taxes that might be
payable on the repatriation of these earnings.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amswiftgross unrecognized tax benefits is presergtmhb

2012 2011
(in millions)
Balance at beginning of year $ 7€ % 1
Increases related to prior year positions 0.€
Decreases related to prior year positions (0.2 (
Decreases due to lapse in statute of limitations (2.5) (
Increases related to current year positions —
Payments and settlements (1.9 (
Balance at end of year $ 432 %

All unrecognized tax benefits would, if recognizedpact the effective tax rate.

After including the tax effect of the loss on ttaesof U.S. Pipe, our net reversing deferred taxlits are insufficient to fully support our
deferred tax assets, which include net operatisg tarryforwards. After considering all sourceawdilable income, including tax planning
strategies, we concluded that a valuation allowaver® necessary to reduce our net reversing
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deferred tax assets to zero. Accordingly, we reztbidcome tax expense to establish valuation ahoes related to deferred tax assets. GAAP
requires us to allocate a portion of the valuatibowance charge relating to deferred tax assedeptember 30, 201t continuing operations, wil
the remaining valuation allowances charged agamisimum pension liability in accumulated other coefensive loss and to discontinued
operations. The allocation to these categoriestischin the table below.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending deddrtax valuation allowances is presented below.

2012 2011
(in millions)

Balance at beginning of year $ 12 %

Increase charged to continuing operations 6.t

Increase charged to discontinued operations 26.7

Increase charged to accumulated other compreheinsiome 15.2

Expired items (0.5 (
Balance at end of year $ 492 %

Income tax expense for 2012 includes $5.9 milligpense related to a valuation allowance providedefarred tax assets existing at
September 30, 2011 and $0.6 million associated e¥#tutive stock compensation that is limited pansto Section 162 of the Internal Revenue
Code.

We expect to settle certain state income tax awditsn the next 12 months and believe it is readdy possible that these audit settlements
will reduce the gross unrecognized tax benefit$@pg million .

We recognize interest related to uncertain taxtjpos as interest expense and recognize any pesaiturred as a component of selling,
general and administrative expenses. At Septenthe2®2 and 2011 , we had $0.9 million and $1.8onil, respectively of accrued interest
expense related to unrecognized tax benefits.

The federal income tax returns for Mueller Co. amdil are closed for years prior to 2005. U.S. Fpsubject to statute extension agreements
that may be applicable to Walter Energy, and weaiariiable for any tax related to U.S. Pipe purguarthe terms of our sale of those businesses.
See Note 18. During 2012 , the Internal Revenuei&e(“IRS”) completed its audit of our income taeturns filed for 2010, 2009, 2008 and 2007.
The IRS audit resulted in no additional tax litili

Our state income tax returns are generally clogegidars prior to 2006. Our Canadian income taxrnstare generally closed for years prior to
2005 . We are currently under audit by severaéstat various levels of completion. We do not heawe material unpaid assessments.

Note 7. Borrowing Arrangements

The components of our long-term debt are preserdéniv.

September 30,
2012 2011
(in millions)

ABL Agreement $ — % 34.C
8.75% Senior Unsecured Notes 199.¢ 221.%
7.375% Senior Subordinated Notes 420.( 420.(
Other 2.¢ 2.€
622.¢ 678.:
Less current portion (2.7 0.9
Long-term debt $ 6217 $ 677.¢

ABL Agreement At September 30, 2012 , our asset based lendiregment (the “ABL Agreement”) consisted of a reumj credit facility for
up to $275 million of revolving credit borrowingswing line loans and letters of credit. The ABL Agment also permits us to increase the size of
the credit facility by an additional $150 million certain circumstances subject to adequate banphase availability. We may borrow up to $25
million through swing line loans and may have u®&® million of letters of credit outstanding. Wa&timate the carrying value of the borrowings
under the ABL Agreement
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approximates the fair value.

Borrowings under the ABL Agreement bear interest Hibating rate equal to LIBOR plus a margin rawggirom 275 to 325 basis points, or a
base rate, as defined in the ABL Agreement, ploeegin ranging from 175 to 225 basis points. Att8efoer 30, 2012 , the applicable rate was
LIBOR plus 300 basis points.

The ABL Agreement terminates in August 2015 . We @paommitment fee of 50 basis points for any udus@rowing capacity and our
obligations are secured by a first-priority peréettien on all of our U.S. inventory, accounts reakle, certain cash and other supporting
obligations. Borrowings are not subject to any iicial maintenance covenants unless excess aviilabiless than the greater of $34 million or
12.5% of the aggregate commitments under the ABtegignent. Excess availability based on Septembe2®(® data, as reduced by outstanding
borrowings, outstanding letters of credit and aedrfees and expenses of $37.8 million , was $1#dl®n .

8.75% Senior Unsecured Notdhe 8.75% Senior Unsecured Notes (the “Senior UnmselcNotes”mature in September 2020 and bear int
at 8.75% , paid semi-annually. The Senior Unsecbhieés balance at September 30, 2012 is net ofRi6n of unamortized discount. Based on
quoted market prices, the outstanding Senior Unselddotes had a fair value of $227.8 million att8egber 30, 2012 .

We may redeem up to $22.5 million of the Seniorédused Notes at a redemption price of 1q8&%& accrued and unpaid interest once thrc
September 1, 2013 . We may also redeem up to $5iliBn of the Senior Unsecured Notes at a redeomptirice of 108.75% , plus accrued and
unpaid interest, with the net cash proceeds fraotaiceequity offerings prior to September 2013 vided that at least $146.2 million remains
outstanding immediately after such redemption. tegust 2015 , we may redeem the Senior Unseddogess at specified redemption prices plus
accrued and unpaid interest. Upon a Change of Gidjais defined in the indenture securing the Sedisecured Notes), we are required to offer to
purchase the outstanding Senior Unsecured Notepatchase price of 101% plus accrued and unptaceist. The Senior Unsecured Notes are
subordinate to borrowings under the ABL Agreement.

The indenture securing the Senior Unsecured Nateaims customary covenants and events of defaaltiding covenants that limit our
ability to incur debt, pay dividends and make inments. Substantially all of our U.S. subsidiagearantee the Senior Unsecured Notes. We
believe we were compliant with these covenantsegate8nber 30, 2012 and expect to remain in compidmough September 30, 2013 .

7.375% Senior Subordinated Not&be 7.375% Senior Subordinated Notes (the “Senibo&linated Notes”) mature in June 2017 and bear
interest at 7.375% , paid semi-annually. Basedumiagl market prices, the outstanding Senior Subatéld Notes had a fair value®£30.5 million
at September 30, 2012 .

We may redeem any portion of the Senior Subordihbigtes at specified redemption prices plus accameblunpaid interest, subject to
restrictions in the Senior Unsecured Notes. Up@hange of Control (as defined in the indenture Seguhe Senior Subordinated Notes), we are
required to offer to purchase the outstanding Sedibordinated Notes at a purchase price of 104f4s,accrued and unpaid interest. The Senior
Subordinated Notes are subordinate to the borravimgler the ABL Agreement and the Senior UnsecNatds.

The indenture securing the Senior Subordinated\miatains customary covenants and events of deifiacilding covenants that limit our
ability to incur debt, pay dividends and make inments. Substantially all of our U.S. subsidiagaesrantee the Senior Subordinated Notes. We
believe we were compliant with these covenantsegatenber 30, 2012 and expect to remain in compidmough September 30, 2013 .

Future maturities of outstanding borrowings at 8eyiter 30, 2012 for each of the following years$ird million for 2013 , $1.0 million for
2014 , $0.6 million for 2015 , $0.2 million for 281 $420.0 million for 2017 and $202.5 million af2d17 .

Note 8. Derivative Financial Instruments

Our ongoing business operations expose us to coltynmwite risk, interest rate risk and foreign @mecy exchange risk, which we have
managed to some extent using derivative instrum&yéshave used natural gas swap contracts to mahag@mmodity price risk associated with
purchases of natural gas used in certain of oulufaaturing processes, interest rate swap conttactenage interest rate risk associated with our
variable-rate borrowings and foreign currency favexchange contracts to manage foreign currenclyagge risk associated with our Canadian
operations. During 2010 , we terminated all of @maining interest rate swap contracts and setteanly outstanding foreign currency forward
contract, and no new interest rate or foreign awayecontracts have been initiated. During 2012 tevminated our remaining natural gas swap
contract.
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We had designated our natural gas swap contradtmtarest rate swap contracts as cash flow heofgesr purchases of natural gas and
interest payments, respectively. As a result, ¢oetktent the hedges were effective, the changigeifair value of these contracts prior to settleime
were reported as a component of other comprehelussgeand reclassified into earnings in the perahging which the hedged transactions affe
earnings. Gains and losses on those contractsespineg either hedge ineffectiveness or hedge caemie excluded from the assessment of
effectiveness were recognized in earnings as theyroed.

Our derivative contracts were recorded at fair @alsing publicly observable data such as marketralagas prices and market interest rates.
We did not have any derivative contracts outstagdinSeptember 30, 2012 .

Natural Gas Swap Contract®©ur outstanding natural gas swap contracts ae8#yer 30, 2012 and 2011 are presented below.

September 30,
Rate benchmark 2012 2011

(MMBtu)
NYMEX natural gas — 406,00(

The effects of our natural gas swap contracts erctimsolidated statements of operations are pexséelow, net of tax.

2012 2011 2010
(in millions)
Gain (loss) reclassified from accumulated otherm@hensive loss into
discontinued operations $ — 3 01 $ 0.2
Ineffectiveness loss recognized in discontinuedatns — (0.2 (0.5)

Interest Rate Swap ContracBuring 2010 , we recorded a non-cash net credittezest expense and a pre-tax debit to accumudatest
comprehensive loss of $4.7 million related to iegtrate swap contracts that had been terminat8dptember 2009 .

The effects of our interest rate swap contracttherconsolidated statements of operations are mexs&elow, net of tax.

2012 2011 2010
(in millions)
Loss recognized in other comprehensive loss $ — % — % (0.9
Loss reclassified from accumulated other comprekengss into income 3.0 (4.9 (8.2
Ineffectiveness loss recognized in interest expense — — (0.7

Foreign Currency Forward Contract$Ve settled our only outstanding foreign currenawiird contract during 2010 with a cash payment of
$1.7 million . Gains and losses on our foreign ency forward contract were included in selling, gah, and administrative expenses, where they
offset transaction losses and gains recorded inaxion with an intercompany loan. The effectswfforeign currency forward contract on the
condensed consolidated statements of operationzesented below, net of tax.

2012 2011 2010
(in millions)
Loss recognized in income $ — % — % 0.6

Note 9. Deferred Financing Fee

Deferred financing fees of $10.7 million at SeptemB0, 2012 are scheduled to amortize as follo@€ #illionrelated to the ABL Agreeme
amortizes on a straight-line basis; $4.1 milliolated to the Senior Unsecured Notes amortizes ubmgffective-interest rate method; and $3.6
million related to the Senior Subordinated Notesdires using the effective-interest rate methdtiséch amortization is over the remaining term
of the respective debt.
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Note 10. Retirement Plans

We have various pension and other retirement plamering substantially all our employees (the “Rem$lans”). We fund the Pension Plans
in accordance with their requirements and, whepiegble, in amounts sufficient to satisfy the minim funding requirements of applicable laws.
The Pension Plans provide benefits based on yéaesrvice and compensation or at stated amountsafcin year of service.

We also provide certain postretirement benefiteiothan pensions, primarily healthcare, to eligielrees. Our postretirement benefit plans
are funded as benefits are paid.

On April 1, 2012 , we changed certain provisionswf pension and postretirement benefit plans tiffgd).S. Pipe participants in these plans.
These changes vested all accumulated pension tseaefi then froze the plan such that no additipeation benefits would accumulate.
Postretirement medical benefits will substantiahyase on December 31, 2012 . As a result of thesésjfpn changes, we remeasured the funded
status of our U.S. pension plan and our other ptistment benefit plans in 2012 . We recorded a&ipencurtailment expense of $0.2 milliand ar
other postretirement benefit plan curtailment gdi$2.4 million , which are included in loss froriscbntinued operations for 2012 .

We froze the participation of new entrants into Bension Plans for all remaining U.S. employeeX)ihl . This amendment decreased our
pension and postretirement benefit liabilities BP$ million and $1.8 million , respectively, aresulted in an after-tax decrease in accumulated
other comprehensive loss of $19.7 million . We atsmorded a pension plan curtailment expense af idlion .

We closed U.S. Pipe's North Birmingham facility2@d10 and recorded pension curtailment expense.6filion and an other postretirement
benefit plan curtailment gain of $1.8 million irsdontinued operations. We also recorded $0.4 milliettlement cost for the divestiture of Anvil's
Canadian wholesale distribution business. See Blfite more information on this divestiture.

The measurement date for all Pension Plans and jptis¢retirement plans was September 30 .

Information for Pension Plans with accumulated fiepnbligations in excess of plan assets is preskbelow.

September 30,

2012 2011
(in millions)
Projected benefit obligations $ 4452 % 377.%
Accumulated benefit obligations 445.( 375.2
Fair value of plan assets 383.2 326.¢

Information for Pension Plans with accumulated fienbligations less than plan assets is presenédaiv.

September 30,

2012 2011
(in millions)
Projected benefit obligations $ 31 % 4.C
Accumulated benefit obligations 3.1 4.C
Fair value of plan assets 3.¢ 5.C

F-19




Table of Contents

Index to Financial Statements

The components of net periodic benefit cost (gaie)presented below.

Pension Plans

2012 2011 2010
(in millions)

Service cost $ 1€ $ 28 % 3.€
Interest cost 20.2 21.2 21.1
Expected return on plan assets (24.0) (23.9 (21.7)
Amortization of prior service cost (gain) 0.€ 0.€ 0.7
Amortization of net loss (gain) 6.C 5.¢ 8.8
Curtailment / special settlement loss (gain) 0.2 0.7 3.C
Costs allocated to discontinued operations (2.2) (4.9 (9.7)

Net periodic benefit cost (gain) $ 37 % 32 % 5.8

Amounts recognized for our Pension Plans and gibsiretirement benefit plans are presented below.

Pension Plans Other Plans
2012 2011 2012 2011
(in millions)
Projected benefit obligations:

Beginning of year $ 381 % 398.¢ $ 37 % 6.7
Service cost 1.8 2.t — 0.1
Interest cost 20.z 21.2 0.2 0.2
Plan amendment — — (1.4 —
Actuarial loss (gain) 71.€ (12.9 (0.7) (1.0
Benefits paid (24.7) (24.2) (0.€) (0.5
Currency translation 0.€ (0.7 — —
Decrease in obligation due to curtailment (2.9) (4.€) — 2.9
Other 0.2 — — —

End of year $ 448.5 % 381.: % 1€ % 3.7

Accumulated benefit obligations at end of year $ 448.1 $ 379.5 % 1€ % 3.7
Plan assets:

Beginning of year $ 331¢ $ 3131 % — 3 —
Actual return on plan assets 58.2 19.€ — —
Employer contributions 21.z 23.2 0.€ 0.t
Currency translation 0.t — — —
Benefits paid (24.9) (24.2) (0.6 (0.5)

End of year $ 387.1 % 331.¢ % —  $ —

Accrued benefit cost at end of year:

Unfunded status $ 612 $ (49.5) $ 1.8 $ 3.7

Recognized on balance sheet:

Other noncurrent assets $ 0c $ 1C $ — $ =
Other current liabilities — 0.9 (0.2 (0.5)
Other noncurrent liabilities (62.7) (50.2) 1.6 3.2
$ 612 $ (49.5) $ (1.6) $ 3.7

Recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss

before tax:

Prior year service cost (gain) $ 02 $ 07 $ 05 % 3.9
Net actuarial loss (gain) 136.¢ 108.Z (4.6 (13.9)
$ 1372 % 108.¢ $ (5.) $ 17.2)
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Pension and other postretirement benefits actimigccumulated other comprehensive loss, beforan@012 is presented below.

Other
postretirement
Pension benefits benefits
(in millions)

Balance at beginning of year $ 108.¢ $ (17.2)
Amounts reclassified as amortization of net pedantist:

Gain (loss) amortization (8.€) 9.C

Prior year service gain (loss) amortization andailment (0.€) 4.€

Net prior service costs 0.1 (2.9

Loss (gain) during the year 37.t 0.

Other 0.1 —

Balance at end of year $ 1372 $ (5.3

The components of accumulated other comprehenssgerélated to pension and other postretiremergfitgthat management expects to be
amortized into net periodic benefit cost in 201r3cjuding both continuing and discontinued operagicare presented below.

Other
postretirement
Pension benefits benefits
(in millions)
Amortization of unrecognized prior year servicetqosedit) $ — 3 (0.9
Amortization of unrecognized gain (loss) (9.0 4.2)
$ 9.00 $ (4.6

The discount rates for determining the presentevafipension and other postretirement liabilitiesevselected using a “bond settlement”
approach, which constructs a hypothetical bondf@artthat could be purchased such that the coygayments and maturity values could be used
to satisfy the projected benefit payments. Theddist rate is the equivalent rate that resulthénpresent value of the projected benefit payments
equaling the market value of this bond portfolimlyohigh quality (AA graded or higher), non-calleldorporate bonds are included in this bond
portfolio. We rely on the Pension Plans' actuatgesssist in the development of the discount mateel.

Separate discount rates were selected for diffgriants due to differences in the timing of projddbenefit payments. The discount rate model
for the plan covering participants in the Unitedt8s reflected yields available on investmenttéUnited States, while plans covering particip
in Canada reflected yields available on investman€@anada. The discount rate for the other postreent benefit plans was remeasured at Ap
2012 to 5.00% .

Management's expected returns on plan assets smched healthcare cost trend rates were determiitedhe assistance of the Pension Plans'
actuaries and investment consultants. Expecteduetn plan assets were developed using forwakdigaeturns over a time horizon of 10 to 15
years for major asset classes along with projets&dand historical correlations.
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A summary of key assumptions for our pension ahérmpostretirement benefit plans is below.

Weighted average used to determine benefit obtigati
Discount rate
Rate of compensation increases
Weighted average used to determine net periodic cos
Discount rate
Expected return on plan assets
Rate of compensation increases
Assumed healthcare cost trend rates:
Next year — pre-65
Ultimate trend rate — pre-65
Year ultimate trend rate achieved

Plan measurement date

Pension Plans Other Plans

2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
4.21% 5.6€% 5.4&% 4.22% 5.6%% 5.44&%

3.5(% 3.5(% 3.5(% n/e n/e n/e
5.66% 5.8¢% 5.45% 5.6%% 5.8¢% 5.45%

6.95% 7.41% 7.88% n/e n/e n/e

3.5(% 3.5(% 3.5(% n/e n/e n/e
n/e n/e n/e n/e 7.5(% 7.9(%
n/e n/e n/e n/e 5.0(% 4.9(%

n/s n/e n/e n/e 201¢ 201¢

Assumed healthcare cost trend rates, discount, @tpscted return on plan assets and salary iresedfect the amounts reported for the
pension and healthcare plans. The effects of agereentage-point change in the trend rate foretlhssumptions are below.

Pension Plans:
Discount rate:

Effect on pension service and interest cost compisne

Effect on pension benefit obligations
Effect on 2013 pension expense
Expected return on plan assets:
Effect on current year pension expense
Rate of compensation increase:
Effect on pension benefit obligations
Effect on 2013 pension expense
Other plans:
Discount rate:

Effect on postretirement service and interest costponents

Effect on postretirement benefit obligations
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1 Percentage
point increase

1 Percentage
point decrease

(in millions)

03 $
(48.0)

2.7)

(3.7)

0.1
0.1

(0.3

0.4
58.7
3.2

3.8

0.4
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We maintain a single trust to hold the assets®Uts. pension plan. This trust's strategic adkmtadions, tactical range at September 30, 2012
and actual asset allocations at September 30, 28021 and 2010 , respectively, are presented below

Actual asset allocations at
September 30,

Strategic asset Tactical
allocation range 2012 2011 2010
Equity investments:
Large capitalization stocks 38% 1957%
Small capitalization stocks 8% 4-12%
International stocks 14% 7-21%
60% 50-70% 59% 46% 58%
Fixed income investments 40% 30-50% 39% 53% 3%9%
Cash —% 0-5% 2% 1% 3%
100% 100% 100% 10C%

Assets of the Pension Plans are allocated to \@ituestments to attain diversification and reabtnesk-adjusted returns while also
managing our exposure to asset and liability vithatiThese ranges are targets and deviations rmeyrdrom time to time due to market
fluctuations. Portfolio assets are typically relnaked to the allocation targets at least annually.

Following is a description of the valuation methlugpes used to measure the assets of the Pensioa &1 fair value.

» Equity investments are valued at the closing pep®rted on the active market when reliable magketations are readily available. Wt
market quotations are not readily available, assftise Pension Plans are valued by a method tiséetes of the Pension Plans believe
accurately reflects fair value.

» Bond fund investments are valued using the stpgrice reported in the active market in whichithestment is traded or based on yields
currently available on comparable securities aféss with similar credit ratings.

» Other investments are valued as determined byrtlstees of the Pension Plans based on their nett\adses and supported by the valu
the underlying securities and by the unit priceacifial purchase and sale transactions occurriogadse to the financial statement date.

The assets of the Pension Plans at September B9,a2@ 2011 , by level within the fair value hietar, are presented below, in millions.

September 30, 2012

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(in millions)

Equity:
International Funds $ — 3 106 $ — ¢ 10.€
Large Cap Growth funds — 15.€ — 15.€
Large Cap Value funds — 30.4 — 30.4
S&P Midcap index funds — 5.2 — 5.2
Smallcap index funds — 31.1 — 31.1
Mutual funds 134.. — — 134..
Total equity 134.¢ 92.¢ — 227.:
Bond funds — 151.3 — 151.3
Cash and cash equivalents 0.2 6.€ — 7.C
Other — — iLE iLE
Total $ 134¢ % 251.C % 15 387.1
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September 30, 2011

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(in millions)

Equity:
Large cap growth funds $ — 8 75 % —  $ 7.t
Large cap value funds — 72 — 7.3
S&P Midcap index funds — 2.2 — 2.2
Mutual funds 137.1 — — 137.1
Total equity 137.1 17.C — 154.1
Bond funds — 172.7 — 172.5
Cash 0.2 3.2 — 3.t
Other — — iLE iLE
Total $ 1372 % 193.C % 15 % 331.¢

There were no changes in the fair value of Leva$sets of the Pension Plans for 2012 .
We currently estimate contributing less than $liamlto our Pension Plans during 2013 .

The estimated benefit payments, which reflect etqubfuture service, as appropriate, are presergiedvb

Other
Pension benefits Plans
(in millions)

2013 $ 26.€ $ 0.2
2014 26.€ 0.1
2015 26.5 0.1
2016 26.t 0.1
2017 26.7 0.1
2018-2022 136.¢ 0.t

Our U.S. plan comprises 97% of the total Pensiam#$lobligation at September 30, 2012 .

Defined Contribution Retirement PlaGertain U.S. employees participate in defined ¢bation 401(k) plans. We make matching
contributions as a function of employee contribagioMatching contributions were $4.4 million , $4ndllion and $3.5 million during 2012 , 2011
and 2010, respectively. Matching contributionsevanspended from April 2009 through December 2009 .

Note 11. Capital Stock

Common stock share activity is presented below.

Shares outstanding at September 30, 2009 153,790,88
Stock options 26,34¢
Employee stock purchase plan 431,96¢
Restricted stock units, net 459,27"

Shares outstanding at September 30, 2010 154,708,47
Stock options 7,321
Employee stock purchase plan 397,01(
Restricted stock units, net 680,80:

Shares outstanding at September 30, 2011 155,793,61
Stock options 8,552
Employee stock purchase plan 339,24
Restricted stock units, net 699,24

Shares outstanding at September 30, 2012 156,840,64
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Note 12. Stock-based Compensation Plar

The Mueller Water Products, Inc. 2006 Stock Inaenilan (the “2006 Plan”) authorizes an aggregbd & million shares of common stock
that may be granted through the issuance of staskdawards. Any awards canceled are availableigsuance. Generally, all of our employees
and members of our board of directors are eligiblparticipate in the 2006 Plan. At September 8022, 8,890,767 shares of common stock were
available for future grants of awards under the&2B@n.

An award granted under the 2006 Plan becomes saéteiat such times and in such installments dsysie Compensation and Human
Resources Committee of the board of directorsnbuaward will be exercisable after the tenth amsiary of the date on which it is granted. Stock
option exercise prices equal the closing stockepoic the grant date.

Outstanding stock options generally vest on eadiivarsary date of the original grant on a pro tesis based on the total number of years
until all awards are vested, usually three yeatgstanding restricted stock units generally vestegion each anniversary date of the original grant
on a pro rata basis based on the total numberastyentil all awards are vested, usually threesjaarcliff vest after either three years or seven
years from the grant date. Awards that cliff véttraseven years generally provide for an acceteraif vesting if certain stock price performance
targets are met.

Stock awards granted since November 2007 alsaupest the participant accumulating the required nemalh points, which are a function of
age and years of service. The exercise pricegdok ®ptions outstanding at September 30, 201 2erfiogn $2.03 to $20.56 per share. Stock option
activity under the 2006 Plan is summarized below.

Weighted Weighted
average average Aggregate
exercise remaining intrinsic
price contractual value
Options per option term (years) (millions)
Outstanding at September 30, 2009 3,403,999 $ 9.3¢€ 83 $ 0.2
Granted 1,630,42. 4.91
Exercised (26,34¢) 4.4t 0.1
Canceled (283,529 8.84
Outstanding at September 30, 2010 4,724,541 7.8¢ 7.8 —
Granted 1,516,31 3.57
Exercised (7,327%) 3.3¢2 —
Canceled (608,40:) 7.7¢
Outstanding at September 30, 2011 5,625,13. 6.74 7.5 —
Granted 677,11 2.1¢
Exercised (8,552 3.5¢ —
Canceled (771,089 5.97
Outstanding at September 30, 2012 5,522,611 $ 6.3(C 6.8 $ 3.E
Exercisable at September 30, 2012 3,708,551 % 7.7¢ 6.C $ 0.€
Expected to vest after September 30, 2012 1,757,811 $ 3.34 823 § 1.€
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Restricted stock unit activity under the 2006 Rtasummarized below.

Weighted Weighted
average average Aggregate
grant date remaining intrinsic
Restricted stock fair value contractual value
units per unit term (years) (millions)
Outstanding at September 30, 2009 1,714,49. % 9.7t 23 $ 94
Granted 986,58 491
Vested (513,509 9.2C 2.5
Canceled (91,85¢) 8.0C
Outstanding at September 30, 2010 2,095,711 7.6€ 1.¢ 6.3
Granted 990,13¢ 3.6
Vested (762,89) 7.0z 2.7
Canceled (257,19) 6.4¢
Outstanding at September 30, 2011 2,065,761 6.11 1.€ 5.1
Granted 1,406,31i 2.1¢
Vested (867,45) 5.44 2.2
Canceled (180,87) 5.3¢
Outstanding at September 30, 2012 2,423,76. $ 4.1z 1C $ 11.¢
Expected to vest after September 30, 2012 2,327,37. % 4.1t 1C $ 11.4

Compensation expense attributed to stock awarossisd on the fair value of the awards on the dateted. Compensation expense is
recognized between the grant date and the vestiteyah a straight-line basis for each tranche dfi @vard. Fair values of stock option awards are
determined using a Black-Scholes model. Fair vahiesstricted stock units are determined usingcthsing stock price. The weighted average
grant-date fair values of stock options grantedtaedveighted average assumptions used to detethese fair values are indicated below.

2012 2011 2010
Grant-date fair value $ 131 % 128 % 1.6€
Risk-free interest rate 1.74% 2.2€% 2.47%
Dividend yield 1.97% 1.5 1.48%
Expected life (years) 8.0C 7.1¢ 6.0C
Expected annual volatility 0.734: 0.365¢ 0.369:

The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.8a3ury zero-coupon yield in effect at the grane déth a term equal to the expected life. The
expected dividend yield is based on our estimatedial dividend and stock price history at the gdate. The expected term represents the period
of time the awards are expected to be outstanting011 and 2010, we determined the volatility agstion for calculating the fair value of our
stock option grants based upon a group of peer aoiep. The average volatility for these peer congzamad been used as we believed our
volatility since our initial public offering in 2@was not representative of expected volatilityrdhie expected term of the option grants due to the
historically unusual volatility in our end markeisice the date of our initial public offering. 1022, we concluded that our own historical volatilit
provided a better estimate of our expected vaiatilver the expected life of options granted in2@hd beyond.

The number of instruments expected to vest isthems the number outstanding because managementdtegoee instruments will be forfeited
prior to vesting. Grants to members of our boarthefdirectors are expected to vest fully. Basetistorical forfeitures, we expect grants to others
to be forfeited at an annual rate of 4% .

The Mueller Water Products, Inc. 2006 Employee IStarchase Plan (the “ESPP”) authorizes the salg o6 4 millionshares of our commc
stock to employees. Employees may designate uettesser of $25,000 or 20% of their annual comgiéas for the purchase of our common
stock. An employee's purchase during any threedmoffiering period is limited to 1,000 shares of oammon stock. Any excess payroll
withholdings are returned to the employee. Thegpite shares purchased under the ESPP is the wB&% of closing price on the first day or the
last day of the offering period. Generally, alllftine, active employees are eligible to particgpat the ESPP.
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Under the ESPP, employees purchased 339,242 sBai#&610 shares and 335,100 shares of our commok dtiring 2012 , 2011 and 2010,
respectively. At September 30, 2012 , 2,177,336eshaere available for issuance under the ESPP.

In 2012 , the Company adopted the Mueller Watedits, Inc. Phantom Plan (the “Phantom Plan”). Fhantom Plan awards were awarded
to certain non-officer employees. Outstanding phiemnawards vest on each anniversary date of thenatigrant on a pro rata basis for three years
until all awards are vested. Phantom awards aded as liability awards and the liability recadder phantom awards was $ 0.8 million at
September 30, 2012 . The activity for 2012 is sunwed below.

Weighted Weighted
average average Aggregate
grant date remaining intrinsic
Phantom award fair value contractual value
units per unit term (years) (millions)
Outstanding at September 30, 2011 — — — —
Granted 358,86t 2.0z
Vested — —
Canceled — —
Outstanding at September 30, 2012 358,86t $ 2.0z 12 $ 1.8
Expected to vest after September 30, 2012 342,40¢ % 2.0¢ 11 % 1.7

At September 30, 2012 , there was approximatel§y #8llion of unrecognized compensation expense related ¢l siwards not yet vested. \
expect to recognize this expense over a weightethge life of approximately 1.26 years.

The effect of stock-based compensation on ourragtés of operations and other comprehensive inésmiesented below.

2012 2011 2010
(in millions, except per share data)
Decrease in operating income $ 6.C $ 5 $ 7.2
Increase in net loss 3.t 3.3 5.C
Increase in basic loss per share 0.0z 0.0z 0.0z
Increase in diluted loss per share 0.0z 0.0z 0.0z

We recorded net losses and net losses fromdoaiinuing and discontinued operations for 201@1,122and 2010 . The effect of including
normally dilutive securities in the loss per sheadculations would have been antidilutive. Theref@ill stockbased compensation instruments v
excluded from diluted loss per share calculatiem®2012 , 2011 and 2010 .
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Note 13.

Supplemental Balance Sheet Informatio

Selected supplemental balance sheet informatipresented below.

Inventories:

Purchased components and raw material
Work in process

Finished goods

Other current assets:

Maintenance and repair tooling

Current portion of Wynnchurch receivable
Prepaid income taxes

Other

Property, plant and equipment:
Land

Buildings

Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress

Accumulated depreciation

Other current liabilities:
Compensation and benefits
Customer rebates

Interest

Taxes other than income taxes
Warranty

Income taxes

Restructuring

Environmental

Other

F-28

September 30,
2012 2011

(in millions)
69.7 $ 56.2
27.5 34.¢
86.C 84.¢

183.2 $ 175.¢
22¢ % 24.2
4.3 —
3.¢ 12.€
6.S 7.C
38.C $ 43.¢
12§ 13t
71.: 70.2

292.¢ 273.1
15.2 10.4

391.: 367.Z

(246.6) (221.5

1445 $ 145.7
401 $ 33k
13.% 13.2
12.2 13.C
5.E 5.4
1.€ 2.C
1.1 —
0.€ 14
0.2 0.3
7.7 9.1
82.¢ % 77.€
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Note 14. Supplemental Statement of Operations and Other Commehensive Income Informatior

Selected supplemental statement of operations ttied comprehensive income information is presebeddw.

2012 2011 2010
(in millions)
Included in selling, general and administrativeenges:
Research and development $ 127 % 9¢ $ 7.8
Advertising $ 4¢ $ 43 % 4.1
Interest expense, net:
7.375% Senior Subordinated Notes $ 31.C % 31.C $ 31.C
8.75% Senior Unsecured Notes 19.5 20.C 2.C
2007 Credit Agreement, including swap contracts 5.C 8.C 28.¢
ABL Agreement borrowings 1.1 1.¢ 0.2
Deferred financing fees amortization 2.3 2.3 2.¢
Other interest expense 1kt 2.7 3.4
60.2 65.¢ 68.3
Interest income (0.3 (0.9 (0.3
$ 59.¢ $ 65.6 $ 68.C
Note 15. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Los
Accumulated other comprehensive loss is presergkivb
September 30,
2012 2011
(in millions)
Net unrecognized loss on derivatives $ — % (3.0
Foreign currency translation 9.2 6.3
Minimum pension liability (96.9) (57.5)
$ 87.7) $ (54.2)

Note 16. Supplemental Cash Flow Informatior

The impact these transactions had on our consetidadlance sheets is presented below.

2012 2011 2010
(in millions)
Pension and other postretirement plans:
Decrease in other noncurrent assets $ 01 % 0E) % —
Decrease (increase) in other current liabilities 0.2 (0.9 —
Decrease (increase) in other liabilities (36.9) (8.9 5.3
Decrease (increase) in accumulated other comprisfecloss 36.€ 9.€ (5.3
$ — 3 — 3 —
Cash paid (received), net:
Interest $ 53 $ 54.¢ % 77.5
Income taxes $ 69 $ 4€ $ (29.2)
Note 17. Segment Information

Our operations consist of two business segmentsllibtuCo. and Anvil. These segments are organizsédon products sold and customers
served and are consistent with how the segmentsanaged, how resources are allocated and hownafarn is used by the chief operating
decision maker. Mueller Co. manufactures valvesvMater and gas systems including butterfly, irotegeapping, check, plug and ball valves, dry-
barrel and wet-barrel fire hydrants and a broadeaof
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metering, leak detection, pipe condition assessmetther products and services for the wateastfucture industry. Anvil manufactures and
sources a broad range of products including a tyaoiEfittings, couplings, hangers and related piaid.

Intersegment sales and transfers are made atgspliites generally intended to cover costs. Therdehation of segment results does not
reflect allocations of certain corporate expengslirectly attributable to segment operations iatersegment sales and expenses, which are
designated as Corporate. Interest, loss on eatilygeshment of debt and income taxes are not aléxtto business segments. Corporate expenses
include those costs incurred by our corporate fancsuch as accounting, treasury, risk managerhantan resources, legal, tax and other
administrative functions. Therefore, segment resaflé not reflective of their results on a starmhalbasis. Corporate assets principally consist of
cash, income tax assets, receivables related watkeof our former U.S. Pipe segment and defdimedicing fees. Segment assets consist primarily
of receivables, inventories, property, plant andiggent and identifiable intangible assets.

Geographical area information is presented below.

United States Canada Other Total
(in millions)
Net sales:
2012 $ 872.¢ % 112« $ 392 % 1,023.¢
2011 834.( 113 17.1 964.¢
2010 805.7 141.¢ 12.4 959.7
Property, plant and equipment, net:
September 30, 2012 $ 136.C % 5€ % 31 % 1447
September 30, 2011 136.€ 5.8 3.3 145.7

Approximately 36% of our 2012 gross sales wereutold largest distributors, and approximately 24%wr 2012 gross sales were to our two
largest distributors, Ferguson Enterprises, Ineéefjuson Enterprises”) and HD Supply, Inc. (“HD Bliyf). Sales to Ferguson Enterprises
comprised approximately 12% , 12% and 13% of otal gross sales during 2012 , 2011 and 2010 , cisply. In 2012 , Ferguson Enterprises
accounted for approximately 14% and 8% of grossss@ir Mueller Co and Anvil, respectively. Receileashfrom Ferguson Enterprises totaled
$22.4 million and $15.4 million at September 3012@nd 2011 , respectively. Sales to HD Supply atsag approximately 10% , 10% and 1@%
our total gross sales during 2012 , 2011 , and 201@012 , HD Supply accounted for approximated9o and 4% of gross sales for Mueller Co.
and Anvil, respectively. Receivables from HD Suptgtaled $16.4 million and $15.3 million at SeptemB0, 2012 and 2011 , respectively.
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Summarized financial information for our segmestpriesented below.

Mueller Co. Anvil Corporate Total
(in millions)
Net sales, excluding intercompany:
2012 652.¢ 371t % — 3 1,023.¢
2011 605.£ 359.1 — 964.¢
2010 612.¢ 346.¢ — 959.7
Intercompany sales:
2012 $ 72 % 01 $ — 3 7.4
2011 8.7 0.1 — 8.8
2010 15.4 0.4 — 15.¢
Operating income (loss):
2012 $ 577 $ 372 % (30.9 % 64.1
2011 53.¢ 31.¢ (32.9 52.7
2010 81.C 22.1 (33.9 69.7
Depreciation and amortization:
2012 $ 457 $ 14: % 0€ $ 60.€
2011 47.7 14.5 0.c 63.1
2010 49.7 15.¢ 0.t 65.€
Restructuring and impairment:
2012 $ 28 % 02 % — 3 2.8
2011 14 1.2 1.C 3.€
2010 0.1 0.t — 0.€
Capital expenditures:
2012 $ 20.C % 114§ — 3 31.4
2011 14.¢ 75 0.8 23.1
2010 15.€ 6.C 0.2 21.¢
Total assets:
September 30, 2012 843.( 2587 % 1392 % 1,240.¢
September 30, 2011 843.t 258.2 383.: 1,485.(
Identifiable intangible assets, net:
September 30, 2012 508.7 65.C $ — % 573.7
September 30, 2011 534.k 67.¢ — 602.2

Note 18. Commitments and Contingencies

We are involved in various legal proceedings tlaateharisen in the normal course of operationsydinh the proceedings summarized below.
The effect of the outcome of these matters on wiré results of operations cannot be predictel egttainty as any such effect depends on future
results of operations and the amount and timinth@fesolution of such matters. Other than thgdtton described below, we do not believe that
any of our outstanding litigation would have a mialeadverse effect on our business or prospects.

EnvironmentalWe are subject to a wide variety of laws and reipuria concerning the protection of the environmbnth with respect to the
operations at many of our properties and with ressfgeremediating environmental conditions that regigt at our own or other properties. We
strive to comply with federal, state and local eonimental laws and regulations. We accrue for envirental expenses resulting from existing
conditions that relate to past operations wherctists are probable and reasonably estimable.

In the acquisition agreement pursuant to whicheal@cessor to Tyco sold our Mueller Co. and Anvdlibesses to the prior owners of these
businesses in August 1999, Tyco agreed to indenusifgnd our affiliates, among other things, forakcluded Liabilities.” Excluded Liabilities
include, among other things, substantially allilitibs relating to the time prior to August 1998¢luding environmental liabilities. The indemnity
survives indefinitely. Tyco's indemnity does novenpliabilities to the extent caused by us or theration of our businesses after August 1999, nor
does it cover liabilities arising
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with respect to businesses or sites acquired Afigust 1999. Since 2007, Tyco has engaged in nhelltigrporate restructurings, split-offs and
divestitures. While none of these transactionsctliyaffects the indemnification obligations of tiigco indemnitors under the 1999 acquisition
agreement, the result of such transactions isthiestissets of, and control over, such Tyco indarsitas changed. Should any of these Tyco
indemnitors become financially unable or fail torgay with the terms of the indemnity, we may bep@ssible for such obligations or liabilities.

In September 1987, we implemented an Administrafiwasent Order (“ACO”) for our Burlington, New Jeysproperty, which was required
under the New Jersey Environmental Cleanup RedpititysAct (now known as the Industrial Site Recoyéct). The ACO required soil and
ground-water cleanup, and we completed, and reddinal approval on, the soil cleanup required i ACO. We retained this property related to
the sale of our former U.S. Pipe segment. We exgrecind-water issues as well as issues associatiedhe demolition of former manufacturing
facilities at this site will continue and remedasttiby us could be required. Long-term ground-watenitoring may also be required, but we do not
know how long such monitoring would be required dochot believe monitoring or further remediatiasts, if any, will have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition or results of cgt@ons.

On July 13, 2010, Rohcan Investments Limited (“Roti}, the former owner of property leased by Mue@anada Ltd. and located in Milton,
Ontario, filed suit against Mueller Canada Ltd. @sdlirectors seeking C$10 million in damagesiagisrom the defendants' alleged environmental
contamination of the property and breach of lelkeeller Canada Ltd. leased the property from 1988ugh 2008. We are pursuing
indemnification from a former owner for certain goftial liabilities that are alleged in this lawsaihd we have accrued for other liabilities not
covered by indemnification. On December 7, 20té&,Gourt denied the plaintiff's motion for summpggment.

Walter Energy-related Income Tax&ach member of a consolidated group for federarimetax purposes is severally liable for the feldera
income tax liability of each other member of thesalidated group for any year in which it is a memaf the group at any time during such year.
Each member of the Walter Energy consolidated graaich included us through December 14, 2006lsis intly and severally liable for
pension and benefit funding and termination lidiedi of other group members, as well as certaiefitgplan taxes. Accordingly, we could be liable
under such provisions in the event any such lighiincurred, and not discharged, by any othemiver of the Walter Energy consolidated group
for any period during which we were included in Welter Energy consolidated group.

A dispute exists with regard to federal income safag 1980 through 1994 allegedly owed by the Wdtteergy consolidated group. According
to Walter Energy's last available public filing the matter, Walter Energy's management estimatgdhh amount of tax claimed by the IRS was
approximately $34.0 million for issues currentlydispute in bankruptcy court for matters unreldteds. This amount is subject to interest and
penalties. Of the $34.0 million in claimed tax, ¥2illion represents issues in which the IRS isatallenging the deductibility of the particular
expense but only whether such expense is deduatibl@articular year. Walter Energy's managemetli¢bes that Walter Energy's financial
exposure should be limited to interest and posgiblalties and the amount of any tax claimed veilbEset by favorable adjustments in other ye

In addition, the IRS previously issued a Noticd?abposed Deficiency assessing additional tax ofZBllion for the fiscal years ended
May 31, 2000 through December 31, 2005. Walter gnéiled a formal protest with the IRS, but had rediched a final resolution with the Appe
Division at June 30, 2012. The unresolved issueser@rimarily to Walter Energy's method of recagmy revenue on the sale of homes and related
interest on the installment notes receivable. Téms at issue relate primarily to the timing ofeewe recognition and consequently, should the IRS
prevail on its positions, Walter Energy's finan@aposure should be limited to interest and pezmlhs a matter of law, we are jointly and seveg
liable for any final tax determination for any yeawhich any of our subsidiaries were memberfiefWalter Energy consolidated group, which
means that we would be liable in the event Waltegrgy is unable to pay any amounts owed. Walterdggnieas disclosed that it believes its filing
positions have substantial merit and that it ingeteddefend vigorously any claims asserted

Walter Energy effectively controlled all of our tdecisions for periods during which we were a menalb¢he Walter Energy consolidated
group for federal income tax purposes and certainbined, consolidated or unitary state and loazdrime tax groups. Under the terms of the
income tax allocation agreement between us andéMaltergy dated May 26, 2006, we generally computedax liability on a stand-alone basis,
but Walter Energy has sole authority to responahith conduct all tax proceedings (including tax e)delating to our federal income and combi
state returns, to file all such returns on our Ifedrad to determine the amount of our liability(to entitlement to payment from) Walter Energy for
such previous periods. This arrangement may rasatinflicts between Walter Energy and us.

The separation of the Company from Walter Energipencember 14, 2006 was intended to qualify as dr&sxspin-off under Section 355 of
the Internal Revenue Code. In addition, the tacaliion agreement provides that if the spin-offesermined not to be tax-free pursuant to
Section 355, we generally will be responsible foy taxes incurred by Walter Energy
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or its shareholders if such taxes result from aexéour actions or omissions and for a percent#gany such taxes that are not a result of our
actions or omissions or Walter Energy's actionsmoissions or taxes based upon our market valugvel®a Walter Energy's market value.
Additionally, to the extent that Walter Energy wasable to pay taxes, if any, attributable to thie-gff and for which it is responsible under the ta
allocation agreement, we could be liable for thases as a result of being a member of the Walterdy consolidated group for the year in which
the spin-off occurred.

In accordance with the income tax allocation agergmWalter Energy used certain tax assets of depessor to the Company in its calendar
2006 tax return for which payment to us is requifdte income tax allocation agreement only requiviadter Energy to make the payment upon
realization of the tax benefit by receiving a refwor otherwise offsetting taxes due. Walter Enangyyently owes us $10.9 million that is payable
pending completion of an IRS audit of Walter Ene&s@006 tax year and the related refund of tax fitea year. We recorded this receivable in
other noncurrent assets.

Indemnifications We are a party to contracts in which it is comrfarus to agree to indemnify third parties fortaer liabilities that arise out
of or relate to the subject matter of the contrectome cases, this indemnity extends to relaailities arising from the negligence of the
indemnified parties, but usually excludes any liibs caused by gross negligence or willful mistoct. We cannot estimate the potential amount
of future payments under these indemnities unghés arise that would trigger a liability under thédemnities.

Additionally, in connection with the sale of assatsl the divestiture of businesses, such as thestitivre of our U.S. Pipe segment (see Noi
we may agree to indemnify buyers and related fmaftiecertain losses or liabilities incurred bysbearties with respect to: (i) the representations
and warranties made by us to these parties in otionewith the sale and (ii) liabilities relatedttte pre-closing operations of the assets or bssine
sold. Indemnities related to pre-closing operatigaserally include certain environmental and takilities and other liabilities not assumed by
these parties in the transaction.

Indemnities related to the pre-closing operatidrsotd assets or businesses normally do not represigitional liabilities to us, but simply
serve to protect these parties from potential liigtassociated wit h our obligations existing lag time of the sale. As with any liability, we have
accrued for those pre-closing obligations thatcarsidered probable and reasonably estimable. 8ltemstances change, increasing the
likelihood of payments related to a specific indésnrwe will accrue a liability when future paymeatprobable and the amount is reasonably
estimable.

Other MattersWe are party to a number of other lawsuits ariginipe ordinary course of business, including patdiability cases for
products manufactured by us or third parties. Wwige for costs relating to these matters whersa i® probable and the amount is reasonably
estimable. Administrative costs related to thesttarmare expensed as incurred. The effect of ti@me of these matters on our future results of
operations cannot be predicted with certainty gssaich effect depends on future results of operatamd the amount and timing of the resolution
of such matters. While the results of litigatiomeat be predicted with certainty, we believe tihatfinal outcome of such other litigation is not
likely to have a materially adverse effect on ousibess or prospects.

Operating Leased/Ve maintain operating leases primarily for equiptreard facilities. Rent expense was $8.4 millio8.58million and $9.1
million for 2012 , 2011 and 2010 , respectivelytufa minimum payments under non-cancelable operidimses are $6.6 million , $5.3 million ,
$4.5 million , $3.9 million and $2.5 million durir@p13 , 2014 , 2015, 2016 and 2017 , respectililyimum payments due beyond 2017 are $2.2
million .

Note 19. Subsequent Event

On October 26, 2012, our board of directors dedlardividend of $0.0175 per share on our commorkstmayable on or about November 21,
2012 to stockholders of record at the close ofrirgs on November 10, 2012.
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Note 20. Quarterly Consolidated Financial Information (Unaudited)
Quarter
Fourth Third Second First
(in millions, except per share amounts)
2012:
Net sales $ 2811 % 275.¢ % 251.F 215.¢
Gross profit 76.€ 79.€ 62.1 52.¢
Operating income 21.¢ 25.7 10.€ 5.¢
Income (loss) from continuing operations 4.3 5.¢ (8.9) (6.5)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations (0.9) 3.€ (100.9) (5.9
Net income (loss) B3 9.¢ (109.9) (11.9
Net income (loss) per basic shéte
Continuing operations 0.0z 0.0 (0.06) (0.09
Discontinued operations (0.01) 0.0z (0.6 (0.09)
Net income (loss) 0.0z 0.0¢ (0.70 (0.0¢)
Net income (loss) per diluted shébe
Continuing operations 0.0z 0.04 (0.06) (0.09)
Discontinued operations (0.01) 0.0z (0.69 (0.09)
Net income (loss) 0.0z 0.0¢ (0.70 (0.0¢)
2011:
Net sales $ 256.: $ 259.¢ $ 235.k 213.2
Gross profit 64.C 73.1 58.1 52.C
Operating income 12.2 24.7 9.8 6.C
Income (loss) from continuing operations (5.9 6.¢ (5.9) (5.7
Loss from discontinued operations (3.9) (9.€) (8.9 (6.4)
Net loss® (9.6 2.7 (13.7) (12.7)
Net loss per basic shdte
Continuing operations $ (0.049 % 0.0¢ % (0.0 (0.04)
Discontinued operations (0.02) (0.0¢) (0.05) (0.09)
Net income (loss) $ (0.06) $ (0.07 $ (0.09 (0.0¢)
Net income (loss) per diluted shéve
Continuing operations $ (0.0 $ 0.0¢ $ (0.0 (0.049)
Discontinued operations (0.02) (0.0¢) (0.05) (0.09)
Net income (loss) $ (0.06) $ (0.02) $ (0.09) (0.0¢)

(1) The sum of the quarterly amounts may not equalutgear amount due to roundir

(2) The 2011 fourth quarter includes $1.4 millafrcertain health and welfare expenses applicabjeior quarter:
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Note 21. Consolidating Guarantor and Non-Guarantor Financial Information

The following information is included as a resultlee guarantee by certain of our wholly-owned W$bsidiaries (“Guarantor Companies”) of
the Senior Unsecured Notes and the Senior SubdediNotes. None of our other subsidiaries guarahe&enior Unsecured Notes and the Senior
Subordinated Notes. Each of the guarantees isgoititseveral and full and unconditional. GuaraGmmpanies are listed below.

State of
incorporation
Name or organization
Anvil International, LLC Delaware
AnvilStar, LLC Delaware
Echologics, LLC Delaware
Henry Pratt Company, LLC Delaware
Henry Pratt International, LLC Delaware
Hunt Industries, LLC Delaware
Hydro Gate, LLC Delaware
J.B. Smith Mfg. Co., LLC Delaware
James Jones Company, LLC Delaware
Milliken Valve, LLC Delaware
Mueller Co. LLC Delaware
Mueller Financial Services, LLC Delaware
Mueller Group, LLC Delaware
Mueller Group Co-Issuer, Inc. Delaware
Mueller International, L.L.C. Delaware
Mueller Property Holdings, LLC Delaware
Mueller Co. International Holdings, LLC Delaware
Mueller Service California, Inc. Delaware
Mueller Service Co., LLC Delaware
Mueller Systems, LLC Delaware
OSP, LLC Delaware
U.S. Pipe Valve & Hydrant, LLC Delaware
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Mueller Water Products, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidating Balance Sheet
September 30, 2012

Non-
Guarantor guarantor
Issuer companies companies Eliminations Total
(in millions)
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 53 % 37 $ 334 % — % 83.C
Receivables, net — 146.¢ 19.2 — 166.1
Inventories — 169.: 13.¢ — 183.2
Deferred income taxes 18.5 — 1.1 — 19.€
Other current assets 10.5 26.2 1.2 — 38.C
Total current assets 82.: 338.¢ 68.€ — 489.¢
Property, plant and equipment 1.8 134.2 8.7 — 144
Identifiable intangible assets — 572.2 iz — 573.
Other noncurrent assets 30.5 0.7 14 — 32.€
Investment in subsidiaries 27.2 37.¢ — (65.7) —
Total assets $ 1416 $ 1,083.¢ $ 80.4 $ (65.) $ 1,240.¢
Liabilities and equity:
Current portion of long-term debt $ — 3 11 % — 3 — 3 1.1
Accounts payable 8.2 68.7 7.t — 84.t
Other current liabilities 29.¢ 49.C 3.6 — 82.¢
Total current liabilities 38.2 118.¢ 11.4 — 168.4
Long-term debt 619.¢ 1.8 — — 621.%
Deferred income taxes 132.( — 0.8 — 132.¢
Other noncurrent liabilities 77.2 7.€ 2.C — 86.¢
Intercompany accounts (956.7%) 928.¢ 28.2 — —
Total liabilities (89.9 1,056.¢ 42.F — 1,009.
Equity 231.2 27.2 37.¢ (65.2) 231.2
Total liabilities and equity $ 1416 % 1,083.¢ $ 80.4 $ (65.) $ 1,240.¢
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Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
Inventories
Deferred income taxes
Other current assets
Current assets held for sale
Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Identifiable intangible assets
Other noncurrent assets
Noncurrent assets held for sale
Investment in subsidiaries
Total assets
Liabilities and equity:
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Other current liabilities
Current liabilities held for sale
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Deferred income taxes
Other noncurrent liabilities
Intercompany accounts
Total liabilities
Equity
Total liabilities and equity

Mueller Water Products, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidating Balance Sheet
September 30, 2011

Guarantor guarantor
Issuer companies companies Eliminations Total
(in millions)
$ 36.2 $ 38 $ 28.€ —  $ 61.C
— 131.¢ 15.€ — 147«
— 163. 12 — 175.¢
28.1 — 0.€ — 28.7
15.4 27.2 1.1 — 43.¢
142.( — — — 142.(
221.5 318.% 58.¢ — 598.¢
3.¢ 132.7 9.1 — 145.7
— 600.¢ 1k — 602.¢
27.€ 0.¢ 1.¢ — 30.4
107.7 — — — 107.7
(23.9) 23.¢ — 0.1 —
$ 337.C % 1,077.C % 70.¢ 01 ¢ 1,485.(
$ — % 0c $ — — % 0.¢
6.1 49.: 3.7 — 59.1
30.1 44.¢ 2.¢ — 77.¢
56.¢ — — — 56.¢
93.1 95.1 6.€ — 194.¢
676.( 1.4 — — 677.¢
153.¢ — 0.4 — 154.2
71.C 7.¢ 0.7 — 79.€
(1,035.9 996.£ 39.¢ — —
(42.0 1,100.¢ 47.1 — 1,106.(
379.( (23.9) 23.¢ 0.1 379.(
$ 337.C % 1,077.C $ 70.¢ 01 $ 1,485.(
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Mueller Water Products, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidating Statement of Operations and Other Comrehensive Income
Year Ended September 30, 2012

Non-
Guarantor guarantor
Issuer companies companies Eliminations Total
(in millions)
Net sales $ — 3 907.C $ 116.¢ $ —  $ 1,023.¢
Cost of sales — 652.1 100.7 — 752.¢
Gross profit — 254.¢ 16.2 — 271.1
Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative 30.€ 160.z 13.£ — 204.2
Restructuring — 2.7 0.1 — 2.8
Total operating expenses 30.€ 162.¢ 13.5 — 207.(
Operating income (loss) (30.6) 92.C 2.7 — 64.1
Interest expense, net 60.C 0.2 (0.3 — 59.¢
Loss on early extinguishment of debt 1.t — — — 1.t
Income (loss) before income taxes (92.7) 91.¢ 3.C = 2.7
Income tax expense (benefit) (28.9) 35.¢€ 0.€ — 7.
Equity in income of subsidiaries 58.¢€ 2.4 — (61.0 —
Income (loss) from continuing operations (5.2 58.€ 2.4 (61.0 (5.9
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net
tax (203.9 — — — (103.9
Net income (loss) (108.9 58.€ 2.4 (61.0 (108.9
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Equity in other comprehensive income of
subsidiaries 2.8 2.8 — (5.9) —
Interest rate swap contracts, net of tax 3.C — — — 3.C
Foreign currency translation — — 2.¢ — 2.¢
Minimum pension liability, net of tax (39.9 — — — (39.9
(33.9 2.8 2.¢ (5.8 (33.9
Comprehensive income (loss) $ (1419 % 615 § 52 § (66.9) $ (141.9
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Mueller Water Products, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidating Statement of Operations and Other Comrehensive Income

Year Ended September 30, 2011

Non-
Guarantor guarantor
Issuer companies companies Eliminations Total
(in millions)
Net sales $ — 3 844¢ $ 1197 $ — 3 964.¢
Cost of sales 0.2 613.¢ 102.¢ — 716.5
Gross profit 0.1 231.1 16.€ — 248.1
Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative 31.1 147.C 13.7 — 191.¢
Restructuring 1.C 2.2 0.4 — 3.€
Total operating expenses 32.1 149.2 14.1 — 195.¢
Operating income (loss) (32.0 81.C 2.€ — 52.7
Interest expense, net 65.€ — — — 65.€
Income (loss) before income taxes (97.6) 81.c — (12.9
Income tax expense (benefit) (34.9 30.€ 0.c — (2.9)
Equity in income of subsidiaries 53.2 1.6 — (55.]) —
Income (loss) from continuing operations (10.0 53.2 1.¢ (55.7) (20.0
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of
tax (28.1) — — — (28.1)
Net income (loss) (38.]) 53.2 1.¢ (55.7) (38.7)
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Equity in other comprehensive loss of subsidiaries (1.1 (1.2 — 2.2 —
Interest rate swap contracts, net of tax 4.S — — — 4.¢
Foreign currency translation — — (1.3 — (1.2
Minimum pension liability, net of tax 12.2 — — — 12.2
16.C 1.1 1.3 2.2 16.C
Comprehensive income (loss) $ (22.) $ 521 § 0€ $ (52.9) $ (22.9)
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Mueller Water Products, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidating Statement of Operations and Other Comrehensive Income
Year Ended September 30, 2010

Net sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Operating expenses:
Selling, general and administrative
Restructuring
Total operating expenses
Operating income
Interest expense (income), net
Loss on early extinguishment of debt, net
Income (loss) before income taxes
Income tax expense (benefit)
Equity in income (loss) of subsidiaries
Income (loss) from continuing operations

Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net
tax

Net income (loss)

Other comprehensive income (loss):

Equity in other comprehensive income of
subsidiaries

Natural gas hedges, net of tax
Interest rate swap contracts, net of tax
Foreign currency translation

Minimum pension liability, net of tax

Comprehensive income (loss)

Non-
Guarantor guarantor
Issuer companies companies Eliminations Total
(in millions)
— 3 807.¢ $ 151¢ $ $ 959.7
0.3 568.1 132.¢ 700.¢
0.3 239.7 19.1 — 259.1
33.1 145.¢ 9.¢ — 188.¢
— 0.€ — — 0.€
33.1 146.2 9.¢ — 189.
(32.9 93.: 9.2 — 69.7
68.C — — — 68.C
4.€ — — 4.€
(105.9 93.: .2 — (2.9
(37.9 36.¢ .c — 2t
62.7 6.3 — (69.0 —
(5.9 62.7 6.3 (69.0 (5.9
(39.9 — — — (39.9
(45.2) 62.7 6.3 (69.0 (45.2)
34 34 — (6.€) —
(0.9 — — — (0.9
3.9 — — — 3.9
— — 34 — 34
8.8 — — 8.8
15.% 34 34 (6.€) 15.%
(29.5) $ 66.1 $ 9.7 $ (75.¢9) $ (29.9
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Mueller Water Products, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended September 30, 2012

Non-
Guarantor guarantor
Issuer companies companies Eliminations Total
(in millions)
Operating activities:
Net cash provided by operating activities from
continuing operations $ 40¢ $ 322 % 37 % — 76.€
Investing activities:
Capital expenditures — (30.5) (0.9) — (31.9
Acquisitions — (1.9 0.t — 1.9
Proceeds from sales of assets — 0.2 — — 0.2
Net cash used in investing activities from
continuing operations — (32.0 (0.9 — (32.9
Financing activities:
Debt borrowings — 0.€ — — 0.€
Debt payments (57.2) — — — (57.2)
Common stock issued 0.2 — — — 0.2
Dividends paid (11.0 — — — (11.0
Other — (0.7) — — (0.7
Net cash used in financing activities from
continuing operations (68.0 (0.3 — — (68.1)
Net cash flows from discontinued operations:
Operating activities (43.9) — — — (43.9)
Investing activities 87.c — — — 87.t
Net cash used in discontinued operations 447 — — — 44z
Effect of currency exchange rate changes on ca: — — 1kt — 1.3
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 17.1 0.1 4.8 — 22.C
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 36.2 (3.9 28.¢ — 61.C
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ~ $ 53% % B7 % 334 % — 83.(
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Mueller Water Products, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended September 30, 2011

Non-
Guarantor guarantor
Issuer companies companies Eliminations Total
(in millions)
Operating activities:
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
from continuing operations $ 316 % 17.¢ 2.€ — 3 52.1
Investing activities:
Capital expenditures (0.9 (21.9) (0.5) — (23.)
Acquisitions — 2.9 (7.9) — (9.2)
Proceeds from sales of assets — 11 — — 1.1
Net cash used in investing activities from
continuing operations 0.9 (22.0 (8.9 — (31.2)
Financing activities:
Debt borrowings — 0.7 — — 0.7
Debt paid or repurchased (15.0 — — — (15.0
Common stock issued 1.C — — — 1.C
Dividends paid (10.9 — — — (10.9
Payment of deferred financing fees (0.9 (0.9
Other — 1.7 — — 1.7
Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities from continuing operations (25.9) 2.4 — — (22.9)
Net cash flows from discontinued operations:
Operating activities (12.2) — — — (12.2)
Investing activities (8.9 — — — (8.9
Net cash used in discontinued operations (20.€) — — — (20.6)
Effect of currency exchange rate changes on cash — — (0.9) — (0.9
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (15.7) 1.7 (6.2) — (23.0)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 51.z (2.3 34.¢ — 84.C
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ~ $ 36.2 $ (3.6 28.¢ — § 61.C
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Mueller Water Products, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended September 30, 2010

Operating activities:

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

from continuing operations $

Investing activities:
Capital expenditures
Acquisitions
Proceeds from sales of assets

Net cash used in investing activities from
continuing operations

Financing activities:
Debt borrowings
Debt paid or repurchased
Common stock issued
Dividends paid
Payment of deferred financing fees
Other

Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities from continuing operations

Net cash flows from discontinued operations:
Operating activities
Investing activities

Net cash used in discontinued operations

Effect of currency exchange rate changes on cash

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $

Guarantor guarantor
Issuer companies companies Eliminations Total
(in millions)

1212 % (372 $ 13¢ $ — 97.¢
0.2 (21.0 (0.6) — (21.9)
— 55.C — — 55.C
0.2 34.C (0.6) — 33.2
270.5 — — — 270.5
(318.5) — — — (318.5)
1.C — — — 1.C
(10.9) — — — (10.¢)
9.9 — — — 9.9
— 1.7 — — 1.7
(67.€) 1.7 — — (65.9)
(34.7) — — — (34.7)
(9.6 — — — (9.6
(44.9 — — — (44.%)
— — 1.k — 1k
9.1 2.5 14.¢ — 22.4
42.2 (0.6) 20.C — 61.€
518 % 21 $ 348 % — 84.C
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Note 22. Corrections to Previously Reported Information (Unaudited)

During the quarter ended September 30, 2012 , seodered errors in the classification of cash flawdetween those from continuing
operations and those from discontinued operatibnese errors had no impact on any consolidatechbalsheet, consolidated statement of
operations and other comprehensive income, coraeticstatement of changes in stockholders' eqiétyt compliance covenant or employee
compensation metric for any period. These erras hhd no impact on any consolidated statemerdsif fows information for any period other
than the six months ended March 31, 2011 and tieminths ended June 30, 2011, as presented Q@uauterly Reports filed on Form 10-Q (“10-
Q") for the quarterly periods ended March 31, 2ahd June 30, 2012, respectively.

These errors related to the classification of aeteincome tax and retirement plan adjustment&iardchining net cash used in operating
activities due to designating our U.S. Pipe segrasrttiscontinued operations in our condensed cioiaset! financial statements during the quarter
ended March 31, 2012. Corrected unaudited condesm®blidated statements of cash flows for theseg®are presented below.

Six months ended Nine months ended
March 31, 2011 June 30, 2011
Previously Previously
reported Corrected reported Corrected
(in millions)
Operating activities:
Net loss $ (259 $ (259 $ (28.5) $ (28.5)
Less: loss from discontinued operations 14.7 14.7 24.2 24.%
Loss from continuing operations (119 (119 (4.2) (4.2)
Adjustments to reconcile loss from continuing ofierss to net cash provide
by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation 17.C 17.C 25.2 25.2
Amortization 14t 14t 21.¢ 21.¢
Stock-based compensation expense 3.€ 3.€ 4.¢ 4.¢
Deferred income taxes (7.2) (1.9) (24.5) (4.5)
Retirement plans 2L 4.7 6.2 6.2
Interest rate swap contracts 3.6 3.6 6.C 6.C
Other, net 0.2 0.2 1k 1k
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acqarsti
Receivables (4.€) (4.€) (18.0) (18.0)
Inventories 1.€ 1.€ 7.2 7.2
Other current assets and other noncurrent assets 0.7 0.7 (2.0) (2.0)
Accounts payable and other liabilities (34.5) (34.5) (34.5) (34.5)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (13.9) (5.9 0.2) 9.8
Investing activities:
Capital expenditures (10.0 (10.0 (15.9 (15.9
Acquisitions (7.9) (7.9) (7.9 (7.9
Proceeds from sales of assets 0.¢ 0.¢ 11 11
Net cash used in investing activities 27.0 27.09 (22.7) (22.7)
Financing activities:
Debt borrowings 0.1 0.1 0.t 0.t
Common stock issued 0.2 0.2 — —
Payment of deferred financing fees (0.9 (0.9 (0.4) (0.4)
Dividends paid (5.9 (5.9 (8.1 (8.1
Other 0.2 0.2 0.€ 0.€
Net cash used in financing activities (5.7 (5.7 (7.4) (7.4)
Net cash flows from discontinued operations:
Operating activities (1.9) (9.9) (3.0 (13.0
Investing activities 4.2 4.2 (6.1) (6.1
Net cash used in discontinued operations (6.0 14.0 (9.7 (29.0)
Effect of currency exchange rate changes on cash 1.3 1.3 1.1 1.1
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (40.2) (40.2) (38.9) (38.9)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 84.C 84.C 84.C 84.C




Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

43.¢

43.¢

457

457
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These errors also affect the presentation of thes@laating Guarantor and Non-Guarantor Financitdrination presented in Note 14 to the
10-Qs for the quarterly periods ended March 312281d June 30, 2012. With respect to the 10-Qhiquarterly period ended March 31, 2012,
Issuer Net cash used in operating activities fromtiauing operations was previously reported a8 $llion , the corrected number is Net cash
provided by operating activities from continuingeoations of $1.2 million . With respect to the 1Ga@the quarterly period ended June 30, 2012,
Issuer Net cash used in operating activities fromtiauing operations was previously reported a8 $éllion , the corrected number is Net cash
provided by operating activities from continuingeogtions of $0.5 million Net cash flows from discontinued operations: @peg activities are a
reported in the Issuer column and changed as exportthe table above.
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Amended and Restated 2006 Stock Incentive Plan
Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement
Effective November 27, 2012

THIS AGREEMENT , effective as of the Date of Grant set forth belpine “Date of Grant”)represents a grant of restricted stock 1
(“RSUSs") by Mueller Water Products, Inc., a Delawa&orporation (the “Company™e the Participant named below, pursuant to theigians o
the Mueller Water Products, Inc. Amended and Redt2006 Stock Incentive Plan (the “PlarThe Participant has been selected to receive d
of RSUs pursuant to the Plan, as specified below.

The Plan provides a description of terms and carditgoverning the grant of RSUs. If there is argohsistency between the terms of
Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (this “Agremt?) and the terms of the Plan, the Plan's terms sbalptetely supersede and replace
conflicting terms of this Agreement. All capitalizéerms shall have the meanings ascribed to theheiflan, unless specifically set forth other
herein.

Participant:

Date of Grant:

Number of RSUs Granted:
Purchase Price: None

The parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Employment with the Company. Except as may otherwise be provided in Sectiah&RSUs granted hereunder are gre
on the condition that (1) the Participant acce #quity award no later than ninety (90) daysdielhg the Date of Grant, after which time -
Agreement shall be void and of no further effecid §2) the Participant remains in Continuous Serfiom the Date of Grant by the Comp
through (and including) the vesting date, as sghfim Section 2 (referred to herein as the “Penb&estriction”).

This grant of RSUs shall not confer any right te Barticipant (or any other participant) to be tgdrRSUs or other Awards in the fut
under the Plan.

2. Normal Vesting . Onethird of the RSUs shall vest on each of the finse¢ anniversaries of the Date of Grant, subjethd
Participant's Continuous Service on such datesnlfny vesting date, this vesting schedule woesdlt in the vesting of a fraction of an RSU, ¢
fraction shall be rounded to the nearest whole RS&Jmanner acceptable to management or any indepethird party administering any term:
the Plan for the Company.

3. Timing of Payout. Payout of RSUs shall, with respect to the nuntfé&tSUs vesting on the vesting date as set forBeictior
2, be made on the thirtieth (89 day following such vesting date; provided thatftie event of the Participant's termination of @arous Servic
by reason of death, Disability or Retirement, deaé Change in Control, prior to any such nornesting date, payout of all RSUs shall be mac
the thirtieth (30" ) day following the date of such termination of @opnous Service; provided, however, that such teaton of Continuot
Service also constitutes a "separation from setwidgghnin the meaning of Section 409A of the Code.

4, Form of Payout. Vested RSUs will be paid out solely in the forfsbares of Series A Common Stock of the Comparsuct
other security as Series A Common Stock shall nweed into in the future.

5. Voting Rights and Dividends. Until such time as the RSUs are paid out in shafeCompany Stock, the Participant shall
have voting rights. Further, no dividends shalpb& on any RSUs.

6. Termination of Continuous Service. In the event of the Participant's terminatiorCaintinuous Service for amgason othe
than the Participant's death, Disability or Retiesinduring the Period of Restriction (and excepbtagrwise provided in Section 7 with respet
RSUs that become nonforfeitable upon a Change mtrélp, all RSUs held by the Participant at theeiof his or her termination of Continuc
Service and still subject to the Period of Resoitshall be forfeited by the Participant to then@pany. All RSUs that have not previously ve
shall vest upon the Participant's death, DisabitityRetirement.




7. Change in Control . Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in tligreement, in the event of a Change in Controlhe
Company during the Period of Restriction and ptiothe Participant's termination of Continuous 8rvthe Period of Restriction imposed on
RSUs shall immediately lapse, with all such RSUsob@ng nonforfeitable, subject to applicable fetlarad state securities laws. Such RSUs
be paid out at the time(s) they would have beed pat under Section 3 as if the Change in Contadl fiot occurredi(e ., such RSUs shall be p.
following each normal vesting date as describe8ention 2, or earlier upon the Participant's deBtkability, Retirement or other termination
Continuous Service; provided, however, such Retr@nor other termination also constitutes a "sejmrdrom service" within the meaning
Section 409A of the Code). Notwithstanding the gmiag, a transaction or series of transactionshitkvthe Company separates one or more
existing businesses, whether by sale, gfffror otherwise, and whether or not any such tatien or series of transactions requires a vottne
stockholders, shall not be considered a “Changgomtrol.”

8. Restrictions on Transfer. Unless and until actual shares of stock of then@any are received upon payout, RSUs gr:
pursuant to this Agreement may not be sold, traresfe pledged, assigned, or otherwise alienatdd/pothecated (a “Transfer'dpther than by wi
or by the laws of descent and distribution, ex@pprovided in the Plan. If any Transfer, wheth@umtary or involuntary, of RSUs is made, ¢
any attachment, execution, garnishment, or lierl sfeissued against or placed upon the RSUs, tréichhant's right to such RSUs shall
immediately forfeited by the Participant to the Gamy, and this Agreement shall lapse.

9. Recapitalization . In the event of any change in the capitalizabbthe Company such as a stock split or corporatestctio
such as any merger, consolidation, separationth@rwise, the number and class of RSUs subjedtisoAtgreement shall be equitably adjuste:
the Committee, as set forth in the Plan, to preddation or enlargement of rights.

10. Beneficiary Designation. The Participant may, from time to time, name bewpeficiary or beneficiaries (who may be na
contingently or successively) to whom any benefier this Agreement is paid in case of his or leatld before he or she receives any or all of
benefit. Each such designation shall revoke abrpdiesignations by the Participant, shall be imm@nf prescribed by the Company, and sha
effective only when filed by the Participant in timg with the Secretary of the Company during hisher lifetime. In the absence of any s
designation, benefits remaining unpaid at the Elpetnt's death shall be paid to his or her estate.

11. Continuation of Employment . This Agreement shall not confer upon the Parietpany right to continue employment v
the Company or its Subsidiaries, nor shall this e&gnent interfere in any way with the Company'sterSubsidiaries' right to terminate
Participant's employment at any time. For purpaxethis Agreement, “Termination of Employmerghall mean termination or cessation of
Participant's employment with the Company and itesBliaries for any reason (or no reason), whetthetermination of employment is institu
by the Participant or the Company or a Subsidiang, whether the termination of employment is withvihout cause.

12. Noncompetition . Upon termination other than involuntary termioatinot for cause, the Participant agrees thatpfier yea
following such termination, he or she will not eggan executive or management services for a coyngaat, within the 12 months prior to
termination, sold products that compete with thedpcts of the Company or its subsidiaries (a “Cditgeg’ and such products being
“Competitor's Products™ithin 25 miles of any location in the United Stat@here the Company or its subsidiaries had sdlgsanlucts (th
“Restricted Area”) at the time of such termination.

The Participant acknowledges and agrees that:

(@) The Participant is familiar with the businessesh&f Company and its Subsidiaries and the commemoidlcompetitiv
nature of the industry and recognizes that the evaifithe Company's business would be injured if Paeticipan
performed Competitive Services for a Competing Bess;

(b) This covenant not to compete is essential to tiirmeed good will and profitability of the Compa

(c) In the course of employment with the Company orSitdsidiaries, the Participant will become familth the trad

secrets and other Confidential Information (asrd=fi below) of the Company and its Subsidiariesliatés, and othe
related entities, and that the Participant's sesvigill be of special, unique, and extraordinargao the Company; and




(d) The Participant's skills and abilities should eedtilm or her to seek and obtain similar employnierg business oth
than a Competing Business, and the Participantegess other skills that will serve as the basisefoploymer
opportunities that are not prohibited by this camnnot to compete. Following the Participant's miiaation o
Employment with the Company, he or she expectset@lile to earn a livelihood without violating thenhs of thi
Agreement.

13. Nonsolicitation of Employees During the term of the Participant's employmeithwthe Company or its Subsidiaries anc
a period of twelve (12) months following the Pdpant's Termination of Employment, the Participsiméll not, either on his or her own accour
for any person, entity, business or enterpriseiwithe Restricted Area: (a) solicit any employedh&f Company or its Subsidiaries with whom
Participant had contact during the two (2) yearsrfo his or her Termination of Employment to leavs or her employment with the Compan
its Subsidiaries; or (b) induce or attempt to irelaay such employee to breach any employment agreesith the Company.

14. Nonsolicitation of Customers. During the term of the Participant's employmeithwhe Company or its Subsidiaries anc
a period of one year following the Participant'siiimation of Employment, the Participant shall doectly or indirectly solicit or attempt to solff
any current customer of the Company or any of itiss®liaries with which the Participant had Mate@aintact (as defined below) during the twc
years prior to his or her Termination of Employme@al) to cease doing business in whole or in pdttt wr through the Company or any of
Subsidiaries; or (b) to do business with any off@son, entity, business or enterprise which peraservices competitive to those provided b
Company or any of its Subsidiaries. This restriciim postemployment conduct shall apply only to solicitatfonthe purpose of selling or offeri
products or services that are similar to or whiempete with those products or services offerecheyGompany or its Subsidiaries during the pe
of the Participant's employment. For purposes f 8ection, “Material Contacthall be defined as any communication intendedxpeeted t
develop or further a business relationship andotosts about which the employee learned confidemi@rmation as a result of his or |
employment.

15. Developments. The Participant agrees that all inventions, improents, trade secrets, reports, manuals, comprggrams
systems, tapes and other ideas and materials ekt invented by him or her during the periothisfor her employment with the Company o
Subsidiaries, either solely or in collaboration hwithers, which relate to the actual or anticipatediness or research of the Company ¢
Subsidiaries, which result from or are suggestedryywork the Participant may do for the CompanitoBubsidiaries, or which result from us
the Company's or its Subsidiaries' premises of€thmpany's or its Subsidiaries' or their custonqaerty (collectively, the “Developmentsshal
be the sole and exclusive property of the Compantyits Subsidiaries. The Participant hereby assigrtae Company his or her entire right
interest in any Developments and will hereaftercexe any documents in connection therewith thatGbenpany may reasonably request.
Section does not apply to any inventions that theiépant made prior to his or her employment by Company or its Subsidiaries, or to
inventions that he or she develops entirely ondrigier own time without using any of the Compargdgiipment, supplies, facilities or -
Company's or its Subsidiaries' or their custonmmefidential information and which do not relatethe Company's or its Subsidiaries' busine
anticipated research and Developments or the wedrlshe has performed for the Company or its Sidrges.

16. Non-Disparagement. The Participant agrees that neither during hisesremployment nor following his or her Terminatiaf
Employment and continuing for so long as the Corggamany affiliate, successor or assigns thereafamon the name or like business within
Restricted Area, the Participant shall not, disectt indirectly, for himself or herself or on behaf, or in conjunction with, any other pers
persons, company, partnership, corporation, busieesity or otherwise make any statements thatirdl@mmatory, detrimental, slanderous
materially negative in any way to the interestthef Company or its Subsidiaries or other affiliatedities.

17. Confidentiality and Nondisclosure.

@) The Participant agrees that he or she will noteothan in performance of his or her duties for @@mpany or it
Subsidiaries, disclose or divulge to Third Par{es defined below) or use or exploit for his or bemn benefit or for th
benefit of Third Parties any Confidential Infornatj including trade secrets. For the purposes isf Agreemen
“Confidential Information”shall mean confidential and proprietary informatitade secrets, knowledge or data rel:
to the Company and its Subsidiaries and their lessies, including but not limited to information alfised to th
Participant, or known by the Participant as a cqusace of or through employment with the CompanigsoBubsidiarie:
where such information is not generally known ie ttade or industry, and where such informatioansbr relates in a
manner whatsoever to the business activities, pease services, or products of the Company owibsi8iaries; busine
and development plans (whether contemplated, teitiaor completed); mergers and acquisitions; pgiénformation
business contacts; sources of




supply; customer information (including customestdj customer preferences, and sales history);audsthf operatiol
results of analysis; customer lists (including atlgeng contacts); business forecasts; financiahdaosts; revenue
information maintained in electronic form (sucheamails, computer files, or information on a cell pepBlackberry, ¢
other personal data device); and similar informmati@onfidential Information shall not include angta or information i
the public domain, other than as a result of adired this Agreement. The provisions of this paapgr shall apply to tt
Participant at any time during his or her employtneith the Company or its Subsidiaries and for aqueof two (2
years following his or her Termination of Employnhem, if the Confidential Information is a tradecset, such longs
period of time as may be permitted by controllirade secret laws.

(b) The Participant acknowledges and agrees that thdideatial Information is necessary for the Comparshbility tc
compete with its competitors. The Participant fartacknowledges and agrees that the prohibitioamsigdisclosure ai
use of Confidential Information recited herein @meaddition to, and not in lieu of, any rights @medies that tt
Company or a Subsidiary may have available purstmtite laws of the State of Delaware to preveatdisclosure ¢
trade secrets or proprietary information, including not limited to the Delaware Uniform Trade SsrAct, 6 Del. Coc
Ann. §2001,et seq. The Participant agrees that this rdiselosure obligation may extend longer than twp y@ar:
following his or her Termination of Employment asany materials or information that constitutesaaé secret under t
Delaware Uniform Trade Secrets Act.

(c) For purposes of this Agreement, “Third Party” “Third Parties” shall mean persons, sole proprietorships, fi
partnerships, limited liability partnerships, asations, corporations, limited liability companieand all other busine
organizations and entities, excluding the Partitigand the Company.

(d) The Participant agrees to take all reasonable ptiecs to safeguard and prevent disclosure of @entfial Informatio
to unauthorized persons or entities.

18. Intellectual Property . The Participant agrees that he or she has nt taghse for the benefit of the Participant or ame
other than the Company or its Subsidiaries, anyhef copyrights, trademarks, service marks, pated, inventions of the Company or
Subsidiaries.

19. Injunctive Relief . The Participant and the Company recognize theddir of the provisions of this Agreement restrigtime
Participant's activities would give rise to immediand irreparable injury to the Company that &lequately compensable in damages. In the
of a breach or threatened breach of the restrigtioontained in this Agreement regarding nonconipatitnonsolicitation of employes
nonsolicitation of customers, Developments, d@paragement, confidentiality and nondisclosureCohfidential Information, and intellectt
property (collectively, the “Covenantsthe Participant agrees and consents that the Congbeatl be entitled to injunctive relief, both pneinary
and permanent, without bond, in addition to reinskunent from the Participant for all reasonableragétys’ fees and expenses incurred by
Company in enforcing these provisions, should then@any prevail. The Participant also agrees naerttie defense that the Company he
adequate remedy at law. In addition, the Compamjl §le entitled to any other legal or equitable edies as may be available under law.
remedies provided in this Agreement shall be deecoadulative and the exercise of one shall not pdlthe exercise of any other remedy al
or in equity for the same event or any other event.

20. Dispute Resolution; Agreement to Arbitrate.

@) The Participant and the Company agree that fina kimding arbitration shall be the exclusive remedy any
controversy, dispute, or claim arising out of datiag to this Agreement.

(b) This Section covers all claims and actions of wateature, both at law and in equity, includingt bot limited to, an
claim for breach of contract (including this Agreamt), and includes claims against the Participadt@daims against tl
Company and its Subsidiaries and/or any parentgdiatefs, owners, officers, directors, employeegerats, gener
partners or limited partners of the Company, togkient such claims involve, in any way, this Agneat. This Sectic
covers all judicial claims that could be broughtdither party to this Agreement, but does not cakerfiling of charge
with government agencies that prohibit waiver & tight to file a charge.




(©

(d)

(e)

The arbitration proceeding will be administerby a single arbitrator (the “Arbitrator’yn accordance with tt
Commercial Arbitration Rules of the American Arhiibn Association, taking into account the need dpeed ar
confidentiality. The Arbitrator shall be an attoyner judge with experience in contract litigatiomdaselected pursuant
the applicable rules of the American ArbitrationsAsiation.

The place and situs of arbitration shall be Wilnimg Delaware (or such other location as may beugliytagreed to t
the parties). The Arbitrator may adopt the Comnatréirbitration Rules of the American Arbitration gaciation, bt
shall be entitled to deviate from such rules in Albitrator's sole discretion in the interest ad@eedy resolution of a
dispute or as the Arbitrator shall deem just. Thelips agree to facilitate the arbitration by (agking available to ea
other and to the Arbitrator for inspection and esviall documents, books and records as the Arbitsttall determine
be relevant to the dispute, (b) making individuaisier their control available to other parties #mal Arbitrator and (¢
observing strictly the time periods establishedthg Arbitrator for the submission of evidence andadings. Th
Arbitrator shall have the power to render declasajodgments, as well as to award monetary clapnayided that th
Arbitrator shall not have the power to act (i) adsthe prescribed scope of this Agreement, om(ifhout providing a
opportunity to each party to be represented baf@rbitrator.

The Arbitrator's award shall be in writing. The itndtor shall allocate the costs and expenseseoptbceedings betwe
the parties and shall award interest as the Atbitideems appropriate. The arbitration judgmenii dlesfinal and bindin
on the parties. Judgment on the Arbitrator's awaagl be entered in any court having jurisdiction.

The Participant and the Company agree and undedritabby executing this Agreement and agreeingigoArbitration provision, they a
giving up their rights to trial by jury for any giste related to this Agreement.

21.

@

(b)

(the Participant's initials)

(the Company Representative's initials)

Clawback .

In the event of a breach of this Agreement by tleti®pant or a material breach of Company poligylaws o
regulations that could result in a termination éause (whether or not the Participant is terminatdwn the RSU
granted hereby shall be void and of no effect, as1the Committee determines otherwise.

In the event of financial impropriety by the Pagant that results in a restatement of the findnsfatements of tt
Company for any applicable period (the “ApplicaBleriod”), as determined by the Audit Committee or the Comj|z
independent registered public accounting firm; thethe award granted hereby is made during thplidable Period ¢
within 90 days after the end of such Applicableidtrthe number of RSUs granted hereunder shatietaced by
fraction:

0] The numerator of which is the amount of operatimgpime decline for the Applicable Period caused umt
restatement or breach, and

(ii) The denominator of which is the amount of operatimugpme previously determined for the Applicableifd
or if the breach does not result in a decreaskdratount of operating income, the fraction shalb0%.

If RSUs have already vested under this Agreembat) the reduction contemplated by this Section)24ffall be applie
first to the remaining RSUs that have not vested,rpta, and second to the vested shares and ttieifzant shall repe
the Company by forfeiting to the Company a numkbeexcess shares received that would have excedédednhour
granted hereby, to be taken from the most recesitngeof RSUs or, if such shares have been sodptbceeds receiv
from the sale of such shares that would otherwése heen forfeited.




22.

As an example of the foregoing, assume the Paatitifs granted an award of 300 RSUs on Decemb2009, whicl
vest equally on December 1, 2010, December 1, aatilDecember 1, 2012.

If the Company discovers a breach or financial oppiety by the Participant on June 30, 2!
which leads to a 50% decrease in operating incamnethie 2009 fiscal year and which could not resuo
termination for cause, then the award granted wbaldeduced to 150 RSUs, and the reduction woukbpéec
equally to the remaining RSUs, which would meart tha 100 RSUs vesting on December 1, 2011 wou
reduced by 75 to 25 RSUs and the 100 remaining R@sting on December 1, 2012 would be reduced by
25 RSUs.

If the Company discovers a breach or financial mppiety by the Participant on June 30, 2!
which leads to a 50% decrease in operating incosnehie 2009 fiscal year and which could not resn
termination for cause, then the award granted woeldeduced to 150 RSUs, which would be applieth¢
remaining RSUs, which would mean that the 100 R@sting on December 1, 2012 would be reduced b
RSUs to 0 RSUs and the Participant would forfeisB@res to the Company, taken from the most raesting
on December 1, 2011, or if such shares had beeh tha Participant would pay to the Company theped
received from the sale of those 50 shares.

(c) In addition to the foregoing, if the Participanshaalized any profits from the sale of other Conyfmsecurities durir
the 12month period prior to the discovery of breach eraficial impropriety referred to above, the Partioipsha
reimburse the Company for those profits to therxtequired by the Company's Clawback Policy

(d) The Company shall have the right to offsetifatcompensation - including at its sole discretotk compensationte
recover any amounts that may be recovered by thep@oy hereunder.

Miscellaneous.

@ This Agreement and the rights of the Participametieder are subject to all the terms and conditafrthe Plan, as tl
same may be amended from time to time, as welbasuth rules and regulations as the Committee ndayptafol
administration of the Plan. The Committee shallehthe right to impose such restrictions on anyeshacquired pursuz
to this Agreement, as it may deem advisable, inotydvithout limitation, restrictions under applita federal securitit
laws, under the requirements of any stock exchangearket upon which such shares are then listdébatraded, und
any blue sky or state securities laws applicableutch shares. It is expressly understood that timerflittee is authorize
to administer, construe, and make all determinatioecessary or appropriate to the administratioth@fPlan and th
Agreement, all of which shall be binding upon tteetRipant.

(b) The Committee may terminate, amend, or modify tlae Rnd this Agreement under the terms of and &fogé in the
Plan.

(c) The Participant may elect, subject to any procddwrkes adopted by the Committee, to satisfy theéhlolding
requirement, in whole or in part, by having the @amy withhold and sell shares having an aggregaiteMarket Valu
on the date the tax is to be determined, equdleg@imount required to be withheld, subject to &strictions imposed |
applicable securities laws and Company policieandigg trading in its shares.

The Company shall have the power and the righettudt or withhold from the Participant's compemssgtor require hit
or her to remit to the Company, an amount suffictensatisfy federal, state, and local taxes (iditlg the Participant
FICA obligation), domestic or foreign, required layv to be withheld with respect to any payout tm lir her under th
Agreement.

(d) The Participant agrees to take all steps necessargmply with all applicable provisions of fedegaid state securiti
laws in exercising his or her rights under this égment.

(e) This Agreement shall be subject to all applicabled, rules, and regulations, and to such apprdyabmy government
agencies or national securities exchanges as meggbé@ed.
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(h)

@
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(k)

U

This Agreement and the Plan constitute the entiderstanding between the Participant and the Coynpagarding th
RSUs granted hereunder. This Agreement and the $tparsede any prior agreements, commitments astinggns
concerning the RSUs granted hereunder.

All rights and obligations of the Company under Bian and this Agreement, shall inure to the béwéfand be bindin
on any successor to the Company, whether the agistef such successor is the result of a diredhdirect purchas
merger, consolidation, or otherwise, of all or sahsally all of the business and/or assets ofGbenpany.

To the extent not preempted by the laws of theddh@tates, the laws of the State of Delaware bleahe controlling la
in all matters relating to this Agreement withoittigg effect to principles of conflicts of laws.

The Participant acknowledges and agrees that tiver@mts and other provisions contained herein emsonable ai
valid and do not impose limitations greater thassththat are necessary to protect the businessstgeand Confidenti
Information of the Company. The Company and thei¢pant agree that the invalidity or unenforceipibf any one ¢
more of the Covenants, other provisions, or pakseof of this Agreement shall not affect the vigfidr enforceability c
the other Covenants, provisions, or parts thebf which are inserted conditionally on theiiifgevalid in law, and i
the event one or more Covenants, provisions, dsphereof contained herein shall be invalid, thiseement shall k
construed as if such invalid Covenants, provisiamsparts thereof had not been inserted. The Hzatit and th
Company agree that the Covenants and other prosisiontained in this Agreement are severable ansilalie, that non
of such Covenants or provisions depend on any dftmmenant or provision for their enforceabilityatheach suc
Covenant and provision constitutes an enforceabligiaion between the Company and the Participduat, each suc
Covenant and provision shall be construed as aeeaggnt independent of any other Covenant or prvisi this
Agreement, and that the existence of any claimaose of action by one party to this Agreement againother party
this Agreement, whether predicated on this Agre¢roemtherwise, shall not constitute a defensénéeinforcement t
any party to this Agreement of any such Covenamptrovision.

If any of the provisions contained in this Agreerntating to the Covenants or other provisionstaimed herein, or al
part thereof, are determined to be unenforcealdaus® of the length of any period of time, the sizany area, the sca
of activities or similar term contained thereinerthsuch period of time, area, scope of activitiesimilar term shall t
considered to be adjusted to a period of time,,aeape of activities or similar term which wouldre such invalidity
and such Covenant or provision in its reduced fehal then be enforced to the maximum extent péechivy applicabl
law.

This Agreement is intended to satisfy the requireimef Section 409A of the Code and shall be caestraccordinglh
To the extent that any amount or benefit that ¢aries nonqualified deferred compensation undeti@e@09A of th
Code, and that is not exempt under Section 409Autherwise payable or distributable to him or harazcount ¢
separation from service (within the meaning of Bect09A of the Code) while he or she is a spetifeployee (withi
the meaning of Section 409A of the Code), such arhou benefit shall be paid or distributed on tater of time for
payment described in Section 3 of this Agreemedtthat date which is six (6) months after such ssjmm from service

The parties agree that the mutual promises andneons contained in this Agreement constitute good \ealuabl
consideration.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused thiseAgent to be executed effective as of the Daterant.

Mueller Water Products, Inc.

By:

Gregory E. Hyland
Chairman, President, and
Chief Executive Officer

ATTEST:

Participant



MUELLER WATER PRODUCTS, INC.
AMENDED AND RESTATED 2006 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN
PERFORMANCE SHARE AWARD AGREEMENT
This performance share award agreement (this “Agee”), effective as of the date of the award sethfbelow (the “Date of Award"evidence
an agreement to grant performance shares (“Perfaren8hares”) by Mueller Water Products, Inc. (tBerhpany”)to the participant named bel
(the “Participant”), pursuant to the provisionstbé Mueller Water Products, Inc. Amended and Redt2006 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Plan”
subject to satisfaction of the performance critetéscribed in Exhibit A. The Participant has beelteded to be eligible to earn a gran
Performance Shares pursuant to the Plan, as sgkbilow.
If there is any inconsistency between the termthisf Agreement and the terms of the Plan, the teyirthe Plan will supersede and replace
conflicting terms of this Agreement. All capitalizéerms shall have the meanings ascribed to theheiflan, unless specifically set forth other
herein.
Participant:
Date of Award:
Award Cycle:  October 1, 2012 - September 30, 2015.
Target Number of Performance Shares for Award Cycle See Exhibit A.
Maximum Number of Performance Shares for Award Cycé: See Exhibit A.

The parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Performance Period and Criteria. Each fiscal year in the Award Cycle is a sepgpatéormance period (each, a “Performance Pe)iod”

The performance criteria for the first PerformaReziod are described in Exhibit A. The Committe# dévelop the performance crite
for the second and third Performance Periods inAtivard Cycle annually within the time period forvédéoping performance goals un
the regulations under Code Section 162(m). An ameéitkhibit A describing the performance criteria doparticular Performance Per
will be provided to the Participant prior to thedeof the first quarter of that Performance Periad will automatically become a part
this Agreement. As soon as practical after eacfoReance Period ends, the Committee will determitiether the performance crite
have been satisfied and the number of Performanaees, if any, earned by the Participant for siafog.

The actual number of Performance Shares earnea Rarformance Period will depend on the achievemietite performance criteria 1
that Performance Period, as described in Exhibit A.

2. Employment with the Company . Except as may otherwise be provided in Sectioth&,Performance Shares granted hereund:
granted on the condition that (a) the Participamtept this Agreement no later than ninety (90) daylswing the Date of Grant, aft
which time this Agreement shall be void and of naHer effect and (b) the Participant remains im@wous Service from the Date
Award through (and including) the vesting datesetsforth in Section 3 (referred to herein as tReriod of Restriction”).

This Agreement does not confer any right to thdi€pant (or any other participant) to be grantedf@rmance Shares or other Award
the future under the Plan other than as spec¥icibscribed in this Agreement.

3. Vesting.

a. Normal . Except as described in Sections 3(b) and (c)Perticipant's interest in the earned Performarnwees, if any, grant
under this Agreement shall become transferableramdorfeitable (“Vested"on the last day of the Award Cycle provided
Participant continues to be employed in Continudervice through the last day of the Award Cycleh# Participant ceases tc
employed by the Company or any Subsidiary for @ason (except as may be provided in Sections 3(f@)pbefore the last d.
of the Award Cycle), all Performance Shares thatrat then Vested shall be forfeited, without aayrmpent whatsoever to t
Participant.




b. Death, Disability and Retiremenlf a Participant terminates Continuous Servica assult of death, Disability or Retirement
Performance Shares earned for Performance Perawdgleted prior to such termination shall Vest falilog such termination «
Continuous Service. Performance Shares earnedhdoPérformance Period in which the termination cxshall be Vested or
pro rata basis based on the Participant's servidagithe Performance Period and the actual achiené of performance crite
for such Performance Period. No Performance Stelralt be earned for any Performance Period thanbegjter the Participa
terminates Continuous Service.

C. Change of Contral Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in tiiigreement, in the event of a Change of Controlhe
Company during the Period of Restriction and ptacthe Participant's termination of Continuous Rexythe Period of Restricti
imposed on any Performance Shares earned for Renfime Periods completed prior to the Change ofrGbshall immediatel
lapse, and all such Performance Shares shall becamforfeitable, subject to applicable federal atdte securities law
Performance Shares for the Performance Period ichwthe Change of Control occurs and any subsedeeribrmance Period
such Award Cycle shall automatically be earnedaegett and the Period of Restriction shall immedjatapse and all sut
Performance Shares shall become nonforfeitablejestubo applicable federal and state securitiesslaMotwithstanding tt
foregoing, a transaction or series of transactionghich the Company separates one or more okitdieg businesses, whether
sale, spimeff or otherwise, and whether or not any such tratisn or series of transactions requires a votthefstockholder
shall not be considered a “Change of Control.”

Timing of Payout.

a. Normal . Except as described in Sections 4 (b) sharesomfifion Stock attributable to Vested Performance eshahall b
delivered to the Participant or his or her benefigiin the event of the participant's death withimety (90) days after the last «
of the Award Cycle.

b. Death, Disability or Retirementin the event that a Participant terminates Cowtirs Service as a result of death, Disabilil
Retirement, shares of Common Stock attributabMdsted Performance Shares shall be delivered t@dntcipant or his or h
beneficiary in the event of the Participant's deaithin ninety (90) days after the last day of ®erformance Period in which 1
Participant so terminates Continuous Service; pleyisuch termination constitutes a “separation fsemvice”within the meanin
of Section 409A of the Code.

C. Change of Controlin the event of a Change of Control, shares ah@on Stock attributable to Vested Performance Shstral
be delivered at the same time as described in@®ed(a) or Section 4(b) as if the Change of Cortteal not occurredi(e., share
shall be delivered within ninety (90) days followithe end of the Award Cycle or earlier if the Rgpant terminates employme
by reason of death, Disability or Retirement) oomimther termination of Continuous Service; prodidieat such Retirement
other termination of Continuous Service constit@éseparation from service" within the meaningettion 409A of the Code.

d. Specific Payment DateThe Committee shall determine on what date withenninety (90) day payment period described a
actual payment shall be made.

Form of Payout. Vested Performance Shares will be paid out satethe form of shares of common stock of the Comypar such othe
security as common stock shall be converted intthénfuture. The Participant shall be paid one sldrCompany Stock (or such ot
number of securities into which the Common Stockoisverted upon a Change of Control as the Comensthall determine in good fai
for each Vested Performance Share.

Voting Rights and Dividends. Until such time as the Performance Shares amt @ai in shares of the Company's common stocl
Participant shall not have voting rights. Furthrer dividends shall be paid on any of the Perforree®itares.

Termination of Continuous Service. In the event of the Participant's terminationGafntinuous Service for any reason other thai
Participant's death, Disability or Retirement dgrthe Period of Restriction (and except as othenpi®vided in Section 3(c) with resp
to Performance Shares that become nonforfeitalda apChange in Control), all Performance Shares biglthe Participant at the time
his or her termination of Continuous Service aril stibject to the Period of Restriction shall herféited by the Participant to t
Company.




10.

11.

12.

13.

Restrictions on Transfer . Unless and until actual shares of Company stoekraceived upon payout, Performance Shares g
pursuant to this Agreement may not be sold, traresdde pledged, assigned or otherwise alienateg/pothecated (a “Transfer"pther thal
by will or by the laws of descent and distributi@xcept as provided in the Plan. If any Transfdretiver voluntary or involuntary,
Performance Shares is made, or if any attachmgatugion, garnishment or lien shall be issued ajain placed upon the Performa
Shares, the Participant's right to such Performa8itares shall be immediately forfeited by the Egdint to the Company, and t
Agreement shall lapse.

Recapitalization . In the event of any change in the capitalizatibthe Company such as a stock split or corporatesaction such as ¢
merger, consolidation, separation or otherwise nlnaber and class of Performance Shares subjehtstaA\greement shall be equita
adjusted by the Committee, as set forth in the,Réaprevent dilution or enlargement of rights.

Beneficiary Designation. The Participant may, from time to time, name bayeficiary or beneficiaries (who may be namediogently
or successively) to whom any benefit under thisegnent is paid in case of his or her death beferertshe receives any or all of s
benefit. Each such designation shall revoke afirgtesignations by the Participant, shall be inranfprescribed by the Company, and ¢
be effective only when filed by the Participantinting with the Secretary of the Company during bi her lifetime. In the absence of
such designation, benefits remaining unpaid aPdmticipant's death shall be paid to his or heatest

Continuation of Employment . This Agreement shall not confer upon the Paietmany right to continue employment with the Comy
or its Subsidiaries, nor shall this Agreement iieter in any way with the Company's or its Subsidirright to terminate the Participa
employment at any time. For purposes of this Agmesm“Termination of Employmentshall mean termination or cessation of
Participant's employment with the Company and itbs®liaries for any reason (or no reason), whetheitermination of employment
instituted by the Participant or the Company oubsidiary, and whether the termination of employtmigmvith or without cause.

Noncompetition . Upon termination other than involuntary termipatinot for cause, the Participant agrees thatpfier year followin
such termination, he or she will not engage in eee or management services for a company thahimwthe 12 months prior to t
termination, sold products that compete with thedpcts of the Company or its subsidiaries (a “Cditqgee’ and such products beinq
“Competitor's Products™vithin 25 miles of any location in the United Statghere the Company or its subsidiaries had sdlpsoduct:
(the “Restricted Area”) at the time of such terntioa.

The Participant acknowledges and agrees that:

a. The Participant is familiar with the businesseshef Company and its Subsidiaries and the commeanidlcompetitive nature
the industry and recognizes that the value of then@any's business would be injured if the Partiipgerformed Competitiy
Services for a Competing Business;

b. This covenant not to compete is essential to tidirmeed good will and profitability of the Compa

C. In the course of employment with the Company ofittbsidiaries, the Participant will become familiath the trade secrets
other Confidential Information (as defined belowW}tte Company and its Subsidiaries, affiliates, atitr related entities, and t
the Participant's services will be of special, ueigand extraordinary value to the Company; and

d. The Participant's skills and abilities should epalim or her to seek and obtain similar employmerd business other thai
Competing Business, and the Participant possesisesskills that will serve as the basis for empheynt opportunities that are |
prohibited by this covenant not to compete. Follayihe Participant's Termination of Employment vt Company, he or s
expects to be able to earn a livelihood withoutating the terms of this Agreement.

Nonsolicitation of Employees During the term of the Participant's employmeithwhe Company or its Subsidiaries and for a pkot
twelve (12) months following the Participant's Taration of Employment, the Participant shall ndther on his or her own account or
any person, entity, business or enterprise withénRestricted Area: (a) solicit any employee of@uenpany or its Subsidiaries with wh
the Participant had contact during the two (2) geaior to his or her Termination of Employmentegave his or her employment with
Company or its Subsidiaries; or (b) induce or afietn induce any such employee to breach any emmay agreement with the Compe




14.

15.

16.

Nonsolicitation of Customers. During the term of the Participant's employmeithwhe Company or its Subsidiaries and for a pkot
one year following the Participant's TerminationEwhployment, the Participant shall not directlyirdirectly solicit or attempt to solic
any current customer of the Company or any of itssRliaries with which the Participant had Mate@aintact (as defined below) dur
the two (2) years prior to his or her TerminatiodhEonployment: (a) to cease doing business in whwlén part with or through tt
Company or any of its Subsidiaries; or (b) to dsibess with any other person, entity, businessnterprise which performs servic
competitive to those provided by the Company or afhigs Subsidiaries. This restriction on pestployment conduct shall apply only
solicitation for the purpose of selling or offeripgoducts or services that are similar to or whiompete with those products or serv
offered by the Company or its Subsidiaries during period of the Participant's employment. For pses of this SectionMateria
Contact”shall be defined as any communication intendedxpeeted to develop or further a business relatipnahd customers abc
which the employee learned confidential informatsna result of his or her employment.

Developments; NonrDisparagement . The Participant agrees that neither during hisher employment nor following his or |
Termination of Employment and continuing for sodas the Company or any affiliate, successor dgeasshereof carries on the namu
like business within the Restricted Area, the Rgudint shall not, directly or indirectly, for himier herself or on behalf of, or
conjunction with, any other person, persons, comppartnership, corporation, business entity oentlise make any statements that
inflammatory, detrimental, slanderous, or mateyialegative in any way to the interests of the Camyper its Subsidiaries or ott
affiliated entities.

Confidentiality and Nondisclosure.

a. The Participant agrees that he or she will noteothan in performance of his or her duties for @mmpany or its Subsidiari
disclose or divulge to Third Parties (as definelbb$ or use or exploit for his or her own benefitfor the benefit of Third Parti
any Confidential Information, including trade sdsrd~or the purposes of this Agreement, “Confidgrtiformation”shall mea
confidential and proprietary information, trade re¢g, knowledge or data relating to the Company itm&ubsidiaries and th
businesses, including but not limited to informataisclosed to the Participant, or known by theiBipant as a consequence o
through employment with the Company or its Subsiei&a where such information is not generally knawihe trade or industr
and where such information refers or relates inraapner whatsoever to the business activities gss®s, services, or product
the Company or its Subsidiaries; business and dpue@nt plans (whether contemplated, initiated, anmleted); mergers a
acquisitions; pricing information; business contasiburces of supply; customer information (inahgdcustomer lists, custon
preferences, and sales history); methods of operatésults of analysis; customer lists (includadyertising contacts); busin
forecasts; financial data; costs; revenues; inftionanaintained in electronic form (such amails, computer files, or informati
on a cell phone, Blackberry, or other personal datace); and similar information. Confidential énfnation shall not include a
data or information in the public domain, othertlees a result of a breach of this Agreement. Theigions of this paragraph st
apply to the Participant at any time during hidier employment with the Company or its Subsidiagied for a period of two (
years following his or her Termination of Employmen, if the Confidential Information is a tradecsst, such longer period
time as may be permitted by controlling trade sdenes.

b. The Participant acknowledges and agrees that théideatial Information is necessary for the Comparapility to compete wi
its competitors. The Participant further acknowlesigind agrees that the prohibitions against disdoand use of Confident
Information recited herein are in addition to, arwd in lieu of, any rights or remedies that the @amy or a Subsidiary may he¢
available pursuant to the laws of the State of Data to prevent the disclosure of trade secretproprietary informatior
including but not limited to the Delaware Uniformatle Secrets Act, 6 Del. Code Ann. 82001, et skq.Farticipant agrees t
this nondisclosure obligation may extend longer than twpy@ars following his or her Termination of Emplogm as to ar
materials or information that constitutes a traglerat under the Delaware Uniform Trade Secrets Act.

C. For purposes of this Agreement, “Third Party”“®©hird Parties”shall mean persons, sole proprietorships, firmsinpeships
limited liability partnerships, associations, camgions, limited liability companies, and all othbusiness organizations ¢
entities, excluding the Participant and the Company

d. The Participant agrees to take all reasonable ptiecs to safeguard and prevent disclosure of @enfial Information t
unauthorized persons or entities.




17.

18.

19.

Intellectual Property . The Participant agrees that he or she has nt tigise for the benefit of the Participant or amyather than tt

Company or its Subsidiaries, any of the copyrighégemarks, service marks, patents, and inventibttee Company or its Subsidiaries.

Injunctive Relief . The Participant and the Company recognize theddir of the provisions of this Agreement restrigtine Participant

activities would give rise to immediate and irregdde injury to the Company that is inadequately gensable in damages. In the event
breach or threatened breach of the restrictiondagwed in this Agreement regarding noncompetitinansolicitation of employee
nonsolicitation of customers, Developments, wisparagement, confidentiality and nondisclosureCainfidential Information, ar
intellectual property (collectively, the “Covenaiisthe Participant agrees and consents that the Comglaail be entitled to injuncti
relief, both preliminary and permanent, without 8pm addition to reimbursement from the Participm all reasonable attorneys' f
and expenses incurred by the Company in enfortieget provisions, should the Company prevail. ThédRzant also agrees not raise
defense that the Company has an adequate reméy. ah addition, the Company shall be entitlecty other legal or equitable reme«
as may be available under law. The remedies prdvidehis Agreement shall be deemed cumulative thedexercise of one shall |
preclude the exercise of any other remedy at laim equity for the same event or any other event.

Dispute Resolution; Agreement to Arbitrate.

a. The Participant and the Company agree that findl lsinding arbitration shall be the exclusive remddy any controvers
dispute, or claim arising out of or relating tostiligreement.

b. This Section covers all claims and actions of wat@ature, both at law and in equity, includingt bot limited to, any claim fi
breach of contract (including this Agreement), amddudes claims against the Participant and clagenst the Company and
Subsidiaries and/or any parents, affiliates, ownefficers, directors, employees, agents, genexghprs or limited partners of 1
Company, to the extent such claims involve, in amy, this Agreement. This Section covers all jualiclaims that could |
brought by either party to this Agreement, but doaiscover the filing of charges with governmengragjes that prohibit waiver
the right to file a charge.

C. The arbitration proceeding will be administet®d a single arbitrator (the “Arbitratorin accordance with the Commer:
Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Assaiton, taking into account the need for speed aadfidentiality. Thi
Arbitrator shall be an attorney or judge with exeece in contract litigation and selected pursuarthe applicable rules of t
American Arbitration Association.

d. The place and situs of arbitration shall be Wilntamy Delaware (or such other location as may beuailyt agreed to by tt
parties). The Arbitrator may adopt the Commercidditkation Rules of the American Arbitration Assation, but shall be entitl
to deviate from such rules in the Arbitrator's sditecretion in the interest of a speedy resolutibany dispute or as the Arbitra
shall deem just. The parties agree to facilitate dhbitration by (a) making available to each othed to the Arbitrator fc
inspection and review all documents, books andrdscas the Arbitrator shall determine to be relétarthe dispute, (b) makii
individuals under their control available to otlparties and the Arbitrator and (c) observing dirittie time periods established
the Arbitrator for the submission of evidence alghgdings. The Arbitrator shall have the power toder declaratory judgmer
as well as to award monetary claims, provided tthatArbitrator shall not have the power to acb(ijside the prescribed scopt
this Agreement, or (ii) without providing an opparity to each party to be represented before thtrator.

e. The Arbitrator's award shall be in writing. The itndtor shall allocate the costs and expenses @fptioceedings between
parties and shall award interest as the Arbitrd®ems appropriate. The arbitration judgment shalfifial and binding on ti
parties. Judgment on the Arbitrator's award magrdered in any court having jurisdiction.

The Participant and the Company agree and unddrgtahby executing this Agreement and agreeingigArbitration provision, they a

giving up their rights to trial by jury for any giste related to this Agreement.

(the Participant's initials)

(the Company Representative's initials)




20. Clawback .

a. In the event of a breach of this Agreement by tadiépant or a material breach of Company policyaws or regulations th
could result in a termination for cause (whethenat the Participant is terminated), then the Rarémce shares granted her
shall be void and of no effect, unless the Committetermines otherwise.

b. In the event of financial impropriety by the Pagant that results in a restatement of the findrat&ements of the Company
any applicable period (the “Applicable Periodds determined by the Audit Committee or the Com[saimglependent registel
public accounting firm; then, if the award grantexteby is made during the Applicable Period or iwi®0 days after the end
such Applicable Period, the number of Performarta&s granted hereunder shall be reduced by #ofnact

0] The numerator of which is the amount of operatimgpme decline for the Applicable Period caused umt
restatement or breach, and

(ii) The denominator of which is the amount of operatimugpme previously determined for the Applicableitd
or if the breach does not result in a decreaskdratount of operating income, the fraction shalb0%.

If Performance Shares have already vested undeitnieement, then the reduction contemplated ks $lgiction 20(b) shall

applied first to the remaining Performance Shamnashave not vested, pro rata, and second to sted/shares and the Particiy
shall repay the Company by forfeiting to the Compamumber of excess shares received that would bBaveeded the amo
granted hereby, to be taken from the most recestinge of Performance Shares or, if such shares haea sold, the procee
received from the sale of such shares that wolldretise have been forfeited.

As an example of the foregoing, assume the Paatitips granted an award of 300 Performance Shard3egember 1, 201
which may be earned in equal tranches during Redoce Periods ending on September 30, 2013, Septedth 2014 ar
September 30, 2015.

If the Company discovers a breach or financial mppiety by the Participant on June 30, 2014, whéctds to a 50% decreast
operating income for the 2013 fiscal year and whiohld not result in termination for cause, thea #tward granted would
reduced to 150 Performance Shares, and the redustiald be applied equally to all three PerformaRegiods, which wou
mean that the 100 Performance Shares allocateattoRerformance Period would be reduced to 50 Peafice Shares.

If the Company discovers a breach or financial imppiety by the Participant on June 30, 2016, wheégtds to a 50% decreast
operating income for the 2013 fiscal year and witichld not result in termination for cause, them Barticipant would forfeit 1*
shares to the Company, or if such shares had ldeéntke Participant would pay to the Company trexeeds received from t
sale of those 150 shares.

C. In addition to the foregoing, if the Participdmas realized any profits from the sale of othemPany's securities during the 12-
month period prior to the discovery of breach oraficial impropriety referred to above, the Par#oipshall reimburse tl
Company for those profits to the extent requiredieyCompany's Clawback Policy.

d. The Company shall have the right to offset ieitcompensation - including at its sole discrestotk compensationte recove
any amounts that may be recovered by the Compaeyhéer.

21. Miscellaneous.

a. This Agreement and the rights of the Participametieder are subject to all the terms and conditadrike Plan, as the same r
be amended from time to time, as well as to suldsrand regulations as the Committee may adomdoninistration of the Pla
The Committee shall have the right to impose seslrictions on any shares acquired pursuant toAtliisement, as it may de
advisable, including, without limitation, restriotis under applicable federal securities laws, utiteerequirements of any stc
exchange or market upon which such shares arditited and/or traded, under any blue sky or stateirsties laws applicable to




such shares. It is expressly understood that then@itiee is authorized to administer, construe arakemall determinatiol
necessary or appropriate to the administratiom®fRlan and this Agreement, all of which shall imeling upon the Participant.

The Committee may terminate, amend or modify tle Rihd this Agreement under the terms of and dsrsletin the Plar

The Participant may elect, subject to any procddulas adopted by the Committee, to satisfy théhkeolding requirement,

whole or in part, by having the Company withholdl aell shares having an aggregate Fair Market Vafuthe date the tax is
be determined, equal to the amount required to itltheld, subject to the restrictions imposed byliapple securities laws a
Company policies regarding trading in its shares.

The Company shall have the power and the righethudt or withhold from the Participant's compemsgtdr require him or h
to remit to the Company, an amount sufficient tiisfafederal, state, and local taxes (including Barticipant's FICA obligatior
domestic or foreign, required by law to be withheith respect to any payout to him or her undes fgreement.

The Participant agrees to take all steps necessargmply with all applicable provisions of federald state securities laws
exercising his or her rights under this Agreement.

This Agreement shall be subject to all applicabled, rules and regulations, and to such approwadnlp governmental agenc
or national securities exchanges as may be required

This Agreement and the Plan constitute the entitdetstanding between the Participant and the Coynpegarding th
Performance Shares granted hereunder. This Agréemdrthe Plan supersede any prior agreements, itorants or negotiatiol
concerning the Performance Shares granted hereunder

All rights and obligations of the Company under Bian and this Agreement, shall inure to the béméfand be binding on a
successor to the Company, whether the existencsucii successor is the result of a direct or intimechase, mergs
consolidation, or otherwise, of all or substanyialll of the business and/or assets of the Company.

To the extent not preempted by the laws of the ddhBtates, the laws of the State of Delaware sleathe controlling law in &
matters relating to this Agreement without givirffpet to principles of conflicts of laws.

The Participant acknowledges and agrees that ther@ots and other provisions contained hereineasonable and valid and
not impose limitations greater than those thatreeessary to protect the business interests anfidéotial Information of th
Company. The Company and the Participant agreettiieainvalidity or unenforceability of any one omore of the Covenan
other provisions, or parts thereof of this Agreetrstrall not affect the validity or enforceability the other Covenants, provisio
or parts thereof, all of which are inserted cowdiéilly on their being valid in law, and in the ev@me or more Covenan
provisions, or parts thereof contained herein shallinvalid, this Agreement shall be construedfasuch invalid Covenani
provisions, or parts thereof had not been inseffld. Participant and the Company agree that thee@owvs and other provisic
contained in this Agreement are severable andidigisthat none of such Covenants or provisionseddpn any other Coven
or provision for their enforceability, that eachcbuCovenant and provision constitutes an enforeeabligation between t
Company and the Participant, that each such Covemahprovision shall be construed as an agreeméapendent of any ott
Covenant or provision of this Agreement, and that éxistence of any claim or cause of action by merty to this Agreeme
against another party to this Agreement, whethedipated on this Agreement or otherwise, shallaooistitute a defense to
enforcement by any party to this Agreement of amhsCovenant or provision.

If any of the provisions contained in this Agreemeglating to the Covenants or other provisionstamed herein, or any p.
thereof, are determined to be unenforceable beaHube length of any period of time, the size oy @area, the scope of activit
or similar term contained therein, then such pewbdime, area, scope of activities or similar teshmall be considered to
adjusted to a period of time, area, scope of dsvior similar term which would cure such invdldiand such Covenant
provision in its reduced form shall then be enfdraethe maximum extent permitted by applicable. law




This Agreement is intended to satisfy the requineimef Section 409A of the Code and shall be caestraccordingly. To tt
extent that any amount or benefit that constitnmsqualified deferred compensation under Sectid?J4ef the Code, and that
not exempt under Section 409A, is otherwise payabldistributable to him or her on account of safian from service (withi
the meaning of Section 409A of the Code) while hehe is a specified employee (within the meanih&exction 409A of th
Code), such amount or benefit shall be paid oriligied on the later of time for payment describe8ection 4 of this Agreeme
and that date which is six (6) months after the dditsuch separation from service.

The parties agree that the mutual promises anchemig contained in this Agreement constitute gombhaluable consideratic

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused thie@gent to be executed effective as of the Daaraft.

ATTEST:

Mueller Water Products, Inc.

By:
Gregory E. Hyland
Chairman, President, and
Chief Executive Officer

Participant




EXHIBIT A

Maximum Number of Performance Shares and AllocatioRerformance Periods

The Participant shall be eligible to earn up toftilwwing number of Performance Shares identifigghosite each Performance Period below:

Maximum Number of Target Number of Threshold Number of
Performance Shares That May|Berformance Shares That M@erformance Shares T
Performance Period Earned be Earned May be Earned
October 1, 2012 - September 30, 2013
October 1, 2013
October 1, 2014
Maximum Number of Target Number of Threshold Number of
Performance Shares That May|lRerformance Shares That Md@erformance Shares Tk
Award Cycle Earned be Earned May be Earned
October 1, 2012 - September 30, 2015




Performance Criteria
For Performance Period October 1, 20 B&ptember 30, 2013
General

The Performance Shares shall be earned as setbfedtv with respect to the applicable Performanegdd; provided that the Company's RO
for the applicable Performance Period equals oeeas the Target RONA (as set forth below) for sBelformance Period. “RONAMheans th
guotient obtained by dividing “Adjusted Operatimgzdme” (after taxes but excluding amortization)tbg monthly average of “Working Capital”
and fixed assets, as derived from the Companyaiml statements, with such adjustments as then@ibee establishes in writing at the tim
establishes the Target RONA, Threshold RONA andiMar RONA for such Performance Period. “Adjustede@ping Income’for this purpos
means income from operations adjusted to remowegpily restructuring charges. “Working Capitédt this purpose means the average of adj
current assets less adjusted current liabilitidsclvmeasures exclude cash and cash equivalefiésratbincome taxes, debt and items report
held for sale.

“Target RONA”, “Threshold RONA” and “Maximum RONA"in each case means the specific fiscal year-pgar-improvement in RON.,
expressed as a percentage, established by the @eerfur the applicable Performance Period. Nosstithding the foregoing, if the Compat
RONA for the Performance Period does not meet oeex Target RONA for such fiscal year, but RONA $ach Performance Period meet
exceeds Threshold RONA, then fifty percent (50%hef Performance Shares award for such Perfornfaaged shall be earned. For the avoidi
of doubt, if RONA for the Performance Period isdvelThreshold RONA, no Performance Shares shalréeted for such Performance Period.

The Committee will develop the performance critddasubsequent Performance Periods in the AwardeCgnnually within the time period !
developing performance goals under the regulatiorder Code Section 162(m). An amended Exhibit Acdieimg the performance criteria fo
particular Performance Period will be provided tacte Participant prior to the end of the first geardf that Performance Period and
automatically become a part of this Agreement.

Performance Goals for Performance Period Octob2012 to September 30, 2013

Percentage of Target Performance Maximum Number of
Performance Level Fiscal 2013 RONA Goal of Shares Earned Performance Shares Earneg
Maximum 20(%
Target 10C%
Threshold 50%
Below Threshold —%




MUELLER WATER PRODUCTS, INC.
AMENDED AND RESTATED 2006 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN
PERFORMANCE SHARE AWARD AGREEMENT (STUB PERIOD)
This performance share award agreement (this “Agee”), effective as of the date of the award sethfbelow (the “Date of Award"evidence
an agreement to make a cash payment by MuelleriRadelucts, Inc. (the “Company”) to the participaamed below (the “Participantfursuar
to the provisions of the Mueller Water Products;. IAmended and Restated 2006 Stock Incentive Rban “Plan”) based on the number
performance shares ("Performance Shares") earndoebyarticipant subject to satisfaction of thefqrenance criteria described in Exhibit A. 1
Participant has been selected to be eligible ta aacash payment based on the value of the Penficen8hares earned pursuant to the Ple
specified below.
If there is any inconsistency between the termthisf Agreement and the terms of the Plan, the teyirthe Plan will supersede and replace
conflicting terms of this Agreement. All capitalizéerms shall have the meanings ascribed to theheiflan, unless specifically set forth other
herein.
Participant:
Date of Award:
Award Cycle: October 1, 2012 - September 30, 2014
Target Number of Performance Shares for Award CycleSee Exhibit A
Maximum Number of Performance Shares for Award Cycé: See Exhibit A.

The parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Performance Period and Criteria. Each fiscal year in the Award Cycle is a sepgpatéormance period (each, a “Performance Pe)iod”

The performance criteria for the first PerformaReziod are described in Exhibit A. The Committe# dévelop the performance crite
for the second Performance Period in the Award €wgthin the time period for developing performamgoals under the regulations ur
Code Section 162(m). An amended Exhibit A descghire performance criteria for the second Perforad®eriod will be provided to t
Participant prior to the end of the first quartétimt Performance Period and will automaticallgdree a part of this Agreement. As s
as practical after each Performance Period endsCtimmittee will determine whether the performacriteria have been satisfied and
number of Performance Shares, if any, earned bip#ngcipant for such period.

The actual amount of cash earned for a PerformBeded will depend on the achievement of the peréorce criteria for that Performal
Period, as described in Exhibit A and the Fair MaNalue of Company Stock on the last businessofitlye Award Cycle.

2. Employment with the Company . Except as may otherwise be provided in Sectioth&,payment earned hereunder is subject t
following conditions: (a) the Participant accepstAgreement no later than ninety (90) days follogvthe Date of Grant, after which ti
this Agreement shall be void and of no further @ffand (b) the Participant remains in Continuouwie from the Date of Award throu
(and including) the vesting date, as set forthent®n 3 (referred to herein as the “Period of Ret&in”).

This Agreement does not confer any right to thdi€pant (or any other participant) to be grantedf@rmance Shares or other Award
the future under the Plan other than as spec¥icibscribed in this Agreement.

3. Vesting.

a. Normal . Except as described in Sections 3(b) and (c)Pduicipant's interest in the value of the Perfmmoe Shares, if ar
earned under this Agreement shall become trandéeaadd nonforfeitable (“Vested9n the last day of the applicable Award C
provided the Participant continues to be employe@antinuous Service through the last day of theahCycle. If the Participa
ceases to be employed by the Company or any Sabgiidir any reason (except as may be provided ati®es 3(b) or (c)) befo
the last day of the Award




Cycle), the value of all Performance Shares thatrent then Vested shall be forfeited, without aayrpent whatsoever to t
Participant.

b. Death, Disability and Retiremenlf a Participant terminates Continuous Servica assult of death, Disability or Retirement
Performance Shares earned for the PerformancedPasiapleted prior to such termination shall Vedibfeing such terminatic
of Continuous Service. Performance Shares earmafidd®erformance Period in which the terminatioouns shall be Vested ol
pro rata basis based on the Participant's servidagithe Performance Period and the actual achiené of performance crite
for such Performance Period. No Performance Stelralt be earned for any Performance Period thanbegjter the Participa
terminates Continuous Service.

C. Change of Contral Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in tiiigreement, in the event of a Change of Controlhe
Company during the Period of Restriction and ptacthe Participant's termination of Continuous Rexythe Period of Restricti
imposed on any Performance Shares earned for thierfance Period completed prior to the Change oftfl shal
immediately lapse, and all such Performance Shalval be come nonforfeitable, subject to applicdbtieral and state securit
laws. The Performance Shares for the Performanged®a which the Change of Control occurs and smgsequent Performar
Period in such Award Cycle shall automatically laened at target and the Period of Restriction shathediately lapse and
such Performance Shares shall become nonforfejtablgect to applicable federal and state secsritiers. Notwithstanding tl
foregoing, a transaction or series of transactionghich the Company separates one or more okitieg businesses, whether
sale, spimeff or otherwise, and whether or not any such tratisn or series of transactions requires a votthefstockholder
shall not be considered a “Change of Control.”

Timing of Payout.

a. Normal. Except as described in Section 4(b), payout aftétk Performance Shares, shall be made withinyn{@86) days after tt
last day of the Award Cycle.

b. Death, Disability or Retirementin the event that a Participant terminates Cointiis Service as a result of death, Disabilii
Retirement, payout of Vested Performance Sharel lshanade within ninety (90) days after the laay af the Performan
Period in which the Participant so terminates Gurdus Service; provided such termination consstide'separation froi
service” within the meaning of Section 409A of thede.

C. Change of Contral In the event of a Change of Control, payout shallmade at the same time as described in Sedtro
Section 4(b) as if the Change of Control had nauoed (i.e., such Performance Shares shall be paid within ni(@dy day
following the end of the Award Cycle or earliertlfie Participant terminates employment by reasonlezth, Disability ¢
Retirement) or upon other termination of Continu@ssvice; provided that such Retirement or otheniteation of Continuot
Service constitutes a "separation from servicehiwithe meaning of Section 409A of the Code.

d. Specific Payment Dat&he Committee shall determine on what date witha niinety (90) day payment period described a
actual payment shall be made.

Form of Payout. Vested Performance Shares will be paid out saetiie form of cash. The Participant shall be gaish equal to the F
Market Value of one share of Company Stock as @fldkt business day of the Award Cycle (or the thedne of such other securities i
which the Common Stock is converted upon a Charfg€omtrol as the Committee shall determine in gdaith) for each Veste
Performance Share.

Right to Shares, Voting Rights and Dividends The Participant shall not have any right to skarfestock or other equity or securitie:
the Company. Accordingly, the Participant shall hate voting rights with respect to Performancer&hand no dividends shall be paic
any of the Performance Shares.

Termination of Continuous Service. In the event of the Participant's terminationGafntinuous Service for any reason other thai
Participant's death, Disability or Retirement dgrthe Period of Restriction (and except as othenpi®vided in Section 3(b) with resp
to Performance Shares that become nonforfeitalda apChange in Control), all Performance Shares bielthe Participant at the time
his or her termination of Continuous Service aril stibject to the Period of Restriction shall herféited by the Participant to t
Company.




10.

11.

12.

13.

Restrictions on Transfer . Performance Shares earned pursuant to this Agmetemay not be sold, transferred, pledged, assign
otherwise alienated or hypothecated (a “Transf&ther than by will or by the laws of descent anstriiution, except as provided in
Plan. If any Transfer, whether voluntary or invdhny, of Performance Shares is made, or if anyhitteent, execution, garnishment or
shall be issued against or placed upon the Perfmen&hares, the Participant's right to such Pednom Shares shall be immedia
forfeited by the Participant to the Company, ard #tgreement shall lapse.

Recapitalization . In the event of any change in the capitalizatbthe Company such as a stock split or corporatesaction such as
merger, consolidation, separation or otherwise nlnaber and class of Performance Shares subjehtstaA\greement shall be equita
adjusted by the Committee, as set forth in the,Réaprevent dilution or enlargement of rights.

Beneficiary Designation. The Participant may, from time to time, name bayeficiary or beneficiaries (who may be namediogently
or successively) to whom any benefit under thisegnent is paid in case of his or her death beferertshe receives any or all of s
benefit. Each such designation shall revoke afirgtesignations by the Participant, shall be inranfprescribed by the Company, and ¢
be effective only when filed by the Participantinting with the Secretary of the Company during bi her lifetime. In the absence of
such designation, benefits remaining unpaid aPdmticipant's death shall be paid to his or heatest

Continuation of Employment . This Agreement shall not confer upon the Parietmany right to continue employment with the Comy
or its Subsidiaries, nor shall this Agreement iieter in any way with the Company's or its Subsidi&rright to terminate the Participa
employment at any time. For purposes of this Agmesm“Termination of Employmentshall mean termination or cessation of
Participant's employment with the Company and itbs®liaries for any reason (or no reason), whetheitermination of employment
instituted by the Participant or the Company oubsidiary, and whether the termination of employmigmvith or without cause.

Noncompetition . Upon termination other than involuntary termipatinot for cause, the Participant agrees thatpfier year followin
such termination, he or she will not engage in eiee or management services for a company thahimwthe 12 months prior to t
termination, sold products that compete with thedpcts of the Company or its subsidiaries (a “Cditgee’ and such products beinq
“Competitor's Products™vithin 25 miles of any location in the United Statghere the Company or its subsidiaries had sdlpsoduct:
(the “Restricted Area”) at the time of such terntioa.

The Participant acknowledges and agrees that:

a. The Participant is familiar with the businesseshef Company and its Subsidiaries and the commeanidlcompetitive nature
the industry and recognizes that the value of then@any's business would be injured if the Partiipgerformed Competitiy
Services for a Competing Business;

b. This covenant not to compete is essential to tiirmeed good will and profitability of the Compa

C. In the course of employment with the Company ofittbsidiaries, the Participant will become familiath the trade secrets
other Confidential Information (as defined belowW}tte Company and its Subsidiaries, affiliates, atitr related entities, and t
the Participant's services will be of special, ueigand extraordinary value to the Company; and

d. The Participant's skills and abilities should epalim or her to seek and obtain similar employmerd business other thal
Competing Business, and the Participant possesisesskills that will serve as the basis for empheynt opportunities that are |
prohibited by this covenant not to compete. Follayvthe Participant's Termination of Employment vitie Company, he or s
expects to be able to earn a livelihood withoutating the terms of this Agreement.

Nonsolicitation of Employees During the term of the Participant's employmeithwhe Company or its Subsidiaries and for a pkot
twelve (12) months following the Participant's Taration of Employment, the Participant shall ndther on his or her own account or
any person, entity, business or enterprise withénRestricted Area: (a) solicit any employee of@uenpany or its Subsidiaries with wh
the Participant had contact during the two (2) geaior to his or her Termination of Employmentiegave his or her employment with
Company or its Subsidiaries; or (b) induce or afietn induce any such employee to breach any emmay agreement with the Compe




14.

15.

16.

Nonsolicitation of Customers. During the term of the Participant's employmeithwhe Company or its Subsidiaries and for a pkot
one year following the Participant's TerminationEwhployment, the Participant shall not directlyirdirectly solicit or attempt to solic
any current customer of the Company or any of itssRliaries with which the Participant had Mate@aintact (as defined below) dur
the two (2) years prior to his or her TerminatiodhEonployment: (a) to cease doing business in whwlén part with or through tt
Company or any of its Subsidiaries; or (b) to dsibess with any other person, entity, businessnterprise which performs servic
competitive to those provided by the Company or afhigs Subsidiaries. This restriction on pestployment conduct shall apply only
solicitation for the purpose of selling or offeripgoducts or services that are similar to or whiompete with those products or serv
offered by the Company or its Subsidiaries during period of the Participant's employment. For pses of this SectionMateria
Contact”shall be defined as any communication intendedxpeeted to develop or further a business relatipnahd customers abc
which the employee learned confidential informatsna result of his or her employment.

Developments; NonrDisparagement . The Participant agrees that neither during hisher employment nor following his or |
Termination of Employment and continuing for sodas the Company or any affiliate, successor dgeasshereof carries on the namu
like business within the Restricted Area, the Rgudint shall not, directly or indirectly, for himier herself or on behalf of, or
conjunction with, any other person, persons, comppartnership, corporation, business entity oentlise make any statements that
inflammatory, detrimental, slanderous, or mateyialegative in any way to the interests of the Camyper its Subsidiaries or ott
affiliated entities.

Confidentiality and Nondisclosure.

a. The Participant agrees that he or she will noteothan in performance of his or her duties for @mmpany or its Subsidiari
disclose or divulge to Third Parties (as definelbb$ or use or exploit for his or her own benefitfor the benefit of Third Parti
any Confidential Information, including trade sdsrd~or the purposes of this Agreement, “Confidgrtiformation”shall mea
confidential and proprietary information, trade re¢g, knowledge or data relating to the Company itm&ubsidiaries and th
businesses, including but not limited to informataisclosed to the Participant, or known by theiBipant as a consequence o
through employment with the Company or its Subsiei&a where such information is not generally knawihe trade or industr
and where such information refers or relates inraapner whatsoever to the business activities gss®s, services, or product
the Company or its Subsidiaries; business and dpue@nt plans (whether contemplated, initiated, anmleted); mergers a
acquisitions; pricing information; business contasiburces of supply; customer information (inahgdcustomer lists, custon
preferences, and sales history); methods of operatésults of analysis; customer lists (includadyertising contacts); busin
forecasts; financial data; costs; revenues; inftionanaintained in electronic form (such amails, computer files, or informati
on a cell phone, Blackberry, or other personal datace); and similar information. Confidential énfnation shall not include a
data or information in the public domain, othertlees a result of a breach of this Agreement. Theigions of this paragraph st
apply to the Participant at any time during hidier employment with the Company or its Subsidiagied for a period of two (
years following his or her Termination of Employmen, if the Confidential Information is a tradecsst, such longer period
time as may be permitted by controlling trade sdenes.

b. The Participant acknowledges and agrees that théideatial Information is necessary for the Comparapility to compete wi
its competitors. The Participant further acknowlesigind agrees that the prohibitions against disdoand use of Confident
Information recited herein are in addition to, arwd in lieu of, any rights or remedies that the @amy or a Subsidiary may he¢
available pursuant to the laws of the State of Data to prevent the disclosure of trade secretproprietary informatior
including but not limited to the Delaware Uniformatle Secrets Act, 6 Del. Code Ann. 82001, et skq.Farticipant agrees t
this nondisclosure obligation may extend longer than twpy@ars following his or her Termination of Emplogm as to ar
materials or information that constitutes a traglerat under the Delaware Uniform Trade Secrets Act.

C. For purposes of this Agreement, “Third Party”“®©hird Parties”shall mean persons, sole proprietorships, firmsinpeships
limited liability partnerships, associations, camgions, limited liability companies, and all othbusiness organizations ¢
entities, excluding the Participant and the Company

d. The Participant agrees to take all reasonable ptiecs to safeguard and prevent disclosure of @enfial Information t
unauthorized persons or entities.




17.

18.

19.

Intellectual Property . The Participant agrees that he or she has nt tigise for the benefit of the Participant or amyather than tt

Company or its Subsidiaries, any of the copyrighégemarks, service marks, patents, and inventibttee Company or its Subsidiaries.

Injunctive Relief . The Participant and the Company recognize theddir of the provisions of this Agreement restrigtine Participant

activities would give rise to immediate and irregdde injury to the Company that is inadequately gensable in damages. In the event
breach or threatened breach of the restrictiondagwed in this Agreement regarding noncompetitinansolicitation of employee
nonsolicitation of customers, Developments, wisparagement, confidentiality and nondisclosureCainfidential Information, ar
intellectual property (collectively, the “Covenaiisthe Participant agrees and consents that the Comglaail be entitled to injuncti
relief, both preliminary and permanent, without 8pm addition to reimbursement from the Participm all reasonable attorneys' f
and expenses incurred by the Company in enfortieget provisions, should the Company prevail. ThédRzant also agrees not raise
defense that the Company has an adequate reméy. ah addition, the Company shall be entitlecty other legal or equitable reme«
as may be available under law. The remedies prdvidehis Agreement shall be deemed cumulative thedexercise of one shall |
preclude the exercise of any other remedy at laim equity for the same event or any other event.

Dispute Resolution; Agreement to Arbitrate.

a. The Participant and the Company agree that findl lsinding arbitration shall be the exclusive remddy any controvers
dispute, or claim arising out of or relating tostiligreement.

b. This Section covers all claims and actions of wat@ature, both at law and in equity, includingt bot limited to, any claim fi
breach of contract (including this Agreement), amddudes claims against the Participant and clagenst the Company and
Subsidiaries and/or any parents, affiliates, ownefficers, directors, employees, agents, genexghprs or limited partners of 1
Company, to the extent such claims involve, in amy, this Agreement. This Section covers all jualiclaims that could |
brought by either party to this Agreement, but doaiscover the filing of charges with governmengragjes that prohibit waiver
the right to file a charge.

C. The arbitration proceeding will be administet®d a single arbitrator (the “Arbitratorin accordance with the Commer:
Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Assaiton, taking into account the need for speed aadfidentiality. Thi
Arbitrator shall be an attorney or judge with exeece in contract litigation and selected pursuarthe applicable rules of t
American Arbitration Association.

d. The place and situs of arbitration shall be Wilntamy Delaware (or such other location as may beuailyt agreed to by tt
parties). The Arbitrator may adopt the Commercidditkation Rules of the American Arbitration Assation, but shall be entitl
to deviate from such rules in the Arbitrator's sditecretion in the interest of a speedy resolutibany dispute or as the Arbitra
shall deem just. The parties agree to facilitate dhbitration by (a) making available to each othed to the Arbitrator fc
inspection and review all documents, books andrdscas the Arbitrator shall determine to be relétarthe dispute, (b) makii
individuals under their control available to otlparties and the Arbitrator and (c) observing dirittie time periods established
the Arbitrator for the submission of evidence alghgdings. The Arbitrator shall have the power toder declaratory judgmer
as well as to award monetary claims, provided tthatArbitrator shall not have the power to acb(ijside the prescribed scopt
this Agreement, or (ii) without providing an opparity to each party to be represented before thtrator.

e. The Arbitrator's award shall be in writing. The itndtor shall allocate the costs and expenses @fptioceedings between
parties and shall award interest as the Arbitrd®ems appropriate. The arbitration judgment shalfifial and binding on ti
parties. Judgment on the Arbitrator's award magrdered in any court having jurisdiction.

The Participant and the Company agree and unddrgtahby executing this Agreement and agreeingigArbitration provision, they a
giving up their rights to trial by jury for any giste related to this Agreement.

(the Participant's initials)

(the Company Representative's initials)




20. Clawback .

a. In the event of a breach of this Agreement by tadiépant or a material breach of Company policyaws or regulations th
could result in a termination for cause (whethenat the Participant is terminated), then the Rarémce shares granted her
shall be void and of no effect, unless the Committetermines otherwise. In the event of financergriopriety by the Participa
that results in a restatement of the financialest&ints of the Company for any applicable perioé (#pplicable Period”)as
determined by the Audit Committee or the Compaimdependent registered public accounting firm; fHethe award grante
hereby is made during the Applicable Period or ini®0 days after the end of such Applicable Peribd,number of Performar
Shares granted hereunder shall be reduced byt@frac

0] The numerator of which is the amount of operatimgpime decline for the Applicable Period caused umt
restatement or breach, and

(ii) The denominator of which is the amount of operatimugpme previously determined for the Applicableitd
or if the breach does not result in a decreaskdratount of operating income, the fraction shalb0%.

If Performance Shares have already vested undeitnieement, then the reduction contemplated ks $lgiction 20(b) shall
applied first to the remaining Performance Shamnashave not vested, pro rata, and second to sted/shares and the Particiy
shall repay the Company the amount of cash receivadwould have exceeded the amount attributabléhé shares grant
hereby.

As an example of the foregoing, assume the Paatitips granted an award of 200 Performance Shard3esember 1, 201
which may be earned in equal tranches during Regoce Periods ending on September 30, 2013 andrSlept 30, 2014.

If the Company discovers a breach or financial mppiety by the Participant on June 30, 2013, whéctds to a 50% decreast
operating income for the 2013 fiscal year and whiohld not result in termination for cause, thee #tward granted would
reduced to 100 Performance Shares, and the redustiald be applied equally to both Performancedeisti which would mes
that the 100 Performance Shares allocated to eafbrmance Period would be reduced from 100 to&foPmance Shares.

If the Company discovers a breach or financial imppiety by the Participant on June 30, 2015, whégtds to &0% decrease
operating income for the 2013 fiscal year and whiohld not result in termination for cause, thea Barticipant would have
repay the Company the cash value received for hafes.

b. In addition to the foregoing, if the Participdmas realized any profits from the sale of othemPany's securities during the 12-
month period prior to the discovery of breach oraficial impropriety referred to above, the Par#oipshall reimburse tl
Company for those profits to the extent requiredieyCompany's Clawback Policy.

C. The Company shall have the right to offset ieitcompensation - including at its sole discrestotk compensationte recove
any amounts that may be recovered by the Compaeyhéer.

21. Miscellaneous.

a. This Agreement and the rights of the Participametieder are subject to all the terms and conditadrike Plan, as the same r
be amended from time to time, as well as to suldsrand regulations as the Committee may adomdoninistration of the Pla
The Committee shall have the right to impose seslrictions on any shares acquired pursuant toAtfiisement, as it may de
advisable, including, without limitation, restriotis under applicable federal securities laws, utiteerequirements of any stc
exchange or market upon which such shares arelifted and/or traded, under any blue sky or stateidties laws applicable
such shares. It is expressly understood that then@itiee is authorized to administer, construe arakemall determinatiol
necessary or appropriate to the administratiom®fRlan and this Agreement, all of which shall imeling upon the Participant.




The Committee may terminate, amend or modify tlea Rihd this Agreement under the terms of and dsrsletin the Plar

The Company shall have the power and the righettudt or withhold from the payment due under thige®ment or Participar
other compensation, or require him or her to ramithe Company, an amount sufficient to satisfyefat| state, and local ta
(including the Participant's FICA obligation), dostie or foreign, required by law to be withheld viespect to any payout to f
or her under this Agreement.

The Participant agrees to take all steps necessartgmply with all applicable provisions of federald state securities laws
exercising his or her rights under this Agreement.

This Agreement shall be subject to all applicabled, rules and regulations, and to such approwadnl governmental agenc
or national securities exchanges as may be required

This Agreement and the Plan constitute the entitdetstanding between the Participant and the Coynpegarding th
Performance Shares granted hereunder. This Agréemdrthe Plan supersede any prior agreements, itorants or negotiatiol
concerning the Performance Shares granted hereunder

All rights and obligations of the Company under Bian and this Agreement, shall inure to the béméfand be binding on a
successor to the Company, whether the existencsuci successor is the result of a direct or intimechase, mergs
consolidation, or otherwise, of all or substanyialll of the business and/or assets of the Company.

To the extent not preempted by the laws of the ddhBtates, the laws of the State of Delaware sleathe controlling law in &
matters relating to this Agreement without givirffpet to principles of conflicts of laws.

The Participant acknowledges and agrees that ther@ots and other provisions contained hereineasonable and valid and
not impose limitations greater than those thatreeessary to protect the business interests anfidéotial Information of th
Company. The Company and the Participant agreettiieainvalidity or unenforceability of any one omore of the Covenan
other provisions, or parts thereof of this Agreetrstrall not affect the validity or enforceabilitythe other Covenants, provisio
or parts thereof, all of which are inserted cowdiéilly on their being valid in law, and in the ev@me or more Covenan
provisions, or parts thereof contained herein shallinvalid, this Agreement shall be construedfasuch invalid Covenani
provisions, or parts thereof had not been inseffld. Participant and the Company agree that thee@owvs and other provisic
contained in this Agreement are severable andidigisthat none of such Covenants or provisionseddpmpn any other Coveni
or provision for their enforceability, that eachcbuCovenant and provision constitutes an enforeeabligation between t
Company and the Participant, that each such Covemahprovision shall be construed as an agreeméapendent of any ott
Covenant or provision of this Agreement, and that éxistence of any claim or cause of action by merty to this Agreeme
against another party to this Agreement, whethedipated on this Agreement or otherwise, shallaooistitute a defense to
enforcement by any party to this Agreement of amhsCovenant or provision.

If any of the provisions contained in this Agreemeslating to the Covenants or other provisionstaimed herein, or any p.
thereof, are determined to be unenforceable bedazube length of any period of time, the size oy area, the scope of activit
or similar term contained therein, then such pebdime, area, scope of activities or similar teshrall be considered to
adjusted to a period of time, area, scope of dsvior similar term which would cure such invaldiand such Covenant
provision in its reduced form shall then be enfdrethe maximum extent permitted by applicable. law

This Agreement is intended to satisfy the requineimef Section 409A of the Code and shall be caestraccordingly. To t
extent that any amount or benefit that constitnmsqualified deferred compensation under Sectid?J4&f the Code, and that
not exempt under Section 409A, is otherwise payabldistributable to him or her on account of safian from service (withi
the meaning of Section 409A of the Code) while hehe is a specified employee (within the meanih&exction 409A of th
Code), such amount or benefit shall be paid oridigied on the later of time for payment describe8ection 4 of this Agreeme
and that date which is six (6) months after the dditsuch separation from service.

The parties agree that the mutual promises andhemie contained in this Agreement constitute gomb\eluable consideratic




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused thiseAgent to be executed effective as of the Daterant.

Mueller Water Products, Inc.

By:

Gregory E. Hyland

Chairman, President, and

Chief Executive Officer

ATTEST:

Participant




EXHIBIT A
Maximum Number of Performance Shares and AllocatioRerformance Periods

The Participant shall be eligible to earn up toftilewing number of Performance Shares identifigghosite each Performance Period below:

Threshold Number of
. Target Number of Performance
Maximum Number of Performande Shares That May be Earned Performance Shares That

Performance Period Shares That May be Earned May be Earned
October 1, 2012
October 1, 2013

Threshold Number of
Maximum Number of PerformangeTarget Number of Performange Performance Shares That
Award Cycle Shares That May be Earned Shares That May be Earned May be Earned

October 1, 2012




Performance Criteria
For Performance Period October 1, 20 B&ptember 30, 2013
General

The Performance Shares shall be earned as setbfedtv with respect to the applicable Performanegdd; provided that the Company's RO
for the applicable Performance Period equals oeeds the Target RONA (as defined below) for sudtioRaance Period. “RONAmeans th
guotient obtained by dividing “Adjusted Operatimgzdme” (after taxes but excluding amortization)tbg monthly average of “Working Capital”
and fixed assets, as derived from the Companyaiml statements, with such adjustments as then@ibee establishes in writing at the tim
establishes the Target RONA, Threshold RONA andiMar RONA for such Performance Period. “Adjustede@ping Income’for this purpos
means income from operations adjusted to remowegpily restructuring charges. “Working Capitédt this purpose means the average of adj
current assets less adjusted current liabilitidsclvmeasures exclude cash and cash equivalefiésratbincome taxes, debt and items report
held for sale.

“Target RONA”, “Threshold RONA” and “Maximum RONA"in each case means the specific fiscal year-pgar-improvement in RON.,
expressed as a percentage, established by the @eerfur the applicable Performance Period. Nosstithding the foregoing, if the Compat
RONA for the Performance Period does not meet oeex Target RONA for such fiscal year, but RONA $ach Performance Period meet
exceeds Threshold RONA, then fifty percent (50%hef Performance Shares award for such Perfornfaaged shall be earned. For the avoidi
of doubt, if RONA for the Performance Period isdvelThreshold RONA, no Performance Shares shalréeted for such Performance Period.

The Committee will develop the performance critdoathe subsequent Performance Period within itne fperiod for developing performar
goals under the regulations under Code Sectionni6Zn amended Exhibit A describing the performaadteria for that Performance Period
be provided to each Participant prior to the endhef first quarter of that Performance Period anlll automatically become a part of t
Agreement.

Performance Goals for Performance Period Octob2012 to September 30, 2013

Percentage of Target Performange Maximum Number of
Performance Level Fiscal 2013 RONA Goal Shares Earned Performance Shares Earned
Maximum 20(%
Target 10C%
Threshold 50%
Below Threshold —%




Exhibit 12.1

COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

The ratio of earnings to fixed charges is showowel

Year ended September 30,

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(in millions)

Income (loss) before income taxes $ 27 $ 12,9 $ 29 $ (940.7) $ 91.Z
Fixed charges:

Total interest including amortization of debt disnb

and issue costs and amounts capitalized $ 60.2 % 65.¢ % 68.2 % 79.¢ % 76.4
Estimated interest within rent expense 2.8 2.8 3.C 4.1 4.1
Total fixed charges $ 63.C $ 68.7 $ 71 % 84.C $ 80.5
Earnings (a) $ 65.7 $ 55.8 $ 68.4 $ (856.7) $ 1715
Ratio of earnings to fixed 1.C — i i 2.1

(@) For these ratios, “earning®presents income (loss) before income taxes plad tharge:
(b) Due to aloss during 2011, 2010 and 2009, the ddtearnings to fixed charges for these years essthan 1.0. The deficiency of earni
to total fixed charges was $12.9 million , $2.9limil and $940.7 million for 2011 , 2010 and 2008spectively.



Entity

Anvil International Holdings, LLC
Anvil International, LC

AnvilStar, LLC

Echologics, LLC

Henry Pratt Company, LLC
Henry Pratt International, LLC
Hunt Industries, LLC

Hydro Gate, LLC

J.B. Smith Mfg Co., LLC
James Jones Company, LLC
Jingmen Pratt Valve Co. Ltd.
Millikin Valve, LLC

Mueller Canada Holdings Corp.
Mueller Canada Ltd.

Mueller Co. LC

Mueller Financial Services, LLC
Mueller Group Co-Issuer, Inc.
Mueller Group, LLC

Mueller Co. International Holdings, LLC
Mueller International, LLC
Mueller Property Holdings, LLC
Mueller Service California, Inc.
Mueller Service Co., LLC
Mueller Systems, LLC

OSP, LLC

PCA-Echologices Pty Ltd.

U.S. Pipe Valve & Hydrant, LLC

Subsidiaries of Mueller Water Products, Inc.

State of

incorporation or

organization

Delaware
Delaware

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
China
Delaware
Canada
Canada
Delaware

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Australia
Delaward

Doing business as

Anvil International (N.H.)
Anvil Int'l Ltd Partnership of Delaware
Anvil International LP of Delaware
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
James Jones Company of Delaware, LLC
NA
NA
NA
Anvil Canada; Echologics Engineering
Mueller Co. Ltd., L.P.
Mueller Co. Ltd. (LP)
Mueller Flow, LLC
NA
NA
NA
Mueller International Finance (N.H.)
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA

Exhibit 21.1



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference irtl{g¢)Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-1I9gértaining to the 2006 Stock Incentive
Plan and 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan of Btualhter Products, Inc. and (2) the Registrati@iedtent (Form S-3 No. 333-182160) of our
reports dated November 29, 2012 , with respedtdéabnsolidated financial statements of Mueller /&roducts, Inc. and the effectiveness of

internal control over financial reporting of Muell/ater Products, Inc. included in this Annual RegBorm 10-K) for the year ended
September 30, 2012 .

/sl Ernst & Young LLP
Atlanta, Georgia
November 29, 201



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Gregory E. Hyland, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this annual report on FornK16F Mueller Water Products, Ini

Based on my knowledge, this report does notademny untrue statement of a material fact ort ¢nstate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in lighedfircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented
in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)daiare responsible for establishing and maintgmlisclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Bgd)) and internal control over financial repogtias defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrand have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned und
our supervision, to ensure that material informatielating to the registrant, including its condated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entitiestigularly during the period in which this rep@teing prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financgdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeragsurance regarding the reliability of financédorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragtislosure controls and procedures and presentinisi report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disctosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ameport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to eéilly affect, the registrant’s internal contreles financial reporting;
and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dahhave disclosed, based on our most recent eN@tuaf internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorglahe audit committee of registrant’s board oédiors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakges in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant’s ability to record, process, summasiad report financial
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inv@dvmanagement or other employees who have a smmiifiole in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Dated: November 29, 2012

/sl Gregory E. Hyland

Gregory E. Hyland
Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Evan L. Hart, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this annual report on FornK16F Mueller Water Products, Ini

Based on my knowledge, this report does notademny untrue statement of a material fact ort ¢nstate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in lighedfircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaaral for, the periods presented
in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)daiare responsible for establishing and maintgmlisclosure controls and procedures
(as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and1Bgd)) and internal control over financial repogtias defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrand have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned und
our supervision, to ensure that material informatielating to the registrant, including its condated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entitiestigularly during the period in which this rep@teing prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financgdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readeragsurance regarding the reliability of financédorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragtislosure controls and procedures and presentinisi report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disctosantrols and procedures, as of the end of thegeovered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestgnt's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ameport) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to eéilly affect, the registrant’s internal contreles financial reporting;
and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dahhave disclosed, based on our most recent eN@tuaf internal control over
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorglahe audit committee of registrant’s board oédiors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakges in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant’s ability to record, process, summasiad report financial
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inv@dvmanagement or other employees who have a smmiifiole in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Dated: November 29, 2012

/s/ Evan L. Hart

Evan L. Hart,

Senior Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

In connection with the accompanying annual repprEorm 10-K of Mueller Water Products, Inc. (theoff@pany”) for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2012 (the “Report”), |, Gregory Eland, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, dgrtpursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted
pursuant to 8906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2€(&;

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof1934; an

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgesents, in all material respects, the finarmmaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

Dated: November 29, 2012

/sl Gregory E. Hyland

Gregory E. Hyland
Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

In connection with the accompanying annual repprEorm 10-K of Mueller Water Products, Inc. (theoff@pany”) for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2012 (the “Report”), |, Evan L. H8gnior Vice President and Chief Financial Offickthe Company, certify, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. 81350, as adopted pursuant to 8906 of tHeaSas-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof1934; an

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgesents, in all material respects, the finarmmaldition and results of operations of the
Company.

Dated: November 29, 2012

/s/ Evan L. Hart

Evan L. Hart,

Senior Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer



